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Fund and Class of Shares ISIN

Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class DN EUR IE00B4YLN521
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class DN H GBP IE00B4YLN745
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class DN H USD IE00B4YLMY47
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class IN EUR IE00B3VHWQ03
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class IN H GBP IE00B3VHX450
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class IN H USD IE00B3VHWN71
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Class INF EUR IE00BYVQYQ87

Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class DL GBP IE00B60K3800
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class DL H EUR IE00B5ZNKR51
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class DL H USD IE00B6116G19
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class DNY H EUR IE00BK6M1400
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL GBP IE00B60S2G54
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL GBP Dist IE00BF2WQN35
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H EUR IE00B3LJVG97
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H EUR Dist IE00BF2WQM28
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H SEK IE00B57XDM94
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H USD IE00B5ZN3H63
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H USD Dist IE00BF2WQP58
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL U GBP IE00BYQG5598
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IN H EUR IE00BJQ2XG97
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00BJBK4F46
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IN H USD IE00BJQ2XH05

Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN EUR IE00B5591813
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN H CHF IE00B3N8Z959
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN H GBP IE00B50LJD33
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN H NOK IE00B5BGS293
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN H SEK IE00B664J889
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN H USD IE00B55G5T10
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class DN U EUR IE00BGBWYN70
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class IN EUR IE00B5429P46
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class IN H GBP IE00B501WY55
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00B5MLB684
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class IN H USD IE00B54VK141
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INU EUR IE00BYZCNV02
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INU H USD IE00BYZCNW19
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ EUR IE00BDRVT323
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ EUR Dist IE00BZ607T67
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H CHF Dist IE00BZ607S50
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H GBP Dist IE00BZ607V89
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H USD IE00BDRVT430
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H USD Dist IE00BZ607W96
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class IXXN EUR IE00BK77QN81
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class IXXN H USD IE00BK6GVG41

Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class DN USD IE00BRJT7S37
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class DN H EUR IE00BRJT7T44
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class DN H GBP IE00BRJT7X89
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class IN USD IE00BRJT8355
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class IN H CHF IE00BRJT8579
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class IN H EUR IE00BRJT8462
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class IN H GBP IE00BRJT8793
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00BRJT8B35

Man AHL TargetRisk Class D USD IE00BRJT7498
Man AHL TargetRisk Class D H CHF IE00BRJT7720
Man AHL TargetRisk Class D H EUR IE00BRJT7613
Man AHL TargetRisk Class D H GBP IE00BRJT7944
Man AHL TargetRisk Class D H SEK IE00BRJT7D83
Man AHL TargetRisk Class D H SGD IE00BRJT7F08
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Fund and Class of Shares (continued) ISIN

Man AHL TargetRisk Class I USD IE00BRJT7H22
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H CHF IE00BRJT7L67
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H EUR IE00BRJT7K50
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H GBP IE00BRJT7N81
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H JPY IE00BRJT7P06
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H SEK IE00BRJT7R20
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H SGD IE00BRJT7J46
Man AHL TargetRisk Class I H (BRL) USD IE00BKY59R06
Man AHL TargetRisk Class INU USD IE00BDCY1W99

Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class DN EUR IE00BWBSF561
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class DN H USD IE00BWBSFF61
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class DNY EUR IE00BWBSFG78
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class IN EUR IE00BWBSFJ00
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class IN F EUR IE00BYXWT366
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class INF H GBP IE00BYXWT580
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class INF H USD IE00BYXWT473
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class IN H GBP IE00BWBSFM39
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00BWBSFQ76
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Class IN H USD IE00BWBSFV20

Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class D USD IE00BD3B6K23
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class D H CHF IE00BYXPSM70
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class D H EUR IE00BD3B9479
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class D H GBP IE00BD3B6H93
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class D H NOK IE00BZCGN561
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DL USD IE00BD3B9693
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DL H EUR IE00BD3B9586
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DMF USD IE00BD8GLB82
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DMF H EUR IE00BD8GL969
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DR USD Dist IE00BYXQ8195
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DY USD IE00BD37M462
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class DY H EUR IE00BF20KP72
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I USD IE00BD3B6F79
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I USD Dist IE00BYWC7X35
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I H AUD IE00BYVW6714
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I H CHF IE00BD37M355
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I H EUR IE00BD3B6B32
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I H EUR Dist IE00BDB77545
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I H GBP IE00BD3B6C49
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class I H SEK IE00BD3B6D55
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IL USD IE00BD3B9362
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IL H EUR IE00BD3B6G86
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IMF USD IE00BYZJRM02
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IMF USD Dist IE00BYXZ2Y79
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IMF H EUR IE00BD6GFC99
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IMF H EUR Dist IE00BDB77768
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Class IMF H GBP Dist IE00BD8GLC99

Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class DN USD IE00BDRKSX26
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class DN H CHF IE00BDRKSS72
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class DN H EUR IE00BDRKST89
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class DN H SEK IE00BDRKSW19
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class DNF H EUR IE00BDRKSY33
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class IN USD IE00BDRKT516
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class INF USD IE00BDRKT730
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class INF H EUR IE00BDRKT623
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class INF H GBP IE00BYX7RF96
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class IN H CHF IE00BDRKT060
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class IN H EUR IE00BDRKT177
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class IN H GBP IE00BDRKT284
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00BDRKT409
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class INU H EUR IE00BFZ18L99
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Class INU H GBP IE00BYP55G81
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Fund and Class of Shares (continued) ISIN

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class D USD IE00BF52FP54
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class D H DKK IE00BJ9N8S60
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class D H EUR IE00BF52FN31
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class D H NOK IE00BJ9N8V99
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class D H SEK IE00BJ9N8T77
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I USD IE00BF52FK00
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I H AUD IE00BG0HKK25
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I H CHF IE00BF52FF56
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I H EUR IE00BF52FG63
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I H GBP IE00BF52FH70
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I H JPY IE00BD3HVN80
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class I H SEK IE00BF52FJ94
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class INU H EUR IE00BD5FCH16
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Class INU USD IE00BZ7PF851

Man AHL Active Balanced Class I H EUR IE00BGGLHH44
Man AHL Active Balanced Class I H GBP IE00BGGLHJ67
Man AHL Active Balanced Class I H JPY IE00BGGLHK72
Man AHL Active Balanced Class I H USD IE00BGGLHL89

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class D EUR IE00BDTYYP61
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class I EUR IE00BDTYYL24
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class I H GBP IE00BDTYYN48
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class I H USD IE00BDTYYM31
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class IF EUR IE00BJXMVL37
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class IF H GBP IE00BJ5K4V63
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class IF H GBP Dist IE00BHZHG737
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class IF H GBP G-Dist IE00BHZHG844
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class ILU H GBP G-Dist IE00BGLSPX24

Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative Class DN H EUR IE00BDVJ5T00
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative Class IN USD IE00BDVJ5R85
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative Class IN H EUR IE00BDVJ5Q78
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00BDVJ5S92
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative Class INU H GBP IE00BJJNGT35

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class DNFY H EUR IE00BKDV7869
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class DNFY USD IE00BKDV7752
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class IN H EUR IE00BJJNH014
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class IN H GBP IE00BJJNGX70
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class IN H SEK IE00BJJNGY87
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class IN USD IE00BJJNGV56
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class INF H EUR IE00BJBLGJ52
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Class INF USD IE00BJBLGK67

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return Class I C EUR IE00BJR66947
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return Class I C USD IE00BJR66830

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE Class I EUR IE00BKRQZ499
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE Class I EUR Dist IE00BKRQZ382

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha Class IN USD IE00BGMJW227
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Board of Directors: 
Ronan Daly (British citizen, Irish resident) 
Eric Fortier (Canadian)  
John Morton (British) 
Bronwyn Wright (Irish) 
 

 
Secretary and Registered Office: 
Matsack Trust Limited, 
70 Sir John Rogerson�s Quay, 
Dublin 2, 
Ireland 
 

Manager:  
Man Asset Management (Ireland) Limited, 
70 Sir John Rogerson�s Quay, 
Dublin 2, 
Ireland 
 

 Investment Manager in respect of the GLG LLC Portfolios: 
GLG LLC, 
452 Fifth Avenue, 
27th Floor, 
New York, 
New York 10018, 
United States of America  
 

Depositary*: 
The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch 
Riverside II 
Sir John Rogerson�s Quay 
Grand Canal Dock, 
Dublin 2, 
Ireland 
 
Legal Advisers as to matters of Irish law: 
Matheson, 
70 Sir John Rogerson�s Quay, 
Dublin 2, 
Ireland 
 
 
Independent Auditor: 
Ernst & Young, 
Chartered Accountants, 
Ernst & Young Building, 
Harcourt Centre, 
Harcourt Street, 
Dublin 2, 
Ireland 
 
Swiss Representative: 
Man Investments AG, 
Huobstrasse 3, 
8808 Pfäffikon SZ, 
Switzerland 
 
 

Administrator: 
BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity 
Company,  
One Dockland Central, 
Guild Street, 
IFSC, 
Dublin 1, 
Ireland 
 

 
 

Investment Manager and Distributor in relation to the Man GLG
Portfolios: 
GLG Partners LP, 
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London EC4R 3AD, 
England  
 
Investment Manager in relation to the Man AHL Portfolios: 
AHL Partners LLP, 
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London EC4R 3AD, 
England 
 
Investment Manager in relation to the Man Numeric Portfolios: 
Numeric Investors LLC, 
200 Pier 4 Boulevard, 
5th Floor, 
Boston, 
MA 02210, 
United States of America 
 
 
Investment Manager in relation to the Man Solutions Portfolios: 
Man Solutions Limited,  
Riverbank House,  
2 Swan Lane,  
London EC4R 3AD, 
England 
 
Distributor in relation to the Portfolios: 
Man Investments AG, 
Huobstrasse 3, 
8808 Pfäffikon SZ, 
Switzerland 
 
Swiss Paying Agent: 
RBC Investor Services Bank S.A., 
Esch-sur Alzette, Zurich Branch, 
Bleicherweg 7, 
8027 Zurich, 
Switzerland 

 
A detailed list of investments purchased and sold during the year is available upon request from the registered office of the Fund free of 
charge. 
 
*Effective 1 December 2019, BNY Mellon Trust Company (Ireland) Limited, One Dockland Central, Guild Street, IFSC, Dublin 1, merged 
into The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV (the �European Bank�) and as of that date, depositary services were provided by the Dublin 
branch of the European Bank. 
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Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Market Review: 
 
The key driver of Emerging Markets hard (HC)1 and local currency (LC) debt in 2019 was the decrease in yields in developed market 
countries (DM), particularly U.S. Treasuries, which had started late in 2018 and deepened in June. The decline in global yields came on 
the back of the marked dovish2 shift in DM central banks, as lingering trade concerns increased the downside risks to global economic 
activity, and was further boosted by the monetary expansionary effect of the USD 237 billion drop in the U.S. Treasury�s cash cushion 
from the beginning of May to the end of July (equivalent to an annualised quantitative easing of USD950bn). 
 
In 2019 H2, following the extension of the U.S. debt ceiling negotiated in late July, the U.S. Treasury started to rebuild its cash balances 
which worked as quantitative tightening since liquidity was drained out of the system and deposited at the Fed3. The strains caused by 
this reversion were visible in U.S. repo rates that spiked higher and forced the Fed to intervene to add to the supply of reserves by 
supplying short-term liquidity via open market operations and the purchase of T-bills on a daily basis. The Fed’s purchases of T-bills 
provided support in the front end of the rate market, although higher Treasury net issuance, investors� improved confidence in the U.S. 
growth outlook and firmer U.S. inflation led the longer end of the yield curve to move gradually higher into the year end. 
 
The sharp dovish tilt by DM central banks was mirrored by their EM counterparts, led by Turkey (12% of rate cuts in 2019), Egypt (4.5%), 
Ukraine (4.5%), Brazil (2%), and Russia (1.5%). Elsewhere, in countries such as China, Indonesia and the Philippines, there were also 
sizeable reductions in the required reserve ratios. 
 
Underpinned by this risk-supportive backdrop, EM yields dropped without much regard for higher debt metrics and overall deteriorating 
macroeconomic dynamics, political profile or capital control risks. HC returned 14.4% in 2019, while LC returned 13.5%4. Within HC, 
Investment Grade countries, buoyed by the decrease in DM rates, returned +16.9%. Although lower rated countries from bellwethers 
such as Ukraine to frontier markets5 in both Africa and Asia were among the best performing countries in 2019, the high yield segment 
overall was up by a smaller +10.8%, as credit stress events started to be priced in countries such as Argentina, Lebanon and Suriname6. 
 
In the local bond universe, carry (+6.1%) and rate return (+6.0%) were the largest contributors to performance, while currency 
performance only contributed 1%. Russia was the best performing country (+20.0%) as it was supported by the recovery in energy 
prices and lower global yields, while Argentina was the worst performer at -66.9% as the currency weakness experienced after August�s 
primary elections forced the administration to extend the maturities of local debt and impose capital controls. 
 

Outlook: 
 

In our view, 2019 performance is unlikely to be repeated as the effects of last year�s global synchronized monetary easing tails off and 
the ongoing increase in duration supply from U.S. Government debt (roughly USD 600 bn net on an annual basis since the end of 2017) 
will not be easily offset even under ECB�s last year�s round of QE, adding to the upward pressure on yields.  
 

Meanwhile, fundamentals for most EM countries are weak, valuations are tight and positions massively crowded in both hard currency 
and local rates with most investors positioned for a continued benign EM market performance in 2020. With positive news such as the 
U.S. and China phase-one trade accord priced in by market participants, such a long investor positioning may add to market volatility 
this year, as trade uncertainties are likely to linger, geopolitical uncertainty (from Iran, to Turkey, and North Korea) remain high, social 
unrest around the world continues to spread and EM sovereign defaults are likely to rise. 
 

Fund Activity: 
 

In light of expensive valuations, crowded positioning, deteriorating fundamentals in some countries and the expected impact in global 
liquidity of the increase in U.S. Treasury debt issuance, we viewed the EM asset class expected return skewed to the downside, and 
thus kept the portfolio defensive positioning. 
 

In LC, the fund short currency exposure7 of the fund to EM currencies stood at -18.4% at year-end (versus -12.2% at the close of 2018), 
comprised of a short exposure to BRL (-6.3%), IDR (-5.7%), ZAR (3.2%) and COP (-3.2%). Through the course of 2019H1 we partially 
reduced the short in COP while simultaneously increasing the short in ZAR. In August, ahead of the primary elections in Argentina we 
gradually reduced the ARS long to 3.9% (from 7.2% at the end of July)8. Likewise, we reduced the short BRL in a similar proportion to -
5.7%. We let the remaining ARS exposure to steadily roll-out to zero by early November. 

                                                            
1Hard Currency: investments made in securities issued by EM sovereign or quasi-sovereign denominated in hard currency, in this case 
the U.S. dollar. 
2Dovish is a term that refers to the general sentiment of the central bank of a country. It is associated with a looser, more 
accommodating monetary policy that usually involves lower interest rates because to promote growth. 
3From a minimum of USD125bn in the week of August 21, cash balances at the Fed increased to USD 314bn in the week of September 
25, equivalent to an annualized QT of USD1.900bn. Source: Federal Reserve. 
4HC segment return measured by JP Morgan EMBIG family Index and LC segment return measured by JP Morgan GBI-EM GD family of 
indexes. 
5Frontier Market or Next Generation Market, means USD-denominated debt issued by sovereign and quasi sovereign from next 
generation countries. Next Generation countries are smaller, less liquid population of emerging market economies, where investment 
opportunities in the external debt market are limited relative to the larger emerging economies countries where external debt issuance is 
frequent and large. 
6The organisations/financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be construed 
as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
7Currency exposure is a term referring to the vulnerability of an investment, cash flow or financial position to variations in the exchange 
rate of two currencies. 
8The fund�s ARS long exposure was via NDFs (off-shore) and the fund has no exposure in the Argentine local market. When setting up 
the ARS position, we did it through NDFs as we have learned from experience that local authorities tend to resort to capital controls 
when they run into stress, making it difficult and painful to exit from local positions in such events. 
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Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return --- Annual Report Commentary (continued) 
 
Fund Activity (continued): 
 
In local rates, the fund kept the -0.5 years short in local currency duration9 weighted exposure (DWE)10 in local currency DWE in Brazil 
unchanged.  
 
In HC, in light of our view for U.S. Treasury yields to go higher, the fund closed the year with a duration weighted exposure (DWE) of 0.2 
years, at the low end of the strategy�s historical range of between 0 to 4 years. In light of expensive valuations, we increased the short 
credit spread DWE of the Fund by -0.6 years to -3.3 years in January, as the majority of the countries where we run shorts tightened to 
levels close to the lows seen in the last nine years. We ended the year at -3.2 years (compared to -2.6 y ears at the end of 2018), also at 
the low end of historical ranges. In 2019 Q4, as a credit event in Lebanon got priced in, we took profit on the short credit spread 
exposure to the sovereign and further reduced the short position to -0.5% exposure (-5.1% exposure at the end of 2018). 
 
Performance: 
 
In 2019, the Fund estimated gross and net returns11 were -1.8% and -2.8% respectively. The weekly volatility of its returns was 3.3%. 
The major source of the negative return at a time when the EMD asset class experienced a positive return, was the defensive position of 
the portfolio.  
 
In 2019, the Fund�s cash exposure contributed to performance with 2.1% to its -1.8% total estimated gross performance, while the LC 
and HC short exposures detracted by -1.6% and -2.3%, respectively. Despite the portfolio�s negative -0.5 beta to the EMD asset class 
in a period that EMD HC and LC rallied, the impact on performance was limited by positive alpha coming from the short credit spread 
exposure to Lebanon (+1.8%) in the HC and the long exposure to ARS in LC. 
 
Past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
 

                                                            
9Duration: Expressed in years and measures the sensitivity of a bond�s price to a change in interest rates. There is an inverse relationship 
between bond prices and interest rates. 
10DWE corresponds to each country�s contribution to the overall duration of the fund. 
11Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. 
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Man GLG Global Debt Total Return --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Performance: 
 
In 2019, the Fund estimated gross and net returns1 were +0.99% and 0.72% respectively. 
 
Market Review 
 
The key driver of global debt markets in 2019 was the decrease in yields in developed market countries (DM), particularly U.S. 
Treasuries, which had started late in 2018 and deepened in the late May to early August period. The decline in global yields came on the 
back of the marked dovish2 shift in DM central banks, as lingering trade concerns increased the downside risks to global economic 
activity, and was further boosted by the monetary expansionary effect of the USD 237 billion drop in the U.S. Treasury�s cash cushion 
held at the Federal Reserve from the beginning of May to the end of July (with an impact equivalent to an annualised quantitative easing 
of USD950bn). 
 
The sharp dovish tilt by DM central banks was mirrored by their EM counterparts, led by Turkey (12% of rate cuts in 2019), Egypt (4.5%), 
Ukraine (4.5%), Brazil (2%), and Russia (1.5%). Elsewhere, in countries such as China, Indonesia and the Philippines, there were also 
sizeable reductions in the required reserve ratios. 
 
In 2019 H2, following the extension of the U.S. debt ceiling negotiated in late July, the U.S. Treasury started to rebuild its cash balances, 
which worked as quantitative tightening since liquidity was drained out of the system and deposited at the Fed3. The strains caused by 
this reversion were visible in U.S. repo rates that spiked higher and forced the Fed to intervene to add to the supply of reserves by 
supplying short-term liquidity via open market operations and the purchase of T-bills on a daily basis. In Europe, the ECB restarted its 
corporate bond QE (CSPP) program in November. In our view, the investment of the liquidity held by the largest US banks as a 
consequence of the Fed�s liquidity injections triggered a portfolio displacement effect similar to that of quantitative easing again 
supporting risk asset prices. 
 
Underpinned by this risk-supportive backdrop, DM credit rallied, EM yields dropped without much regard for higher debt metrics and 
overall deteriorating fundamentals.  The fund, which run with an underweight in USD duration, in EM currencies, and EM credit suffered 
as a consequence. 
 
Outlook: 
 
In our view, 2019 performance for rates and credit is unlikely to be repeated in 2020 as the effects of last year�s global synchronized 
monetary easing tails off and the ongoing increase in duration supply from U.S. Government debt (roughly USD 600bn net on an annual 
basis since the end of 2017) will not be easily offset even under ECB�s last year�s round of QE, adding to the upward pressure on yields.  
 
Slowing global growth, trade disputes, geopolitical uncertainty (from Iran, to Turkey, and North Korea) and social unrest around the EM 
world all argue for caution. However, despite vulnerable fundamentals, stretched valuations and crowded market positioning, most 
investors seem to be positioned for a continued benign credit market performance in 2020. With positive news such as the U.S. and 
China phase-one trade accord priced in by market participants, such a long investor positioning may add to market volatility this year. 
 
Past Performance is not indicative of future performance. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
 
 
GLG LLC, 
452 Fifth Avenue, 
27th Floor, 
New York, 
New York 10018, 
United States of America 
 
February 2020* 
 
 
Source: GLG LLC 
The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
 
For all the sub-funds past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency 
fluctuations. Performance is net of all fees and is disclosed for the reporting share class. The value of an investment and any income 
derived from it can go down as well as up and investors may not get back their original amount invested. Alternative investments can 
involve significant additional risks. 
 
The limits and/or targets illustrate the Investment Manager�s current intentions, and are subject to change without notice. 
 
 
*The above Investment Manager�s reports are commentaries for the year 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. They do not include or 
take account of any movements, returns or market information for subsequent periods. 

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. Returns are calculated net of 0.40% management fees. Other share classes may charge higher fees. 
2Dovish is a terms that refer to the general sentiment of the central bank of a country. It is associated with a looser, more 
accommodating monetary policy that usually involves lower interest rates because to promote growth. 
3From a minimum of USD125bn in the week of August 21, cash balances at the Fed increased to USD 314bn in the week of September 
25, equivalent to an annualized QT of USD1.900bn. Source: Federal Reserve. 
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Man GLG European Alpha Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary  
 
Strategy Performance  
 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative (�the Fund�) ended 2019 up 0.7% in the EUR class, and 3.7% in the USD class net of fees1. 
Needless to say, this is subdued performance, and remains apologetically sub-trend for the Fund after an unflattering 2018. Whilst 
acutely aware of this, we feel in a strong position, on which we will elaborate below.  
 
Environment & Outlook  
 
The Euro Stoxx 600�s2 performance was up 23.2% for 2019, almost entirely driven by multiple expansion. This contrasts with the sense 
of gloom markets exuded at the year�s outset. However, the US Federal Reserve gave up on its normalisation path early on. The macro 
was well supported in the US, with GDP likely to match expectations at the start of the year. Other geographies were weaker, with 
Germany in particular surprising to the downside for the second year in a row. Brexit played a key consideration through the year, whilst 
Sino-US trade negotiations provided several bouts of volatility. With yields intermittently rising, value over momentum started to recover 
following acute underperformance. The markets ended the year on strong note, thanks to increasingly constructive dialogue between the 
US and China on a phase 1 trade deal, the largest conservative majority in the UK in 3 decades, a few macro-economic data points 
improving, and $6bn of inflows into Global Equities. 
 
There is no doubt that momentum is currently in equity markets. We have signs of potential cyclical recovery, with valuations seemingly 
cheap when compared to interest rates; and at the stock level, earnings estimates for the more cyclical parts of the markets have begun 
to recover. 
 
While these signs are encouraging, we would strike a note of caution on several fronts: 
 

1. The well-publicised, though tentative, value over defensives rotation of H2 �19 failed to materially assert itself.  
2. Yields attempted to move back up, but their efforts remain febrile.  
3. For all the positive macro data points recorded in December, the key ISM survey was undoubtedly weak. 
4. Though valuations vs. interest rates are reasonably attractive, on an absolute basis, multiples are above long-term averages.  
5. A sustained rotation from defensives to value has now become consensus among sell-side strategists.  

 
We also note a substantial change in the political landscape, resulting from the new type of approach adopted by the Trump 
administration, and the new style of Conservative policies propagated by Boris Johnson. 
 
We therefore adopt the view that markets are likely to be capricious in 2020. For the Fund, we are constructive on three principal 
accounts: 
 

1. The environment of the past few years has posed challenges for active management and we believe this is set to improve. 
There has been little value in portfolio diversification in the recent past, which contrasts with appetite for factor hedging and 
the like. Portfolios concentrated towards secure and inherently defensive growth have materially outperformed, and in their 
ascendency, have encouraged greater appreciation for momentum, which diverse portfolios have over-hedged - we have 
regrettably fallen into this category. Should markets show a greater degree of vulnerability, there are so many assets parked in 
so few secure growth names, that the merits of diversification are likely to re-emerge. 

2. As market capriciousness surfaces, volatility may increase. If so, returns dispersion will be higher and the likelihood of 
mispricings should rise. 

3. We believe our toolkit has never been better, not merely due to the signals, but also due to considerably improved 
functionality. 

 
Process Update 
 
In 2019, we instigated a project at Man Group to record the setup of a stock through our 5 different lenses at the time each trade was 
instigated, and throughout the life of our holding period. The project is designed to: (i) aggregate data faster and more effectively, (ii) 
flexibly store the data at the time of trade, (iii) create a dynamic trading tool and state of the art post trade analytics functionality. 
 
Top Attribution Winners & Losers 
 
For the year as a whole, the top 3 attributions winners were Barco (88 bps), JD Sports (87 bps) and Teleperformance (63 bps). Barco 
has been a story of continued upward revision to numbers as consensus naturally assumes a steady state cinema replacement market, 
and has underestimated the potential of the company to outperform on Clickshare and margins. JD Sports is one of few UK retailers 
seemingly having success globally thanks to its strong execution and its ability to capture the casualisation of society, backed by the 
world�s two leading sports brands: Nike and Adidas. Meanwhile, Teleperformance goes from strength to strength, as it has continued to 
surprise positively on organic growth driven by its unique capabilities that operate across multiple communication channels3. 
 
The top 3 attribution losers were Swedish Match (46 bps), Subsea (21 bps) and Cineworld (20 bps). We were able to respect a minimum 
2:1 pay-off ratio, but are particularly displeased with our execution of Swedish Match. Whilst we maintained our discipline on the name, 
our rules coincided with executing the stop losses at precisely the wrong times. 
 
Past Performance is not indicative of future performance. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations.  

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. 
2The index is not a benchmark and is not representative of the Fund’s investment strategy. The information is shown for comparison 
purposes only. 
3The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
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Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
The sharp equity market declines in the fourth quarter of 2018 were quickly forgotten in 2019: the level of pessimism and cautiousness 
as we entered 2019 meant that cyclicals managed to perform well, especially where corporate management teams delivered on their 
plans. The main catalyst for the reversal in market performance was a return to central banks easing monetary policy, and growth of their 
respective balance sheets. The market move was augmented by increasing economic optimism, aided by progress being delivered on 
US-China trade negotiations, Brexit and a UK election that resulted in a significant Conservative majority. 
 
Economic data remained robust in the US during 2019. There was less improvement during 2019 than in Europe or China, but the US 
economy was less depressed, to start with. Recent data has been more mixed with the US manufacturing PMI making new lows, 
although this is at odds with other PMI surveys and lead indicators. 
 
Whilst we see few red flags that would prevent ongoing positive equity market returns, we would note that P/E multiples are high, 
especially in the US. All else being equal, this should point to lower returns going forward. In the short-term, investor sentiment has 
improved markedly over the last 12 months, and central banks have loosened monetary policy aggressively 2019. These tailwinds are 
unlikely to be as strong in 2020, especially as the rate of central bank balance sheet expansion is starting to peak. However, in the 
medium-term, we would note that in an environment where bond yields have reached levels not seen for decades, if not longer, there 
remains the potential for an ongoing rerating of equities relative to bonds. 
 
ESG considerations are an important part of any investment strategy. Whilst environmental and social concerns have been playing an 
increasing role in everyday life, 2019 felt like a watershed moment, both from an investment, but also broader, perspective. Numerous 
governments pledged to adopt �net zero� carbon targets and, in June, the UK became the first major economy in the world to pass a 
2050 net zero carbon target into law. This has several impacts on our strategy. We have always been strong believers that well-run 
businesses will outperform in the medium-term. It is hard to argue that a business can be well-run if it doesn�t have the correct 
governance and oversight in place, but also if it doesn�t understand how it impacts the environment and society in which it operates. 
History would suggest that consumer demands, environmental policy, or tax regimes will adapt to limit poor or incorrect behaviour with 
regard to these issues. As a result, these considerations have always been part of our investment process. We must decide what the key 
drivers of a company and its share price are. These can be wide ranging, and include ESG considerations, although many other issues 
as well, perhaps the most obvious being valuation. ESG analysis can often be subjective in nature. However, we have tools internally that 
allow us to be more quantitative in that analysis. Whilst ESG considerations may not be the overarching driver of any position, we think 
their importance is only going to increase. This can clearly be seen in management behaviour. For example, EasyJet this year announced 
that the company would invest £25m in ensuring that, going forward, it will be carbon neutral. 
 
Fund Performance 
 
The fund was up 7% for the year1. This lagged equity markets, but the fund has managed to deliver positive returns in 2018 and 2019, 
with market conditions in those two years diverging hugely (if not being broadly polar opposites), and therefore demonstrated the fund�s 
ability to generate returns, regardless of both the market environment and its direction. 
 
Stock selection accounted for nearly 90% of the fund�s returns in 2019, with options also making a positive contribution. Sector 
allocation made an immaterial positive return. We were pleased with the fund�s stock picking. Performance attribution highlighted that 
only one stock detracted from the fund�s stock selection by an absolute amount that would have made it into the top ten positive 
holdings. Sector attribution, whilst positive, was impacted by the fund�s long exposure to energy, which detracted from performance. 
 
It is worth noting, that industry exposure was a big positive contributor to performance in 2018. This highlights the importance of having 
a diverse strategy, with several factors contributing to performance, as the main drivers in any one year are hard to forecast. 
 
The strategy remains focused on large cap stocks, with some exposure to mid and small cap stocks, the extent of which varies 
depending on the opportunity set that presents itself. Currently the fund is 89% exposed to large and mega cap stocks, with the balance 
in mid and small cap stocks. There is no exposure to microcaps or unlisted securities. 
 
Past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
 
 

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. Returns are calculated net of 0.75% management fees 20%. Other share classes may charge higher fees. 
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Man GLG European Equity Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Overview  
 
After a difficult end to 2018 for the equity markets, the beginning of 2019 saw risk assets rebound as investor sentiment improved. The 
positive momentum seen in the first quarter was primarily driven by central banks after the US Federal Reserve performed a dovish U-
turn and surprised markets in March by stating that there would not be any further rate hikes in 2019. By the beginning of May, however, 
escalating US-China trade tensions weighed on sentiment, sending markets lower. Equity markets recovered in June as the prospect of 
the US Federal Reserve cutting interest rates outweighed ongoing geopolitical and trade tensions.  The US Federal Reserve would go on 
to cut interest rates in July, September, and October. The European Central Bank also followed suit in September, restarting quantitative 
easing. September was also marked by a violent rotation in underlying factors, as bond yields backed up from low levels in August, and 
momentum winners collapsed, to the benefit of value laggards. Equity markets moved higher towards the end of the year as the 
geopolitical risks that weighed on investors throughout the year begin to ease. Most notably, the US and China agreed to a phase one 
trade deal, removing the threat of further escalation and boosting investor sentiment. Markets also responded favourably to the 
increased clarity over Brexit following the definitive result of the UK general election. 
 
Performance  
 
The Man GLG European Equity Alternative Fund (the �Fund�) ended the year down 1.71%1 net of fees.  
 
Looking at the underlying book2 returns, we saw strong contributions come from the UK Core (+2.25%), Risk Arbitrage (+1.37%), and 
Centre Book (1.14%).  UK Core found success with a long positions in Rio Tinio and CRH, while Risk Arbitrage benefitted Fiserv�s 
acquisition of First Data. Pleasingly, Centre Book also had a strong year, bouncing back from a difficult 2018, contributing 1.14% to 
returns. 
 
On the negative side, it was a difficult year for our Mining strategy (-1.47%) which struggled with its short book. Europe Materials also 
had a difficult year (-1.13%), losing money on a long position in Covestro3 after the chemical maker reported a fall in profits. Despite a 
strong start to the year Global Healthcare (-0.63%) also found market conditions challenging, losing money on a long position in Aclaris 
Therapeutics after the pharmaceutical company reported disappointing clinical trial results. 
 
At a single stock contribution level, the biggest positive contributors to Specific returns were Pearson (+65bps) and Marks & Spencer 
(+53bps). Interestingly, both were short positions held across several strategies as well as Centre Book. Pearson has had a difficult year 
in its publishing business, punctuated by a weak trading update in September, and the announcement of the departure of the CEO in 
December. M&S has suffered sequential negative same store sales growth since Q4 2017, with earnings revisions consistently under 
pressure throughout the year. 
 
The biggest negative detractors to Specific returns were Fortescue Metals and DCC plc. Fortescue Metals was a short position in the 
Mining and Centre Book, which was buoyed substantially by the rally in the iron ore price. 
 
Turning to factor attribution (how much performance can be explained from Barra4 defined exposures), this year saw the Fund�s alpha 
recover, with our returns from Specific risk contributing 7.71% in 2019. This positive return, however, was offset by a combination of 
negative returns from other risk attributes. Within the detracting risk attributes, Industry (-57bps) was notable. The most material detractor 
was Style (-106bps). Given the core philosophy underpinning the Fund�s portfolio construction is to maximise exposures to Specific risk 
and to constrain factors, it is notable that this risk attribute, which typically is between 10% and 20% of overall risk, should detract over 
100bps. We have two observations about this impact. First, it reaffirms to us the importance of limiting exposures to factors or styles in 
this Fund, as they are inherently hard to predict and come with higher volatility. 
 
Second, losses on factors occurred in the last four months of the year, following September�s severe factor rotation. In our view, it is 
notable that these losses were accompanied by an acceleration in gains from Specific risk, due to the opportunities created from the 
dislocation of the factor rotation. While these factor losses were costly, ultimately the period was positive for the Fund. 
 
Looking ahead 
 
Despite somewhat lacklustre performance in 2019, we enter 2020 with considerable optimism. A number of important initiatives focused 
on improving the performance have been launched in 2019 that we are hopeful they will continue to gain traction throughout the course 
of this year. More recent performance trends have certainly been encouraging.  We are hopeful we can build on this in 2020. 
 

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees for the Man GLG European Equity Alternative IN EUR with income reinvested, and does not take 
into account sales and redemption charges where such costs are applicable. Returns are calculated net of 2% management fees 20%. 
Other share classes may charge higher fees 
2As a multi-manager fund, capital is allocated to portfolio managers who autonomously run their own portfolios, or books. 
3The organisations/financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be construed 
as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
4Barra Risk Factor Analysis is a multi-factor model, created by Barra Inc., used to measure the overall risk associated with a security 
relative to the market. Barra Risk Factor Analysis incorporates over 40 data metrics, including earnings growth, share turnover and senior 
debt rating. The model then measures risk factors associated with three main components: industry risk, risk from exposure to different 
investment themes and company-specific risk. 
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Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
For the year 2019 as a whole the Fund increased by 3.1%1 (net of fees). The Stoxx Europe Mid 200 Index (MCXP)2 increased by 23% in 
Euros (21% in Dollars) as trade war fears abated, monetary policy eased and optimism over a macroeconomic recovery took hold.  
 

Stock specific factors were the primary drivers of fund performance for the year. We were not materially impacted by the market move or 
by style factor rotations. The top and bottom contributors are summarized in the table below. 
 

As the strategy we run tends to have low net market exposure, we view a direct comparison of our performance with the market as 
inappropriate given the low correlation. In both 2018 and 2019 during two contrasting market backdrops (correction in 2018 and sharp 
rally in 2019) we posted a positive return. However, the returns we have recently achieved are below our expectations, and in our 
opinion, reflect a more difficult recent environment for alpha generation. 
 

We are confident this is due to cyclical reasons as opposed to structural ones and are hopeful that as some of the political and 
macroeconomic headwinds fade, stock prices have the potential to revert to being driven primarily by fundamentals as opposed to top 
down macro factors. We believe we may have already started to see this re-attachment in the third quarter earnings season where post 
earnings price action was more rational. This is part of the reason for our continued increase in gross exposure over the year towards 
more normalised levels after a period of cautiousness.  We have increased our gross exposure from 78% at the start of the year to 141% 
at the end of the year3.  
 

In addition to individual idiosyncratic stock picks, there are a number of sector themes that we are invested in on the fund. This includes 
our long holdings in chemical and fuel distribution (Brenntag, DCC and Rubis), our shorts in supermarkets (ICA, Axfood), hearing aid 
manufacturers (Demant, GN and Sonova) retail (Fielmann, Klepierre, Deutsche Euroshop) and selected financials (Direct Line, Corestate, 
Jupiter).  
 

We are also well invested in a number of sectors where we have more neutral positioning but are positioned for sub sector themes. For 
example, in the automotive supplier space we are short internal combustion engine exposed names such as Elringklinger and Schaeffler 
whilst long airbag and seatbelt manufacturer Autoliv. Within Media we are long exhibition and events via our holding in Informa whilst 
short academic publishing via Pearson. In the telecoms space we are short alterative telecoms MVNO Freenet whilst effectively being 
long cloud hosting through our pair trade long United Internet and short Drillisch4. 
 

Our continuous process of idea generation and research is yielding new names. Over the last year, we have provided our rationale for 
these new additions in our monthly newsletters, highlighting some our new longs in Fagron, Grafton, Autoliv and UDG and some new 
shorts in Deutsche Europshop, Stroer, Moneysupermarket, Corestate and Keywords. 
 

As we enter the start of a new year, we are feeling optimistic that the market backdrop is more positive versus this time last year. We 
would like to take this opportunity to wish you, our existing and prospective clients a Happy New Year and to once again thank you for 
your continued support and interest. We also wish you a successful investment year in 2020. 
 

Top 5 Long/Sh
ort 

Name Impact 
(Gross 
return bps) 

Commentary 

1 
 

Short Pearson 158 US Higher Ed business declined leading to profit warning and 
eventual CEO departure 

2 
 

Short DKSH 97 Weakness in its consumer business prompted downgrades 

3 
 

Long Teleperformance 92 Strong organic growth and new mid-term targets 

4 
 

Short 1&1 Drillisch 90 Pair with United Internet � rump hosting business valuation 
recovered after a technical sell off 

5 
 

Short Pirelli 60 Price pressure and supply concerns drove downgrades and de-
rating 

     
Bottom 5     
1 
 

Long DCC 74 Defensive holding underperformed, weakness in UK technology 
and lack of acquisitions 

2 
 

Short Green King 67 Takeover by HK Billionaire Li Ka Shing 

3 
 

Short United Internet 65 Pair with 1&1 Drillisch  � rump hosting business valuation 
recovered after a technical sell off 

4 
 

Short Getinge 48 Improved margins after substantial efficiency efforts 

5 
 

Long SMCP 43 Earnings below expectations and concerns over solvency of 
Parent company 

 
Past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees for the IN H USD share class with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and 
redemption charges where such costs are applicable. 
2The index is selected by the Investment Manager for performance illustration and comparison purposes only. It is not a formal 
benchmark and does not form part of the Fund�s investment objectives or investment policy. 
3The limits and/or targets illustrate the Investment Manager�s current intentions, and are subject to change without notice. 
4The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
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Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
The Man GLG Global Innovation Equity Alternative investment strategy focuses on sectors that are predominantly driven by company 
specific fundamental changes rather than macro. Taking this approach most often leads us to Technology, Consumer Discretionary, 
Industrials and occasionally Telecoms. This is an approach the fund manager has undertaken for over 15 years. It is both systematic and 
fundamental and primarily focused on liquid stocks with large market capitalisation (companies whose markets value is above USD 10 
bn). The strategy seeks to generate alpha (excess return of an investment relative to the return of a reference index) by focusing on areas 
where consensus expectations are wrong both on the long strategy and the short strategy over some duration. 
 

A successful third year post launch 
 

2019 was the third year of the launch of our UCITS fund at Man GLG (with an investment process that the fund manager originated, 
followed and evolved over 15 years) which has continued, in our view, to prove successful reflected in the low level volatility experienced 
this year and positive returns in spite of at times choppy macro data and violent equity stylistic rotations. The new team hires from 2018 
have bedded down well and contributing to the process effectively. We believe this is reflected in the fund�s AUM which has risen from 
$20 million on December 30th 2016 to $482 million exiting 2019. 
 

Performance in 2019 
 

In 2019, the fund returned +5.29% net of fees for the IN USD share class which results in a +14.89% return since inception1. This 
compares to the Hedge Fund Research HFRU Equity Hedge Index2 having returns of +6.36% and +6.42% respectively, the fund�s 
reference index. The wider equity markets recovered their losses of 2018 and more with the S&P500 returning +28.88% and STOXX 3 
Europe 600 Price Index +23.16%. On a gross return alpha attribution analysis basis, the stock selection attribution was +3.56% while 
hedge selection attribution at +1.24% was also positive in spite of rising equity markets. Market attribution was also positive while sector 
and country were small negatives.  Since inception, the fund has had annualised volatility of 2.57% despite focusing on some very high 
volatility areas, while the worst monthly drawdown (peak to trough decline during a recorded period) has been -1.38%. 
 

On a stock level, the biggest single stock long �winners� for the fund this year were all stocks that have been in the fund�s long book 
since inception reflecting the ongoing long-term duration of the investment approach: Mastercard, Microsoft, Adobe and Visa4. On the 
short side, strong absolute and alpha winners were in the area of educational publishing and US telco equipment.  The team continues 
to focus on identifying strategic investment opportunities that are mispriced fundamentally researched, and with good risk reward. 
 

Outlook 
 

Equity markets were more jovial in 2019 than 2018 especially as central banks pumped liquidity back into the market towards the end of 
the year (especially the US Fed that reversed over half of the drop in its total balance sheet assets seen since the start of 2017). We also 
saw other positive catalysts in the form of: the announcement of a �phase-1� trade agreement between the US and China (yet to be 
signed), the Tories winning the UK general election with a solid majority, the US Fed remaining accommodating and improved economic 
data out of Europe and China.  
 

The 2019 rise in equity markets were not however purely driven by earnings upgrades but instead primarily by higher valuation multiples. 
Indeed, Goldman Sachs indicated that of the +29% S&P500 rally in 2019, 92% of it can be explained by valuation expansion alone while 
Morgan Stanley believes that the multiple expansion of 2019 (the biggest since 1988) will put pressure on companies to deliver on 
estimates this year - more of a �show me� moment. We continue to be valuation conscious and selective on the long side given markets 
may potentially be overly complacent of shocks as reflected in low levels of volatility (biggest YoY drop since 2009). Our long book is 
composed of both long duration secular growth names where we continue to expect upward revisions along with some deep value and 
turnaround names that are trading well under their intrinsic value and where we expect catalysts to turn around the stocks including 
industry repair. 
 

The team has attended a number of conferences and meetings this past quarter resulting in 103 corporate interactions. This has offered 
an opportunity to work on some new ideas heading into 2020. The team is also focused on the fourth quarter of 2019 earnings season 
and aiming to take advantage of situations where market expectations appear to be mispricing fundamental changes occurring at 
companies (e.g. new product introductions, new business model�). We will also look to use options when volatility is low to buy some 
tail protection to hedge the market exposure. The escalation of US-Iran tensions last week are a healthy reminder that left field shocks 
can occur from time to time and we will continue to ensure the portfolio remains as resilient as possible to these as was the case in 2018 
(GLG Innovation Equity Alternative +2.08%5, MSCI World Net Total Return index6 -8.71%, S&P500 -6.24% and STOXX Europe 600  
-13.24%). 
 

In closing, we would like to thank all of our investors and the various teams at Man GLG for the support they have provided for the last 
twelve months and look forward to their continued support in 2020 and beyond. 
 

Past Performance is not indicative of future performance. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. Returns are calculated net of 1.0% management fees and 20.0% performance fees. Other share classes may 
charge higher fees. 
2The HFRX is selected by the Investment Manager for performance illustration and comparison purposes only. It is not a formal 
benchmark and does not form part of the Fund�s investment objectives or investment policy. 
3These indices are not benchmarks and are not representative of the Fund’s investment strategy. The information is shown for 
comparison purposes only. 
4The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
5Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. Returns are calculated net of 1.0% management fees and 20.0% performance fees. Other share classes may 
charge higher fees. 
6These indices are not benchmarks and are not representative of the Fund’s investment strategy. The information is shown for 
comparison purposes only. 
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Man GLG High Yield Opportunities --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Market overview 
 
After a difficult end to 2018 for markets, the beginning of 2019 saw risk assets rebound as investor sentiment improved. The positive 
momentum seen in the first quarter was driven by a combination of factors, including constructive US-China trade talks, though central 
banks were the key architects of the market rally. After a period of increasing rate expectations, the US Federal Reserve performed a 
dovish U-turn and surprised markets in March by stating that there would not be any further rate hikes in 2019. Similarly, the European 
Central Bank (ECB) were also dovish in their message and stated that rates will remain unchanged �at least through the end of 2019�. 
Despite the market rally, macroeconomic data during the first quarter was a mixed bag with a notable slowdown in global manufacturing 
and export activity, though labour markets showed some resilience. 
 
Risk assets continued their ascent during the spring months, despite a wobble in May due to trade-war tensions. Following the US 
announcement of an increase in tariffs on Chinese imports, China in-turn responded with tariffs of their own. Central banks once again 
lifted sentiment in June with dovish rhetoric, which led market participants to price in rate cuts and potential monetary stimulus. 
Macroeconomic data continued to show a slowdown in global growth and signs of weakness began to creep into labour market reports. 
 
The summer months were eventful with a number of themes in focus including ongoing dovishness from central banks and geopolitical 
uncertainty. The Fed eventually cut rates for the first time since 2007 and then proceeded with another rate cut in September. Similarly, 
outgoing ECB President Draghi announced rate cuts and a new quantitative easing program. On the geopolitical front, trade war 
tensions were in the spotlight as President Trump announced new tariffs on Chinese imports while China countered by increasing tariffs 
on US imports. Macroeconomic data continued to point to a weaker economic outlook with a notable slowdown in global manufacturing 
data and business climate surveys. 
 
The final stretch of the year saw risk assets continue their move higher as investor sentiment was lifted by a number of factors including 
the phase one trade deal agreement between the US and China, stabilisation of global macroeconomic data and the Fed�s move to cut 
rates. In the UK, the Conservative party�s landslide election victory was well received by markets given the increase in clarity regarding 
Brexit. 
 
Against this backdrop, global high yield credit benefitted from the rally in risk assets and posted positive returns for the year. 
 
Performance summary 
 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities launched on 16th January 2019 and delivered a positive return for the year. Since the Fund�s launch, 
positioning has remained predominantly focused on Europe and the UK as well as on cash-generative non-cyclicals. Positions in 
idiosyncratic, situational type investments that are the main focus of the Fund drove performance. 
 
The key positive contributors included one of our special situations / distressed investments in a Spanish construction firm that 
performed well following an announcement after Christmas that an A-rated, much larger Chinese competitor is acquiring a 75% stake in 
the business. As a result, the bond price nearly doubled to the mid-90s. We initiated a position at an average price of c. 50, and led the 
formation of a bondholder group with the intention to initiate financial restructuring discussions with the company and the company�s 
bank lenders. In addition, a position in a German real estate company (where we were an anchor investor in the bond issue earlier in the 
year and in a tap issue in the Autumn) also performed well after the company announced that an IG-rated competitor is acquiring a 22% 
stake in the business, with an option to purchase an additional 51%. Furthermore, long positions in a Euro area sovereign and a Brazilian 
energy firm undergoing an operational restructuring also performed well1. 
 
The main negative contributor was a position in an Italian engineering services company where we are currently engaged in active 
discussions with all stakeholders regarding restructuring the balance sheet and repositioning the business. Furthermore, a short position 
in an auto OEM also detracted after the firm posted better than expected results and announced an equity injection from its ultimate 
owner. 
 
Outlook  
 
It is shaping up to be an eventful year for investors with January alone presenting two unforeseen events � an escalation in US-Iran 
tensions and fears about the impact of the Coronavirus outbreak. This, combined with the upcoming US elections, trade-war uncertainty 
and the low growth environment, presents an assortment of risks for investors to consider. 
 
The policy U-turn by the major central banks has extended the credit cycle and our base case assumption is that they will remain 
accommodative for the foreseeable future.  As a result, yields have collapsed for higher quality fixed income and this provides support to 
our bearish view on investment grade credit, as we believe it is exceptionally rich at current levels.  
 
Given the stabilising, low growth and low inflation backdrop, along with our primary investment focus, we are bullish on high yield bonds 
as they are more suited to this environment, since it provides issuers an opportunity to generate free cash flow. We believe this to be a 
sweet spot for high yield credit, as there is typically sufficient nominal growth for issuers to generate cash to pay coupons and ultimately 
repay debt. 

                                                            
1The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
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Man GLG High Yield Opportunities --- Annual Report Commentary (continued) 
 
Outlook (continued) 
 
We see value in credit specific and special situation type investments in the mid to lower echelons of the market. We do not envisage a 
secular default rate cycle given negative real rates globally and believe that defaults could peak in low to mid-single digit range across 
European and US markets for the year.  
 
On a regional basis, at present we are bullish on the risk-return profile of cash-generative, non-cyclical, high yield issuers in the UK and 
Europe, while our view is that the US credit market appears to be overvalued. 
 
Dispersion is likely to remain present in markets and underperforming, overleveraged companies could find conditions challenging and 
struggle to service their debt. This environment lends itself well to fundamentally driven, bottom-up credit selection while we also value 
the importance of assessing secular drivers that could affect the business models of issuers.  
 
The demanding outlook for 2020 presents an opportune time for our strategy given the heavy focus on fundamental, bottom-up credit 
selection. 
 
Past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
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Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Market overview 
 
After a difficult end to 2018 for markets, the beginning of 2019 saw risk assets rebound as investor sentiment improved. The positive 
momentum seen in the first quarter was driven by a combination of factors, including constructive US-China trade talks, though central 
banks were the key architects of the market rally. After a period of increasing rate expectations, the US Federal Reserve performed a 
dovish U-turn and surprised markets in March by stating that there would not be any further rate hikes in 2019. Similarly, the European 
Central Bank (ECB) were also dovish in their message and stated that rates will remain unchanged �at least through the end of 2019�. 
Despite the market rally, macroeconomic data during the first quarter was a mixed bag with a notable slowdown in global manufacturing 
and export activity, though labour markets showed some resilience. 
 
Risk assets continued their ascent during the spring months, despite a wobble in May due to trade-war tensions. Following the US 
announcement of an increase in tariffs on Chinese imports, China in-turn responded with tariffs of their own. Central banks once again 
lifted sentiment in June with dovish rhetoric, which led market participants to price in rate cuts and potential monetary stimulus. 
Macroeconomic data continued to show a slowdown in global growth and signs of weakness began to creep into labour market reports. 
 
The summer months were eventful with a number of themes in focus including ongoing dovishness from central banks and geopolitical 
uncertainty. The Fed eventually cut rates for the first time since 2007 and then proceeded with another rate cut in September. Similarly, 
outgoing ECB President Draghi announced rate cuts and a new quantitative easing program. On the geopolitical front, trade war 
tensions were in the spotlight as President Trump announced new tariffs on Chinese imports while China responded by increasing tariffs 
on US imports. Macroeconomic data continued to point to a weaker economic outlook with a notable slowdown in global manufacturing 
data and business climate surveys. 
 
The final stretch of the year saw risk assets continue their move higher as investor sentiment was lifted by a number of factors including a 
phase one trade deal agreement between the US and China, stabilisation of global macroeconomic data and the Fed�s move to cut 
rates. In the UK, the Conservative party�s landslide election victory was well received by markets given the increase in clarity regarding 
Brexit. 
 
Performance summary 
 
Convertible Arbitrage: Convertible arbitrage performed well as all regions generated positive returns. CB US saw string performance as 
US convertibles advanced given the underlying strength seen in US equity markets. 
 
Credit L/S: The Credit L/S strategy was the best overall performer for the Fund, with Asia and EM the top underlying books, followed by 
credit Europe. The Asia book benefitted from strong security selection, particularly in China while event driven opportunities in India and 
Indonesia also proved to be favourable. The EM book saw tactical bank capital positions prove to be profitable, while attractive carry 
opportunities and avoiding certain commodity names was beneficial. 
 
Past performance is no indicator of future performance. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
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Man GLG Event Driven Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Market review 
 
Globally, 2019 has seen pending or completed deals totalling USD 3.9 trillion, the fourth-highest level on record. Megadeals were a key 
factor during 2019, with a 28% increase in M&A activity greater than USD 10 billion when compared to the previous year. Despite this 
geopolitical uncertainty loomed over the M&A market for much of 2019, cross-border activity fell to its lowest level since 2013, with 
declining deal making across European and Asian markets. Activity did however, remain strong as companies continued to use M&A to 
strengthen their core businesses. 
 
US Deals dominated 2019, with nearly half of all global M&A deals reported in 2019 involving a US target, a 6 per cent rise from 2018, 
US companies accounted for 15 out of the years� 20 largest deals. The top five sectors in the US by volume were Technology, 
Healthcare, Oil & Gas, Chemicals and Finance. Many companies focused on core assets through divestitures and spinoffs in 2019. Multi-
industry firms started to face pressure from both activist and traditional shareholders especially where there were limited synergies 
between businesses. Companies were urged to put themselves up for sale or divest assets in order to maximize shareholder value. 
 
Fund summary (positioning and performance) 
 
Launching in July 2019, the fund has had a strong start generating 3.4%1 net of fees, with stable and consistent positive returns in all six 
months. The high levels of deal activity towards the end of 2019 has allowed the team to establish a diversified portfolio. The portfolio 
has been positioned conservatively, with moderate levels of sizing and leverage, the portfolio now has the potential to capitalise on new 
opportunities and the widening of spreads. 
 
Outlook 
 
M&A activity is expected to remain strong in 2020, driven by companies looking to strengthen their businesses. The economic factors 
that have powered the multi-year run of deal-making remains intact as cheap debt, modest economic growth and fears of disruption by 
tech giants has led chief executives and boards to turn to M&A. Size and scale continue to be the most convenient ways for companies 
to retain dominance as well as keeping tech companies at bay. 
 
Private equity will be another key factor in 2020. Private equity firms have amassed almost USD 1.5 trillion in unspent capital, the highest 
year-end total on record. Private equity firms are able to provide alternatives to companies that are unable to maximize shareholder 
value.  If valuation multiples decline and listed companies are unable to deliver capital appreciation to their shareholders, this may 
increase the amount of M&A transactions in 2020. Pressure on private equity firms to use their dry powder is likely to grow, M&A activity 
could, therefore, be on a scale not seen since the financial crisis. 
 
Shareholder activism is likely to remain key to global M&A markets. M&A-driven activism is expected to continue its development outside 
the US, along with a stronger stance on Environmental, social, and governance (ESG) issues. 
 
Past performance is no indicator of future performance. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
 

                                                            
1Performance data is shown net of fees with income reinvested, and does not take into account sales and redemption charges where 
such costs are applicable. Returns are calculated net of 1.0% management fees and 20.0% performance fees. Other share classes may 
charge higher fees. 
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Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
The Fund launched in late November and was ramped up over the course of November and December. Other than the specific vehicle 
restrictions, the Fund is managed parallel to the Dublin domiciled UCITs and UK OEIC funds which launched in January and June of 
2019 respectively. At present, the Fund is invested predominantly in Europe and in the UK, with a focus on non-cyclical, cash-generative 
companies. 
 
 
GLG Partners LP, 
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London EC4R 3AD, 
England 
 
February 2020* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source: GLG Partners LP 
The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
 
For all the sub-funds past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency 
fluctuations. Performance is net of all fees and is disclosed for the reporting share class. The value of an investment and any income 
derived from it can go down as well as up and investors may not get back their original amount invested. Alternative investments can 
involve significant additional risks. 
 
The limits and/or targets illustrate the Investment Manager�s current intentions, and are subject to change without notice. 
 
 
*The above Investment Manager�s reports are commentaries for the year 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. They do not include or 
take account of any movements, returns or market information for subsequent periods. 
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Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Summary 
 
The AHL Multi Strategy Programme (�AMS�) had a successful year in 2019. More generally, the year was a very positive one for stocks, 
albeit with rocky patches, with pronounced dollar strength for most of the year. Bonds rallied strongly until around September when a 
reversal began which was sustained through year-end. 
 
Performance review by style 
 
During 2019, four of five styles of trading within the fund were profitable with only equity trading ending the year with a small loss. 
Diversification between styles was much in evidence as fundamental, momentum and technical trading styles all contributed significantly 
and volatility trading also additive. 
 
Equity trading was the only unprofitable style although internally it was only actually trading in Japan which caused problems and offset 
the positive performance from US trading. In terms of model types, value models were responsible for most of the losses whereas 
momentum style models were more successful. 
 
Volatility trading was affected by mid-year turbulence which wiped out profits from the first half of the year. The subsequent recovery was 
steady through the second half of the year though, to end up in profit. In terms of market sectors, currency options trading contributed 
the lion�s share with equity index options trading also additive and volatility futures trading the only real detractor. 
 
Technical trading performance was driven in almost equal measure by machine learning models, fixed income relative value curve trading 
and short-term technical currency trading. The short-term currency trading and machine learning models both did particularly well in the 
mid-year turbulence which effectively compensated for the aforementioned losses from volatility trading over the same period --- a good 
example of model diversification in action. 
 
Momentum trading had a solid year, driven by trends in the first half of year in the case of the more traditional trend models and 
performance in the second half from more machine learning driven momentum trading. In terms of market sectors, fixed income trading 
dominated returns. 
 
Fundamental trading finished the top style for 2019 with positive performance across currency carry models, currency economic 
fundamentals models, stock index relative value trading and, especially, fixed income carry trading1. 
 
Outlook 
 
The fund showed some pleasing diversification in 2019 with trading styles combining well to deliver performance. Whilst we cannot 
predict the market environment for the future with any certainty, we continue to rely on the fundamental principles of market and model 
diversification to minimise our reliance on any particular market regime. 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                            
1The financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be construed as a 
recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
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Man AHL TargetRisk --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Following 2018, a year marked by solid growth and poor asset performance, 2019 has delivered the exact opposite. Global growth 
forecasts and fundamentals have weakened substantially, yet a simple 60/40 portfolio had the best risk-adjusted return in two decades, 
highlighting the difficulty in accurately forecasting returns.  
 
Indeed in 2019, a bull year, TargetRisk returned positive returns net of fees and outperformed both the 60/40 portfolio and Morningstar�s 
USD Moderate Allocation index1. 
 
TargetRisk celebrated its five-year anniversary in 2019 with an annualized net return since inception of 10.9%2 and a Sharpe ratio3 of 
1.16. This performance was achieved throughout different market environments. 2016, 2017 and 2019 will certainly be remembered as 
bull years, in our view, while 2015 and 2018 were years marked by violent reversals across most asset classes and spikes in equity/bond 
correlation. TargetRisk�s performance across this succession of bull and bear years demonstrates resilience and an ability to adapt to 
different market conditions  
 
2019 was a year characterized by slowing economic fundamentals as well as trade wars between the US and China. Remarkably, 
however, returns across markets were solid, driven largely by the US Federal Reserve�s (�Fed�) sudden dovish pivot from tightening 
monetary policy to lowering rates and expanding its balance sheet. The European Central Bank (�ECB�) as well as other central banks 
around the world followed suit and extended their dovish monetary policies pushing rates globally to record lows. 
 
2019 was a year characterized by slowing economic fundamentals as well as trade wars between the US and China. Remarkably, 
however, returns across markets were solid, driven largely by the US Federal Reserve�s (�Fed�) sudden dovish pivot from tightening 
monetary policy to lowering rates and expanding its balance sheet. The European Central Bank (�ECB�) as well as other central banks 
around the world followed suit and extended their dovish monetary policies pushing rates globally to record lows. 
 
This monetary policy shift at a late stage of the cycle was unexpected, yet helped comfort equity investors which benefitted from the so-
called ��Powell put�� and pushed equity indices towards new highs. In fact global equity indices had one of their best years following the 
recovery from the 2008 Credit Crisis.  We believe that investors see this dichotomy between high asset prices (bond yields at or near all-
time lows and equity indices at all-time highs) and geopolitical uncertainties coupled with a weakening growth outlook as raising 
questions on the sustainability of the market rally at this late stage of the cycle. 
 
TargetRisk was able to reap the benefits of rallying markets, most asset classes performed strongly in 2019 and TargetRisk benefited 
from this, with positive attributions from bonds, equities, credit and inflation. 
 
The strategy ran most of the time at full allocation to the asset classes it trades. The intraday correlation monitor remained inactive during 
the year, while the momentum and volatility overlays were only occasionally active in commodities, bonds and inflation-linked bonds 
during short bouts of weakness. 
 
Past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency fluctuations. 
 

                                                            
1The index used is selected by the Investment Manager for performance illustration and comparison purposes only. It is not a formal 
benchmark and does not form part of the Fund�s investment objectives or investment policy. 
2The data is based on a representative investment product or products that fully invest in the strategy. AHL TargetRisk Programme is net 
of estimated fees and service cost of 0.95% in USD. 
3Sharpe ratio is a measure of risk-adjusted performance that indicates the level of excess return per unit of risk. It is calculated using the 
risk-free rate (3 month interbank rate) in the appropriate currency over the period analysed. Where an investment has underperformed 
the risk-free rate, the Sharpe ratio will be negative. As the Sharpe ratio is an absolute measure of risk-adjusted return, negative Sharpe 
ratios can be misleading and are therefore shown as n/a. 
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Man AHL Active Balanced --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Following 2018, a year marked by solid growth and poor asset performance, 2019 has delivered the exact opposite. Global growth 
forecasts and fundamentals have weakened substantially, yet a simple 60/40 portfolio had the best risk-adjusted return in two decades, 
highlighting the difficulty in accurately forecasting returns.  
 
Indeed in 2019, a bull year, Active Balanced returned positive returns net of fees and outperformed both the 60/40 portfolio and 
Morningstar�s USD Moderate Allocation index1.  
 
2019 was a year characterized by slowing economic fundamentals as well as trade wars between the US and China. Remarkably, 
however, returns across markets were solid, driven largely by the US Federal Reserve�s (�Fed�) sudden dovish pivot from tightening 
monetary policy to lowering rates and expanding its balance sheet. The European Central Bank (�ECB�) as well as other central banks 
around the world followed suit and extended their dovish monetary policies pushing rates globally to record lows. 
 
This monetary policy shift at a late stage of the cycle was unexpected, yet helped comfort equity investors which benefitted from the so-
called ��Powell put�� and pushed equity indices towards new highs. In fact global equity indices had one of their best years following the 
recovery from the 2008 Credit Crisis. We believe that investors see this dichotomy between high asset prices (bond yields at or near all-
time lows and equity indices at all-time highs) and geopolitical uncertainties coupled with a weakening growth outlook as raising 
questions on the sustainability of the market rally at this late stage of the cycle. 
 
Active Balanced was able to reap the benefits of rallying markets, most asset classes performed strongly in 2019 and Active Balanced 
benefited from this, with positive attributions from both bonds and equities. 
 
The strategy ran most of the time at full allocation to the asset classes it trades. The intraday correlation monitor remained inactive during 
the year, while the momentum and volatility overlays were only occasionally active in bonds during short bouts of weakness. 
 
 
AHL Partners LLP, 
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London EC4R 3AD, 
England 
 
February 2020* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source: AHL Partners LLP 
The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
 
For all the sub-funds past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency 
fluctuations. Performance is net of all fees and is disclosed for the reporting share class. The value of an investment and any income 
derived from it can go down as well as up and investors may not get back their original amount invested. Alternative investments can 
involve significant additional risks. 
 
The limits and/or targets illustrate the Investment Manager�s current intentions, and are subject to change without notice. 
 
 
*The above Investment Manager�s reports are commentaries for the reporting year 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. They do not 
include or take account of any movements, returns or market information for subsequent periods. 

                                                            
1The index is selected by the Investment Manager for performance illustration and comparison purposes only. It is not a formal 
benchmark and does not form part of the Fund�s investment objectives or investment policy. 
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Man Alternative Style Risk Premia --- Annual Report Commentary 
 
Market Summary 
 
In contrast to a negative outlook due to increased political risk and escalating US-China trade conflict, global assets delivered a strong 
performance during 2019, with gains most pronounced for US equities, both corporate and long-dated government bonds, as well as 
gold. Whilst both the risk of a disorderly Brexit and the inverted US 2s-10s yield curve faded away during Q3, probably the biggest factor 
contributing to the positive market development was the unexpected decision of the US Federal Reserve (Fed) to cut rates and continue 
its expansionary policy. Meanwhile, global growth has been record-low, the Global Manufacturing Purchasing Managers� Index (PMIs) 
stayed below 50 since May and hit its history low in October and the OECD Global Leading Indicator was also at new cycle lows since 
2008. As a result, a number of sectors have entered into recessionary territory putting a strain on their market performance. 
 
For central banks, 2019 has seen a year of monetary policy reversals. Following the interest rates hikes in 2018, the Fed delivered its first 
three rate cuts in 11 years during Q3 and Q4, and promised not to shrink its balance sheet from September onwards amid slowing 
growth concerns. Over in Europe, the European Central Bank (ECB) delivered further interest rate cut in September and announced it will 
re-start QE in November. Politically, the persisting uncertainty around the timing and economic impact of Brexit and the US� reappraisal 
of global trading relationships have been the main themes of the year. 
 
Man Alternative Risk Premia 
 
The Fund recorded a profit for the full year, and in the simplest possible terms, the first three quarters of performance were good both 
relative to mandate and relative to peers, but the last quarter was weak.  
 
For the first three quarters of 2019 performance was steady and consistently positive. By the end of September, the worst month had 
been March with a flat return posted, and cumulative performance had reached a healthy gain. In the two months when the MSCI World 
Index1 was down, the Fund�s performance was positive. During this period, the performance of the macro strategies was notably more 
consistent than the equity strategies in general, but the strongest return drivers were the Fixed Income strategy and Low Beta strategy.  
 
In Q4 we suffered a material reversal of fortune, with losses in October and November, and further losses in the first week of December. 
In October, all but the Volatility strategy detracted, while in November the macro strategies recovered but were outweighed by continued 
negative performance across the board in equities. In December we saw a modest recovery. On the whole for 2019, our macro 
strategies did well, as did the Low Beta strategy, while the equity market neutral strategies did poorly. 
 
Work on the Fund�s strategies has been continuous with model enhancements and upgrades to risk processes implemented over all 
four quarters of the year. We made an enhancement to the Volatility strategy which causes it to exit the short volatility position when the 
VIX forward curve becomes inverted i.e. when there is no carry opportunity to target. We no longer scale the position sizes in the VIX to 
recent delivered volatility of the contract since this created turnover without adding value. We have substantially added to and amended 
the FX Premia strategy. The bulk of the signal weights are to new models, which focus on the use of Credit Default Swaps, equities and 
economic surprises as drivers of FX prices. A small weight to the slow value signal is retained, and a rather better engineered FX carry in 
developed markets is also included again (it was removed altogether in May 2017). On the Fixed Income strategy work has been carried 
out on the cross-sectional carry models seeking to introduce continuous scaling proportionate to pairwise yield spreads, and a feature to 
attenuate exposure to uncorrelated pairs. And within the Equity Value strategy, firstly the universe of stocks traded was expanded by 
about 100 names of comparable liquidity. Secondly, a global REITS model was incorporated with two new models also being introduced 
into the global part of the Trend Following model score. Thirdly, ESG based alphas were introduced as part of the Quality model within 
Equity Value, and fourth Machine Learning based alpha was incorporated for US names. And finally, the seasonality strategy was 
introduced to trade calendar effects. Annually recurring patterns are determined on a rolling basis using multiple window lengths (1 year 
and 10 year) with no static calendar rules (long stocks in January, or ��sell in May and go away��). The strategy trades across the four 
major asset classes (Equities, Fixed Income, FX and Commodities) with individual markets chosen on the basis of liquidity and capacity. 
 
 
Man Solutions Limited, 
Riverbank House, 
2 Swan Lane, 
London EC4R 3AD, 
England 
 
February 2020* 
 
Source: Man Solutions Limited 
The organisations and/or financial instruments mentioned are for reference purposes only. The content of this material should not be 
construed as a recommendation for their purchase or sale. 
 
For all the sub-funds past performance is not indicative of future results. Returns may increase or decrease as a result of currency 
fluctuations. Performance is net of all fees and is disclosed for the reporting share class. The value of an investment and any income 
derived from it can go down as well as up and investors may not get back their original amount invested. Alternative investments can 
involve significant additional risks. 
 
The limits and/or targets illustrate the Investment Manager�s current intentions, and are subject to change without notice. 
 
 
*The above Investment Manager�s Reports are commentaries for the year from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. They do not 
include or take account of any movements, returns or market information for subsequent periods. 

                                                            
1The index is selected by the Investment Manager for performance illustration and comparison purposes only. It is not a formal 
benchmark and does not form part of the Fund�s investment objectives or investment policy. 
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Indices definitions 
 
 
CBOE Volatility Index (VIX 
index) 

Index measuring the market�s expectation of future volatility. The VIX Index is based on options of the 
S&P 500fi Index, considered the leading indicator of the broad U.S. stock market. The VIX Index is 
recognized as the world�s premier gauge of U.S. equity market volatility. For more information go to 
http://www.cboe.com/vix  
 

Consumer Price Index (CPI) The Consumer Price Index (CPI) is a measure of the average change over time in the prices paid by 
urban consumers for a market basket of consumer goods and services in the U.S. 
 

Euro Stoxx 600 The STOXX Europe 600 Index is derived from the STOXX Europe Total Market Index (TMI) and is a 
subset of the STOXX Global 1800 Index. With a fixed number of 600 components, the STOXX Europe 
600 Index represents large, mid and small capitalization companies across 17 countries of the 
European region: Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, the 
Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. For more 
information go to www.stoxx.com  
 

FTSE 100 Index The FTSE 100 is a market-capitalisation weighted index of UK-listed blue chip companies. The index is 
part of the FTSE UK Index Series and is designed to measure the performance of the 100 largest 
companies traded on the London Stock Exchange that pass screening for size and liquidity. For more 
information go to https://www.ftserussell.com/index-series/index-spotlights/uk-equity-indexes. 
 

ICE BofA Merrill Lynch 91-
Day Treasury Bill Index.  

Index consisting of U.S. Treasury Bills maturing in 90 days. 

 
MSCI All Country World 
Index (MSCI ACWI) 

The MSCI ACWI Index, MSCI�s flagship global equity index, is designed to represent performance of the 
full opportunity set of large- and mid-cap stocks across 23 developed and 24 emerging markets.1 As of 
September 2018, it covers more than 2,700 constituents across 11 sectors and approximately 85% of 
the free float-adjusted market capitalization in each market. For more information go to www.msci.com  
 

MSCI Emerging Markets 
Index 

The MSCI Emerging Markets Index captures large and mid-cap representation across 24 Emerging 
Markets (EM) countries*. With 1,136 constituents, the index covers approximately 85% of the free float-
adjusted market capitalization in each country. For more information go to www.msci.com 
 

MSCI World Index The MSCI World Index captures large and mid-cap representation across 23 Developed Markets (DM) 
countries*. With 1,634 constituents, the index covers approximately 85% of the free float-adjusted 
market capitalization in each country. For more information go to www.msci.com 
 

Nasdaq-100 Index The Nasdaq-100 Index includes 100 of the largest domestic and international non-financial companies 
listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market based on market capitalization. The Index reflects companies 
across major industry groups including computer hardware and software, telecommunications, 
retail/wholesale trade and biotechnology. It does not contain securities of financial companies including 
investment companies. For more information go to www.nasdaq.com  
 

S&P 500 Index is a widely recognized gauge of the U.S. equities market. This index is an unmanaged 
capitalization-weighted index consisting of 500 of the largest capitalization U.S. common stocks. The 
returns of the S&P 500 include the reinvestment of dividends. For more information go to 
https://eu.spindices.com/ 
 

STOXX Europe Mid 200 
Index  

The STOXX Europe Mid 200 Index is a fixed component number index designed to provide a 
representation of mid capitalization companies in Europe. The index is derived from the STOXX Europe 
600 Index and covers Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, 
Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United 
Kingdom. For more information go to www.stoxx.com 
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GLOSSARY 
 
 
Absolute return  Refers to investment strategies which target a return that is above zero, and in some cases, above a 

positive hurdle rate such as Libor. The hurdle rate is an investment performance numerical value, which 
is used as a target to be beaten by a portfolio manager. Absolute return can also refer to the total return 
(that is total gain or loss) of a portfolio or fund, as opposed to its relative return (that is relative gain or 
loss) against a benchmark. It is called relative because many funds� performance is benchmarked 
against an index.  
 

Active management  Active management is the use of a human element, such as a single manager, co-managers or a team 
of managers, to actively manage a fund’s portfolio. Active managers rely on analytical research, 
forecasts, and their own judgment and experience in making investment decisions on what securities to 
buy, hold and sell. The opposite of active management is passive management, better known as 
��indexing.�� 
 

Ancillary assets 
 

Assets which are not the main assets of a company. 
 

Appreciation An increase in the market value of an asset, such as a stock, bond, commodity or piece of real estate, 
or in the value of one currency with respect to another. The opposite of depreciation. 
 

Asset Any item of economic value owned by an individual or corporation, especially that which could be 
converted to cash. Examples are cash, securities, accounts receivable, inventory, office equipment, real 
estate, a car, and other property. On a balance sheet, assets are equal to the sum of liabilities, common 
stock, preferred stock, and retained earnings.  
 

Asset class An asset class is a group of securities that exhibits similar characteristics, behaves similarly in the 
marketplace and is subject to the same laws and regulations. The three main asset classes are equities, 
or stocks; fixed income, or bonds; and cash equivalents, or money market instruments. Some 
investment professionals add real estate, commodities, and increasingly, cryptocurrencies such as 
Bitcoin, to the asset class mix. 
 

Balance of payments Statement of a country’s net financial transactions with other countries over a defined period of time.  
 

Balance sheet Financial statement that provides a snapshot of what a company owns and owes, as well as the 
amount invested by shareholders. 
 

Bankers� acceptance  A bankers’ acceptance (BA) is A short-term credit investment created by a non-financial firm and 
guaranteed by a bank to make payment. Acceptances are traded   at discounts from face value in the 
secondary market. 

Benchmark A standard against which the performance of a fund can be measured and compared (eg. a stock 
market index such as the FTSE 100 or an interest rate, such as LIBOR). 

 
Blue Chip company  

 
The stock of a major company with a record of strong earnings, reliable dividend payments and steady 
share price performance. Blue chips are normally the largest capitalised stocks in a particular market 
and among the most widely traded. 

 
Buyback A buyback, also known as a share repurchase, is when a company buys its own outstanding shares to 

reduce the number of shares available on the open market. Companies buy back shares for a number 
of reasons, such as to increase the value of remaining shares available by reducing the supply or to 
prevent other shareholders from taking a controlling stake. 
 

Cash Equivalents  Cash equivalents are investments securities that are for short-term investing, and they have high credit 
quality and are highly liquid. These securities have a low-risk, low-return profile and include Treasury 
bills, certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, commercial papers and other money market 
instruments. 
 

Certificates of deposit (CDs) Interest-bearing certificate issued by a bank to a depositor. Interest is paid at maturity. 
 

Collective investment 
scheme 

A type of investment scheme that involves collecting money from different investors and then combining 
all the money collected to fund the investment. 
 

Compound interest Earning interest on interest, or, more precisely, the interest earned on the sum of the principal amount 
and the interest already accumulated. A return on an investment is compounded if it takes into account 
compound interest, i.e. the interest is reinvested. 
 

Commercial paper A type of borrowing by companies and institutions in the form of loans where lenders do not have the 
right to take the assets of the borrower if they fail to repay. These loans are given for a period of a year 
or less 
 

Commodity A good produced in bulk. Many commodities, such as coffee, meat and grain, and raw materials such 
as metals and oil, are traded on local, regional and/or international markets called commodity 
exchanges, either on a spot basis or through futures contracts, which allow the purchase or sale of a 
commodity at a predetermined price on a particular date in the future. 
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GLOSSARY (continued) 
 
 
Common stock See Ordinary shares 

 
Contract for differences 
(CFDs) 

A contract for differences (CFD) is an arrangement made in a futures contract whereby differences in 
settlement are made through cash payments, rather than by the delivery of physical goods or securities. 
This is generally an easier method of settlement, because both losses and gains are paid in cash. CFDs 
provide investors with the all the benefits and risks of owning a security without actually owning it. 
 

Consumer staples Consumer staples are essential products, such as food, beverages, tobacco and household items. 
Consumer staples are goods that people are unable or unwilling to cut out of their budgets regardless 
of their financial situation (Investopedia). 
 

Convertible bond A bond issued by a company that has a set maturity date and pays interest in the form of a coupon. It 
has features of both a bond and stock and its valuation reflects both types of investments. It gives the 
holder the option to convert the bond into a specific number of shares of the issuing company --- in 
other words, it has an ’embedded option’. 
 

Country risk  Country risk is a term for the risks involved when someone invests in a particular country. Country risk 
varies from one country to the next, and can include political risk, exchange-rate risk, economic risk, 
and transfer risk. In particular, country risk denotes the risk that a foreign government will default on its 
bonds or other financial commitments. In a broader sense, country risk is the degree to which political 
and economic unrest affect the securities of issuers doing business in a particular country. 
 

Credit rating  Ratings issued by credit ratings agencies which represent the agency�s evaluation of qualitative and 
quantitative information for a company or government. Ratings are used to rank companies and 
governments on the probability of them defaulting on their obligations (i.e. to repay their debts).   
 

Credit risk  Usually used when referring to investment in bonds, credit risk is the risk of a loss deriving from the 
inability of the issuer of a bond to make the interest payments and repay the capital at the end of the life 
of the bond in full and as scheduled. Triple A’ or ’investment grade rated’ are assessed as being the 
lowest credit risk while non-investment grade bonds - also known as high-yield debt (or ’junk bonds’) - 
are assessed as the highest credit risk.The higher the credit risk, the higher the interest rate the 
borrower will have to attract lenders 
 

Currency forward  A binding contract in the foreign exchange market that locks in the exchange rate for the purchase or 
sale of a currency on a future date. A currency forward is essentially a hedging tool that does not 
involve any upfront payment. 
 

Current account (Balance of 
payment current account) 

Movements of money into and out of a country, relating to trade between private individuals, for 
example workers sending money to their families in another country. The current account includes the 
visible balance of trade (the net difference between exports and imports of merchandise goods) and the 
invisible trade balance (payments and receipts for services such as shipping, banking and tourism). 
 

Debt security  Debt security refers to a debt instrument, such as a government bond, corporate bond, certificate of 
deposit (CD), municipal bond or preferred stock, that can be bought or sold between two parties and 
has basic terms defined, such as notional amount (amount borrowed), interest rate, and maturity and 
renewal date. 
 

Deflation Deflation is the general decline in prices for goods and services occurring when the inflation rate falls 
below 0%.  Deflation happens naturally when the money supply of an economy is fixed.  In times of 
deflation, the purchasing power of currency and wages are higher than they otherwise would have 
been.  
 

Derivatives  Financial contracts such as futures, options and various securities that offer ’synthetic’ access to an 
underlying asset such as a commodity, stock market or fixed income security. The price movements of 
a derivative generally follow the price movements of the underlying asset but derivatives generally 
require only small amounts of capital (margin) to gain exposure to the underlying asset. 
 

Developed markets  Countries that have sound, well-established economies with a high level of economic growth and 
security.  They are therefore thought to offer safer, more stable investment opportunities than 
developing markets 
 

Dividend yield  See Yield (3rd definition) 
 

Earnings per Share (EPS) Profit, net of tax and dividends to preferred shareholders, divided by the total amount of ordinary shares 
outstanding. Most income statements include a calculation of earnings per share. This calculation tells 
you how much money shareholders would receive for each share of stock they own if the company 
distributed all of its net income for the period. In reality, however, companies would not distribute all of 
their earnings. Usually they reinvest them in the business. 
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Emerging markets Emerging market is a term use to describe a developing country, in which investment would be 

expected to achieve higher returns but be accompanied by greater risk. Global index providers 
sometimes include in this category relatively wealthy countries whose economies are still considered 
underdeveloped from a regulatory point of view 
 

Equity  An ownership right representing an interest in a company. 
 

Equity-linked security  A type of debt instrument whereby the return is linked to the performance of a group of underlying 
stocks or equities that are also linked to the security. 
 

Equity Swaps An equity swap is an exchange of future cash flows between two parties that allows each party to 
diversify its income for a specified period of time while still holding its original assets.  
 

EPS  See Earnings per share  
 

Exchange Traded Funds 
(ETFs) 

Index-tracking funds that can be traded on exchanges just like a stock � so they combine the diversified 
holdings of a fund with the low cost and tradability of a share.  
 

Exposure Exposure (or market exposure) refers to the currency amount of funds, or percentage of a portfolio, 
invested in a particular type of security, market sector or industry, which is usually expressed as a 
percentage of total portfolio holdings. It represents the amount an investor can lose from the risks 
unique to a particular investment. 
 

External account See Current account 
 

Financial Derivative 
instruments 

See Derivatives 
 

 

Fixed income  
 

Term used to denote bonds and other debt instruments, because they normally pay a fixed interest rate 
 

Foreign exchange Foreign exchange is the exchange of one currency for another or the conversion of one currency into 
another currency. Foreign exchange also refers to the global market where currencies are traded 
virtually around the clock. 
 

Forward contract A forward contract is a customised contract between two counterparties to buy or sell a specific asset 
on a future date at an agreed price. As opposed to stocks and bonds, a forward contract is a derivative 
instrument, the value of which depends on an underlying asset. Unlike standard futures contracts, 
forward contracts are not traded on a centralised exchange and are highly customisable. 
 

Fund Sector Funds are into sectors to facilitate comparisons between funds with similar investment objectives and 
types of investment. 
 

Futures contract An agreement to buy or sell a stated amount of a security, currency or commodity at a specific future 
date and at a pre-agreed price. 
 

GDP See Gross Domestic Product 
 

GNP  See Gross National Product 
 

Government Bond  Bonds issued by a government. 
 

Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) 

The total value of an economy’s domestic output of goods and services, which is one of the key 
indicators of economic growth with GNP.  
 

Gross National Product 
(GNP) 

Same as GDP except that it adds what a country earns from overseas investments and subtracts what 
foreigners earn in a country and send back home. 
 

Index An index is a portfolio of stocks, chosen according to simple, pre-defined rules, and designed to 
capture a particular investment style.  
 

Inflation Rate at which the general level of prices for goods and services is rising and, consequently, the 
purchasing power of currency is falling.  
 

Interest rate  Interest rate is the amount charged, expressed as a percentage of principal, by a lender to a borrower 
for the use of assets. Interest rates are typically noted on an annual basis, known as the annual 
percentage rate (APR). The assets borrowed could include cash, consumer goods, and large assets 
such as a vehicle or building. 
 

Liquidity A relative term to describe the speed at which an asset or assets can be converted into cash 
(liquidated) and vice versa. 
 

Liquid asset A liquid asset is an asset that can be converted into cash speedily, with little impact to the price 
received in the open market. Liquid assets include money market instruments and government bonds. 
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Listed In relation to the shares of a company, or some funds, when those shares have been accepted for 

trading on an exchange they are referred to as ’listed’ investments. The exchange will have �listing 
requirements�, which all companies/funds must meet before they are ’accepted for listing’. The 
opposite of listed is over-the-counter. 
 

Local currency  The most commonly form of currency used in a country. This usually encompasses the national 
currency of the country. 
 

Long position A security that is bought in expectation that it will rise in value. 
 

Market capitalisation Market value of a company’s issued share capital --- in other words. the number of shares multiplied by 
the current price of those shares on the stock market. Companies are ranked as large-cap, mid-cap 
and small-cap depending on their market capitalisation (market cap), though the actual criteria for 
classification depend on the market concerned. 
 

Maturity date The maturity date is the date on which the principal amount of a debt instrument becomes due and is 
repaid to the investor and interest payments stop. 
 

Money market instruments  Instruments used by government and companies and others who wish to borrow money for short 
periods, usually less than a year.  They are also called short term debt instruments.  They include 
certificates of deposit, commercial paper and short term gilts. 
 

Municipal Bond A bond issued by a state or local government (or related entities) in the US to cover capital 
expenditures.  
 

Option A derivative instrument that gives the holder the right, without obligation, to buy (call) or sell (put) a 
security or asset at a fixed price within a specified period or at a particular future date. 
 

Ordinary shares  Securities (called common stock in the US) that confer ownership in a publicly listed company. Holders 
are entitled to the dividends declared by the company and have the right to vote on the appointment of 
directors and other important matters. However they rank below holders of preferred shares.  
 

Over the counter (OTC) Generally refers to a stock (but can also refers to other financial instruments) that is not listed on an 
exchange and traded via a dealer network .  
 

Overvalued When a share price or market is trading at levels above those justified by fundamentals. 
 

Overweight  Investment portfolio that holds an excess amount of a particular security when compared to the 
security’s weight in the underlying benchmark portfolio. Actively managed portfolios will make a security 
overweight when doing so allows the portfolio to achieve excess returns. Overweight can also refer to 
an investment analyst’s opinion that the security will outperform its industry, its sector or the entire 
market. 
 

Passive management Passive management is a style of management where a fund’s portfolio mirrors a market index. Passive 
management is the opposite of active management. Passive management is also referred to as 
"passive strategy," "passive investing" or ��index investing.�� 

 

Preference shares   
 

Also called preferred shares. Shares that entitle the holder to a fixed-rate dividend, paid before any 
dividend is distributed to holders of ordinary shares. 
 

Preferred stock See Preference shares 
 

Price-to-Book Ratio  
(P/B ratio) 

The P/B ratio reflects the value that market participants attach to a company’s equity relative to its book 
value (total assets minus total liabilities) of equity. A stock’s market value is a forward-looking metric that 
reflects a company’s future cash flows. The book value of equity is an accounting measure based on 
the historic cost principle, and reflects past issuances of equity, augmented by any profits or losses, 
and reduced by dividends and share buybacks. The higher the ratio, the higher the premium the market 
is willing to pay for the company above its hard assets. A low ratio may signal a good investment 
opportunity, but it could also mean something is fundamentally wrong with the company. The ratio is 
less meaningful for some types of companies, such as those in technology sectors. This is because 
such companies have hidden assets such as intellectual property which are of great value, but not 
reflected in the book value. 
 

Primary market The market for new securities issues. In the primary market the security is purchased directly from the 
issuer.  
 

Quantitative analysis Quantitative analysis (QA) is a technique that seeks to understand behaviour by using mathematical and 
statistical modelling, measurement, and research. Quantitative analysts aim to represent a given reality 
in terms of a numerical value. Quantitative analysis is employed for several reasons, including 
measurement, performance evaluation or valuation of a financial instrument, and predicting real-world 
events, such as changes in a country’s gross domestic product (GDP). 
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Quantitative easing (QE) Quantitative easing is an unconventional monetary policy in which a central bank purchases 

government securities or other securities from the market in order to lower interest rates and increase 
the money supply. Quantitative easing increases the money supply by flooding financial institutions with 
capital in an effort to promote increased lending and liquidity. When short-term interest rates are at or 
approaching zero, and when the printing of new banknotes isn’t an option, quantitative easing can be 
considered. 
 

Quantitative trading A form of investing in which computers are used to sort through financial data and identify predictable 
patterns. Quantitative traders take advantage of modern technology, mathematics and the availability of 
comprehensive databases for making rational trading decisions to identify trading opportunities. 
 

Reference index An index used as a benchmark for performance comparison purposes but which is not a formal 
benchmark as per fund�s prospectus.  
 

Return on capital The profit on an investment in relation to the amount invested which is not considered as a taxable 
event and not taxed as income.  
 

Risk-adjusted return  Risk-adjusted return defines an investment’s return by measuring how much risk is involved in 
producing that return, which is generally expressed as a number or rating. Risk-adjusted returns are 
applied to individual securities, investment funds and portfolios.  
 

Secondary market A market in which an investor purchases a security from another investor rather than the issuer, 
subsequent to the original issuance in the primary market. 
 

Sector  A sector is an area of the economy in which businesses share the same or a related product or service. 
It can also be thought of as an industry or market that shares common operating characteristics. 
Dividing an economy into different pieces allows for more in-depth analysis of the economy as a whole 
 

Share  See Equity 
 

Short position Fund managers use this technique to borrow a security and then sell it with the intention of buying it 
back for less when the price falls. The position profits if the security falls in value. Within UCITS funds, 
derivatives --- such as contracts for difference (CFDs) --- can be used to simulate a short position. 
 

Security A general term for stocks, bonds, options, subscription rights, warrants and other tradable investments 
that confer a right to income or ownership. 
 

Sovereign debt Sovereign debt is a central government’s debt. It is debt issued by the national government in a foreign 
currency in order to finance the issuing country’s growth and development. The stability of the issuing 
government can be provided by the country’s sovereign credit ratings which help investors weigh risks 
when assessing sovereign debt investments. 
 

Sovereign risk See Country Risk 
 

Stock  See Equity 
 

Stock option The right to buy or sell a particular stock at a given price on or after a certain date. Stock options are 
often used as an employee incentive at start-ups or large public companies. 
 

Swap An exchange of streams of payments between two parties, typically in order to reduce interest rate or 
currency risk. 
 

Synthetic Term given to financial instruments that are created artificially by simulating other instruments with 
different cash flow patterns. Synthetic products are structured to suit the cash flow needs of the 
investor. They are created in the form of a contract and, therefore, given the name "synthetic." 
 

Transferable security  Any security that can be traded in the capital markets 
 

Treasury bill (T-bill) A Treasury Bill (T-Bill) is a short-term debt obligation backed by the Treasury Department of the U.S. 
government with a maturity of less than one year, sold in denominations of $1,000 up to a maximum 
purchase of $5 million on noncompetitive bids. T-bills have various maturities and are issued at a 
discount from par. Investors do not receive regular interest payments but a T-Bill does include interest, 
reflected in the amount it pays when it matures. 
 

Total output  The total amount of goods and services produced within an economy. 
 

Total return Total return is the full return on an investment over a given period, including the income generated from 
dividend, interest or rental payments, and any gains or losses from a change in the asset’s market 
value. This is normally expressed as a percentage of the purchase cost, annualised if the period is less 
than a year. 
 

Undervalued When a share price or market is trading at levels below those justified by fundamentals.  
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Underweight An underweight portfolio does not hold a sufficient amount of a particular security when compared to 

the weight of that security held in the underlying benchmark portfolio. Underweight can also refer to an 
analyst’s opinion regarding the future performance of a security in scenarios where it is expected to 
underperform. 
 

Volatility The extent to which the price of a security or commodity, or the level of a market, interest rate or 
currency, changes over time. High volatility implies rapid and large upward and downward movements 
over a relatively short period of time; low volatility implies much smaller and less frequent changes in 
value. 
 

Warrant A financial instrument, normally attached to a bond or other security, that entitles the holder to purchase 
a certain amount of ordinary shares at a fixed price for a period of years or to perpetuity. The price at 
which the underlying shares can be bought or sold is referred to as the exercise price or strike price. 
 

Yield 1. The annual rate of return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. 
2. For bonds and notes, the coupon rate divided by the market price. This is not an accurate measure 
of total return, since it does not factor in capital gains. 
3. For securities, the annual dividends divided by the purchase price. This is not an accurate measure of 
total return, since it does not factor in capital gains. here, also called dividend yield or current yield 
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The Directors of Man Funds VI plc (the �Fund�) herewith submit their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2019.  
 

Principal activities and review of the development of the business 
 

The Fund was incorporated as an investment company with variable capital under the laws of Ireland as a public limited company on 28 
November 2007 under registration number 449860. The Fund has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the �Central Bank�) as 
an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities (�UCITS�), pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings for 
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (as amended), (the �UCITS Regulations�) and Central Bank 
(Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 
2015 (the �Central Bank UCITS Regulations�). The Fund is structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds 
(each a �Portfolio�) and as at 31 December 2019 the Fund was comprised of twenty five Portfolios: Man GLG Global Emerging Markets 
Debt Total Return, Man GLG Global Debt Total Return (commenced operations on 1 August 2019), Man GLG European Alpha 
Alternative, Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative, Man GLG European Equity Alternative, Man GLG Global Equity Alternative (ceased 
operations on 9 January 2018), Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Enhanced (ceased operations on 23 December 2016), Man GLG 
Cred-Eq Alternative (ceased operations on 29 June 2017), Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative, Man GLG Unconstrained 
Emerging Equity (ceased operations on 7 February 2019), Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, Man GLG Global Fundamental Equity 
(ceased operations on 31 May 2017), Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative (ceased operations on 21 March 2019), Man GLG High Yield 
Opportunities (commenced operations on 16 January 2019), Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative (commenced operations on 1 
April 2019), Man GLG Event Driven Alternative (commenced operations on 2 July 2019) and Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE 
(commenced operations on 22 November 2019), Man GLG US Absolute Alpha (commenced operations on 31 December 2019), Man 
AHL Multi Strategy Alternative, Man AHL Directional Equities Alternative (ceased operations on 30 September 2016), Man AHL 
TargetRisk, Man AHL Volatility Alternative (ceased operations on 4 August 2017), Man AHL Active Balanced, Man Numeric Market 
Neutral Alternative and Man Alternative Style Risk Premia. As at 31 December 2019 there were sixteen Portfolios in operation: Man GLG 
European Alpha Alternative, Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative, Man GLG European Equity Alternative, Man AHL Multi Strategy 
Alternative, Man AHL TargetRisk, Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative, Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total 
Return, Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, Man Alternative Style Risk Premia, Man AHL Active Balanced, Man GLG High Yield 
Opportunities, Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global Debt Total Return, Man 
GLG High Yield Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha. 
 
Results for the year and state of affairs at 31 December 2019 
 
For a detailed commentary on the results for the year and the state of affairs of the Fund at 31 December 2019 see the Investment 
Manager�s report, the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income and the schedule of investments. At the 
year end the Fund�s Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shareholders (the �Shareholders�) amounted to 
 98,388,042 (31 December 2018:  114,678,305) for Man GLG European Alpha Alternative, £1,017,503,750 (31 December 2018: 
£801,377,432) for Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative,  382,407,629 (31 December 2018:  827,958,242) for Man GLG European Equity 
Alternative, US$102,471,502 (31 December 2018: US$94,840,215) for Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative, US$1,540,693,817 (31 
December 2018: US$610,853,628) for Man AHL TargetRisk,  483,374,328 (31 December 2018:  640,926,183) for Man GLG European 
Mid-Cap Equity Alternative, US$Nil (31 December 2018: US$21,624,877) for Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative, US$Nil (31 
December 2018: US$58,851,080) for Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity, US$1,712,239,111 (31 December 2018: 
US$3,354,723,696) for Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return, US$482,445,853 (31 December 2018: US$358,627,588) 
for Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, £Nil (31 December 2018: £107,971,961) for Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative, 
US$636,765,674 (31 December 2018: US$312,040,793) for Man Alternative Style Risk Premia, US$578,455,583 (31 December 2018: 
US$15,282,022) for Man AHL Active Balanced,  180,313,252 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, 
US$30,635,012 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, US$101,433,832 (31 December 2018: n/a) for 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, US$10,072,887 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Global Debt Total Return,  50,710,456 (31 
December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE and US$20,000,000 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG US 
Absolute Alpha. All Classes of redeemable participating shares are together known as the �Redeemable Participating Shares� or 
�Shares�. 
 
The returns of the classes of all the sub-funds for the year end are disclosed in the tables below: 
 
Share Classes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative
Class DN EUR (0.01%) (0.12%)
Class DN H GBP 1.03% 0.64%
Class DN H USD 2.96% 2.09%
Class IN EUR 0.65% 0.23%
Class IN H GBP 2.04% 1.47%
Class IN H USD 3.70% 2.29%
Class INF EUR 1.43% (4.29%)
Class INU EUR# n/a 2.40%
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Results for the year and state of affairs at 31 December 2019 (continued) 
 
Share Classes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative
Class DL GBP 6.36% 4.85%
Class DL H EUR 5.07% 3.48%
Class DL H USD 8.11% 6.24%
Class DNY H EUR* 1.81% n/a
Class IL GBP 7.00% 5.46%
Class IL GBP Dist 7.00% 2.81%
Class IL H EUR 5.66% 4.18%
Class IL H EUR Dist 4.30% 2.91%
Class IL H SEK 6.17% 4.16%
Class IL H USD 8.72% 6.90%
Class IL H USD Dist 8.75% 3.88%
Class IL U GBP 6.99% 5.50%
Class IN H EUR* 1.72% n/a
Class IN H SEK* 0.06% n/a
Class IN H USD* 3.25% n/a

Man GLG European Equity Alternative
Class DN EUR (2.44%) (4.77%)
Class DN H CHF (2.91%) (5.12%)
Class DN H GBP (1.15%) (3.51%)
Class DN H NOK (0.95%) (3.73%)
Class DN H SEK (2.40%) (5.01%)
Class DN H USD 0.52% (2.30%)
Class DN U EUR (1.58%) (6.69%)
Class IN EUR (1.71%) (4.01%)
Class IN H GBP (0.28%) (2.86%)
Class IN H SEK (1.66%) (4.33%)
Class IN H USD 1.10% (1.68%)
Class INU EUR (0.88%) (6.89%)
Class INU H USD 1.09% (2.55%)
Class INZ EUR (0.91%) (3.29%)
Class INZ EUR Dist (6.52%) (3.36%)
Class INZ H CHF Dist (6.73%) (4.33%)
Class INZ H GBP Dist (5.13%) (3.25%)
Class INZ H USD 1.96% (0.96%)
Class INZ H USD Dist (3.33%) (1.45%)
Class IXXN EUR* 0.42% n/a
Class IXXN H USD* 0.52% n/a

Man GLG Global Equity Alternative##
Class DN EUR n/a 0.51%
Class DN H USD n/a 0.53%
Class IN EUR n/a 0.50%
Class IN H USD n/a 0.56%

Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative
Class DN USD 8.34% 5.20%
Class DN H EUR 5.95% 3.13%
Class DN H GBP 6.79% 4.14%
Class IN USD 9.03% 5.94%
Class IN H CHF 6.25% 4.15%
Class IN H EUR 6.44% 3.85%
Class IN H GBP 7.32% 4.50%
Class IN H SEK 6.72% 3.77%
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Results for the year and state of affairs at 31 December 2019 (continued) 
 
Share Classes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Man AHL TargetRisk
Class D USD 27.47% (2.58%)
Class D H CHF 23.41% (5.67%)
Class D H EUR 23.90% (5.31%)
Class D H GBP* 1.05% n/a
Class D H SEK 24.21% (5.75%)
Class D H SGD* 2.20% n/a
Class I USD 28.43% (1.86%)
Class I H CHF 24.30% (4.91%)
Class I H EUR 24.72% (4.50%)
Class I H GBP 26.23% (3.32%)
Class I H JPY 24.80% (4.17%)
Class I H SEK 25.05% (4.84%)
Class I H SGD* 1.06% n/a
Class I H (BRL) USD* (0.33%) n/a
Class INU USD 28.96% 0.19%

Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative
Class DN EUR (0.46%) (1.48%)
Class DN H USD 2.55% 0.84%
Class DNY EUR (0.69%) (1.70%)
Class IN EUR 0.28% (0.75%)
Class IN F EUR 0.31% (0.38%)
Class INF H GBP 1.69% 0.84%
Class INF H USD 3.25% 2.09%
Class IN H GBP 1.68% 0.30%
Class IN H SEK 1.00% (0.54%)
Class IN H USD 3.10% 1.51%

Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative##
Class DN USD# (5.52%) (13.51%)
Class DN H EUR# (9.03%) (15.83%)
Class IN USD# (4.61%) (12.84%)
Class IN H EUR# (8.51%) (15.18%)
Class IN H SEK# (5.71%) (14.83%)
Class INU USD# (6.18%) (12.45%)
Class INU H EUR# (5.87%) (14.83%)
Class INU H GBP Dist# n/a (11.28%)

Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity##
Class D C USD# 4.17% (20.12%)
Class DF C EUR# 3.84% (15.05%)
Class DF C USD# 4.18% (19.96%)
Class I C SEK# 8.58% (12.84%)
Class I C USD# 3.07% (19.52%)
Class IF C EUR# 4.92% (15.31%)
Class IF C GBP# 2.26% (14.35%)
Class IF C SEK# 8.59% (12.65%)
Class IF C USD# 4.29% (19.18%)
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Results for the year and state of affairs at 31 December 2019 (continued) 
 
Share Classes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return
Class D USD (3.51%) (0.05%)
Class D H CHF (6.20%) (3.12%)
Class D H EUR (6.36%) (2.69%)
Class D H GBP (5.03%) (1.55%)
Class D H NOK (4.59%) (1.22%)
Class DL USD (3.26%) 0.22%
Class DL H EUR (6.10%) (2.49%)
Class DMF USD (3.27%) 0.20%
Class DMF H EUR (6.07%) (2.45%)
Class DR USD Dist (2.79%) 0.08%
Class DY USD (3.74%) (0.29%)
Class DY H EUR (6.60%) (2.86%)
Class I USD (2.79%) 0.72%
Class I USD Dist (2.79%) 0.11%
Class I H AUD (3.73%) 1.54%
Class I H CHF (5.92%) (2.36%)
Class I H EUR (5.66%) (1.98%)
Class I H EUR Dist (5.61%) (3.07%)
Class I H GBP (4.35%) (0.84%)
Class I H SEK (5.08%) (1.62%)
Class IL USD (2.53%) 0.98%
Class IL H EUR (5.40%) (1.73%)
Class IMF USD (2.53%) 0.96%
Class IMF USD Dist (2.54%) 0.62%
Class IMF H EUR (5.40%) (1.72%)
Class IMF H EUR Dist (5.38%) (2.86%)
Class IMF H GBP Dist (4.15%) (1.64%)

Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative
Class DN USD 4.72% 1.50%
Class DN H CHF 2.33% (1.38%)
Class DN H EUR 2.14% (0.96%)
Class DN H SEK* 6.77% n/a
Class DNF USD n/a 1.11%
Class DNF H EUR 2.70% (0.48%)
Class IN USD 5.29% 2.08%
Class INF USD 5.71% 2.45%
Class INF H EUR 3.27% 0.21%
Class INF H GBP 4.24% 1.15%
Class IN H CHF 2.60% (0.56%)
Class IN H EUR 2.85% (0.25%)
Class IN H GBP 3.83% 0.72%
Class IN H SEK 2.98% (0.27%)
Class INU H EUR 2.83% (2.12%)
Class INU H GBP 4.03% 0.95%

Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative##
Class IN GBP# (0.53%) 0.33%
Class IX E GBP# (0.77%) 0.34%
Class IX H JPY# (1.10%) (1.70%)

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia
Class D USD 4.38% (6.51%)
Class D H DKK* (4.08%) n/a
Class D H EUR 1.34% (2.52%)
Class D H NOK* (3.05%) n/a
Class D H SEK* (3.57%) n/a
Class I USD 5.18% (5.77%)
Class I H AUD 4.30% (4.14%)
Class I H CHF 1.83% (9.98%)
Class I H EUR 2.21% (8.26%)
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Results for the year and state of affairs at 31 December 2019 (continued) 
 
Share Classes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia (continued)
Class I H GBP 3.55% (7.38%)
Class I H JPY 2.29% (11.11%)
Class I H SEK 2.53% (8.35%)
Class INU H EUR 2.43% (8.15%)
Class INU USD 5.27% (4.67%)

Man AHL Active Balanced
Class I H EUR 23.96% 0.50%
Class I H GBP 25.57% 0.67%
Class I H JPY 24.01% 0.51%
Class I H USD 27.39% 0.81%

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities**
Class D EUR* 11.93% n/a
Class I EUR* 12.60% n/a
Class I H GBP* 13.98% n/a
Class I H USD* 15.85% n/a
Class IF EUR* 6.21% n/a
Class IF H GBP* 8.41% n/a
Class IF H GBP Dist* 5.75% n/a
Class IF H GBP G-Dist* 6.23% n/a
Class ILU H GBP G-Dist* 10.04% n/a

Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative**
Class DN H EUR* 2.08% n/a
Class IN USD* 4.22% n/a
Class IN H EUR* 2.35% n/a
Class IN H SEK* 3.07% n/a
Class INU H GBP* 1.59% n/a

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative**
Class DNFY H EUR* 1.60% n/a
Class DNFY USD* 2.20% n/a
Class IN H EUR* 2.28% n/a
Class IN H GBP* 2.71% n/a
Class IN H SEK* 2.45% n/a
Class IN USD* 3.37% n/a
Class INF H EUR* 2.02% n/a
Class INF USD* 2.25% n/a

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return**
Class I C EUR* (1.20%) n/a
Class I C USD* 0.72% n/a

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE**
Class I EUR* 1.42% n/a
Class I EUR Dist* 1.42% n/a

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha**
Class IN USD*                        -   n/a

 
 

*The return shown above for the share classes of respective fund is for the period from launch date to 31 December 2019. For details on 
launch date of respective share classes please refer note 20. 
 
**Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global 
Debt Total Return, Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced their operations on 16 January 
2019, 1 April 2019, 2 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 22 November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively. 
 
#The return shown above for the share classes of respective portfolios is for the period from 1 January 2019 to the date of redemption. 
 
##Man GLG Global Equity Alternative, Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative, Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity and Man 
NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased their operations on 9 January 2018, 17 September 2019, 7 February 2019 and 21 March 2019 
respectively. 
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Dividends 
 
The Directors proposed the payment of dividends as per the table below for 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018: 
 

31 December 2019
Portfolio Share Class Dividend per share
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL GBP Dist £1.66
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H EUR Dist  1.73
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H USD Dist US$1.63
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ EUR Dist  6.17
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H CHF Dist CHF6.05
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H GBP Dist  £6.13 
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ H USD Dist US$6.40
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class IF H GBP Dist  £0.30 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Class IF H GBP G-Dist  £0.33 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities  Class ILU H GBP G-Dist  £1.34 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE Class I EUR Dist  0.27

31 December 2018
Portfolio Share Class Dividend per share
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Class IL H EUR Dist  1.30
Man GLG European Equity Alternative Class INZ EUR Dist  5.47
Man GLG European Equity Alternative  Class INZ H CHF Dist CHF5.22
Man GLG European Equity Alternative  Class INZ H GBP Dist £5.33
Man GLG European Equity Alternative  Class INZ H USD Dist US$5.24

 

Dividends proposed for the year ended 31 December 2019 were paid for Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative, Man GLG High Yield 
Opportunities and Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE on 9 January 2020 and were paid for Man GLG European Equity Alternative on 
8 January 2020 and the dividends proposed for the year ended 31 December 2018 were paid for all the Funds on 17 January 2019. The 
Directors do not propose the payment of a dividend for any of the other share classes in the other Portfolios. 
 
Future developments 
 
The Fund will continue to pursue the Portfolios� investment objectives as outlined in note 1. 
 
Significant events during the year 
 
Prospectus 
A new Supplement dated 18 June 2019 was issued to the Prospectus dated 21 December 2018. The amendments to the Prospectus 
reflected the launch of two new portfolios; Man GLG Global Debt Total Return and Man GLG Japan Equity Alternative. 
 
A revised Supplement for the Man GLG Portfolios was issued on 21 June 2019 and the main substantive changes made were to reflect 
the approval of Man GLG RI European Equity Alternative and Man GLG Event Driven Alternative. In addition, the investment strategy for 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative was amended to reflect the increase in percentage of the Fund�s net assets that may be invested 
in emerging markets from 20% to 40%. 
 
An Addendum for the Man GLG Portfolios and GLG LLC was issued on 11 September 2019. The amendments to the Addendum 
reflected to provide an exclusion list in respect of Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative, Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total 
Return and Man GLG Global Debt Total Return. This proposed update comprises an exclusion list of controversial stocks or industries 
being applied to the investment portfolio of the Portfolios which may be related to arms and munitions, nuclear weapons, tobacco and 
coal production. 
 
Further information regarding the exclusion list to be applied will be available upon request from the respective Investment Manager of 
the Portfolios. Man Group�s Responsible Investment Exclusions Committee focuses on developing guidelines to direct the exclusions, 
and reviews and reports any amendments to Man Group�s Responsible Investment Committee. Man Group works with a leading third 
party Environmental, Social and Governance (�ESG�) advisory firm to maintain the integrity of Man Group�s Responsible Investment 
Exclusion List. 
 
A revised Supplement for the Man GLG Portfolios was issued on 8 November 2019. The amendments to the Prospectus reflected the 
launch of new portfolio Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE. 
 
A revised Supplement for the Man GLG Portfolios was issued on 30 December 2019. The amendments to the Prospectus reflected the 
launch of new portfolio Man GLG US Absolute Alpha. 
 
Portfolios 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global 
Debt Total Return, Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced their operations on 16 January 
2019, 1 April 2019, 2 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 22 November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively. 
 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity, Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative and Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative ceased 
their operations on 7 February 2019, 21 March 2019 and 17 September 2019 respectively. 
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Significant events during the year (continued) 
 
Share Class 
A revised Supplement for the AHL Partners LLP Portfolios was issued on 28 August 2019 and the only change made were to reflect the 
inclusion of �IU� share class in Man AHL TargetRisk. 
 
A revised Supplement for the Man GLG Portfolios was issued on 27 November 2019 and the only change made were to reflect the 
inclusion of �DN� and �DNY� share classes in Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative. 
 
For detailed information on new share classes launched during the year please refer note 20. 
 
Effective 1 December 2019, BNY Mellon Trust Company (Ireland) Limited, One Dockland Central, Guild Street, IFSC, Dublin 1, merged 
into The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV (the �European Bank�) and as of that date, depositary services were provided by the Dublin 
branch of the European Bank. 
 
There were no other significant events during the year ended 31 December 2019. 
 
Subsequent events since the year end 
 
Dividends proposed for the year ended 31 December 2019 were paid on 9 January 2020. 
 
The Directors and the Investment Managers acknowledge the current COVID-19 pandemic which is an unprecedented event and the 
eventual impact on the global economy and markets will largely depend on the scale and duration of the outbreak. The Board will 
continue to monitor this situation with the investment manager and service providers. 
 
Investors are reminded that the Liquidity Risk highlighted in the company prospectus is particularly relevant at this time. Trading volumes 
in the underlying investments of the Portfolios may fluctuate significantly due to unprecedented levels of investor uncertainty and market 
volatility. There is a risk that investments made by the Portfolios may become less liquid in response to market developments, adverse 
investor perceptions or regulatory and government intervention (including the possibility of trading suspensions implemented by domestic 
regulators). In extreme market conditions, there may be no willing buyer for an investment and that investment cannot be readily sold at 
the desired time or price, and consequently the relevant Portfolio may have to accept a lower price to sell the relevant investment or may 
not be able to sell the investment at all. An inability to sell a particular investment or portion of a Portfolio�s assets can have a negative 
impact of the value of the relevant Portfolio or prevent the relevant Portfolio from being able to take advantage of other investment 
opportunities. 
 
Liquidity risk also includes the risk that relevant Portfolios, including those Portfolios with a concentrated exposure to such issuers, 
sectors or industries, may be forced to defer redemptions, issue in specie redemptions or suspend dealing because of stressed market 
conditions, an unusually high volume of redemption requests, or other factors beyond the control of the Investment Manager. To meet 
redemption requests, the relevant Portfolios may be forced to sell investments at an unfavourable time and/or conditions, which may 
have a negative impact on the value of your investment. 
 
There have been no other significant events since the year end that impact the Fund and require disclosure in the financial statements. 
 
Investment objectives 
 
The investment objectives of each sub-fund are as stated in note 1. Investment in the Fund carries with it a degree of risk including but 
not limited to the risks referred to in note 6 of these Financial Statements. For a more detailed description of risks associated with 
investment in the Fund, please refer to the Prospectus.  
 
Directors and Secretary 
 
The Directors and Secretary during the year and up to 22 April 2020 are listed on page 2. Unless indicated, they served for the entire 
year. 
 
Directors� and Secretary�s interests  
 
Neither the Directors, nor their families, nor the secretary (Matsack Trust Limited), nor the Investment Manager had any interests in the 
Shares of the Fund during the year ended 31 December 2019, with the exception of one Subscriber Shares held by Man Asset 
Management (Ireland) Limited in a nominee capacity.  
 
The Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is disclosed in note 9. 
 
Directors� responsibilities 
 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors� Report and the financial statements in accordance with Irish law. 
 
Irish company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements giving a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund and 
the profit or loss of the Fund for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law, the 
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and 
financial position of the company as at the financial year end date and of the profit or loss of the Fund for the financial year and otherwise 
comply with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). 
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Directors� responsibilities (continued) 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to: 
 
� select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
� make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
� state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and identify the 

standards in question and note the effects and the reasons for any material departure from those standards; and 
� prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Fund will continue in 

business. 
 
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Fund keeps or causes to be kept adequate accounting records which correctly 
explain and record the transactions of the company, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the 
Fund to be determined with the reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the financial statements and Directors� report comply 
with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) and enable these financial statements to be audited.  
 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Fund and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. Legislation in Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
 
Accounting records 
 
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records as outlined in Section 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2014 
(as amended) are kept by the Fund. To achieve this, the Directors have appointed an experienced third party fund administrator to 
ensure that the requirements of Section 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) are complied with. The books and 
accounting records are maintained at the Administrator�s office at One Dockland Central, Guild Street, IFSC, Dublin 1, Ireland. 
 
Independent Auditor 
 
The Independent Auditor, Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, will continue in office in accordance with Section 383 (2) of the 
Companies Act 2014 (as amended). 
 
Corporate governance 
 
The European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulations (S.I. 450 of 2009 and S.I. 83 of 2010) (the �Regulations�) requires the 
inclusion of a corporate governance statement in the Directors� Report. 
 
Although there is no specific statutory corporate governance code applicable to Irish collective investment schemes, the Fund is subject 
to corporate governance practices imposed by: 
 

i) The Irish Companies Act 2014 which is available for inspection at the registered office of the Fund; 
ii) The Articles of Association of the Fund which are available for inspection at the registered office of the Fund; 
iii) The Central Bank in their UCITS Notices and Guidance Notes which can be obtained from the Central Bank website at: 

https://www.centralbank.ie/regulation/industry-market-sectors/funds/ucits and are available for inspection at the registered office 
of the Fund; and 

 
The Irish Funds (�IF�) has published the IF Code that may be adopted on a voluntary basis by Irish authorised collective investment 
schemes. It should be noted that the IF Code reflects existing corporate governance practices imposed on Irish authorized collective 
investment schemes, as noted above. If the IF Code is adopted on a voluntary basis, it can be referred to in the disclosures made in the 
Directors Report in compliance with the provisions of the European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulations (i.e. S.I. 450 of 
2009 and S.I. 83 of 2010). 
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control and risk management systems of the 
Fund in relation to the financial reporting process. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of error or fraud in 
achieving the Fund�s financial reporting objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. 
 
The Board of Directors has procedures in place to ensure all relevant books of account are properly maintained and are readily available, 
including production of annual financial statements. The annual financial statements of the Fund are required to be approved by the 
Board of Directors of the Fund and the annual financial statements of the Fund are required to be filed with the Central Bank. The 
statutory financial statements are required to be audited by independent auditors who report annually to the board on their findings. 
 
The Board of Directors evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises. 
 
The convening and conduct of shareholders� meetings are governed by the Articles of Association of the Fund and the Companies Act. 
Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Fund at any time, the Directors are required to convene an 
annual general meeting of the Fund within twelve months of the date of the previous annual general meeting. Shareholders representing 
not less than ninety-five per cent of the paid up share capital of the Fund may also request the directors to convene a shareholders� 
meeting. Not less than twenty one days� notice of every annual general meeting and any meeting convened for the passing of a special 
resolution must be given to shareholders and fourteen days� notice must be given in the case of any other general meeting unless the 
auditors of the Fund and all the shareholders of the Fund entitled to attend and vote agree to shorter notice. 
 
Two members present either in person or by proxy constitute a quorum at a general meeting. 
 
The Fund may from time to time by ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such amount and/or number as the resolution may 
prescribe. 
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Corporate governance (continued) 
 
The Fund may also by ordinary resolution: 

1) consolidate all or any of its share capital into Shares of larger amount; 
2) subject to the provision of the Companies Act subdivide its Shares, or any of them, into Shares of smaller amount or value and 

provide for any of such Shares resulting from such sub-division to have, as compared with the others, any such preferred, 
deferred or other rights or be subject to any such restrictions as the Fund has power to attach to unissued or new Shares; 

3) cancel any Shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any 
person and reduce the amount of its authorised share capital by the amount of the Shares so cancelled; or 

4) re-denominate the currency of any class of Shares. 
 
Every holder of participating shares or non-participating shares present in person or by proxy who votes on a show of hands is entitled to 
one vote. On a poll, every holder of participating shares present in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote in respect of each share 
held by him and every holder of non-participating shares is entitled to one vote in respect of all non-participating shares held by him. 
 
Shareholders may resolve to sanction an ordinary resolution or special resolution at a shareholders� meeting. An ordinary resolution of 
the Fund requires a simple majority of the votes cast by the shareholders voting in person or by proxy at the meeting at which the 
resolution is proposed. A special resolution of the Fund requires a majority of not less than seventy five per cent of the shareholders 
present in person or by proxy and voting in general meeting in order to pass a special resolution including a resolution to amend the 
Articles of Association. 
 
Unless otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the Fund in general meeting, the number of Directors may not be less than one 
nor more than ten. Currently the Board of Directors of the Fund is composed of four Directors, being those listed in the corporate 
information in these financial statements. 
 
The business of the Fund is managed by the Directors, who exercise all such powers of the Fund as are not by the Companies Act 2014 
(as amended) (�Act�) or by the Articles of Association of the Fund required to be exercised by the Fund in general meeting. 
 
A Director may, and the company secretary of the Fund on the requisition of a Director will, at any time summon a meeting of the 
Directors. Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors are determined by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the 
chairman shall not have a casting vote and the resolution shall fail. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of 
the Directors is two. 
 
The Board has adopted the voluntary Irish Funds (IF) Corporate Governance Code for Irish Domiciled Collective Investment Schemes 
and Management Companies, issued 14 December 2011 (the �Code�), with effect from 31 December 2012. The Board has reviewed 
and assessed the measures included in the Code and considers its corporate governance practices and procedures since the adoption 
of the Code as consistent therewith. 
 
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the company�s compliance with the relevant obligations as set out in 
section 225 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). 
 
The Directors confirm that: 
 

1) A compliance policy document has been drawn up that sets out policies, that in our opinion are appropriate to the company, 
respecting compliance by the company with its relevant obligations 

2) appropriate arrangements or structures are in place that are, in our opinion, designed to secure material compliance with the 
company’s relevant obligations, and 

3) during the financial year, the arrangements or structures referred to in (2) have been reviewed 
 
The Directors confirm that during the financial year end 31 December 2019: 
 

a) so far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company�s statutory auditors are 
unaware; and   

b) the Directors have taken all steps that ought to have been taken by the Directors in order to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company�s auditors are aware of that information. 

 
Audit Committee 
 
The Board of Directors has decided it was not necessary to constitute an audit committee given the frequency of the meetings of the 
Board of Directors throughout the year and the size of the Board of Directors. Instead, it is deemed more appropriate that the entirety of 
the Board of Directors carry out the activities that would otherwise be carried out by an audit committee. 
 
The Fund has adopted the corporate governance code for collective investment schemes and management companies issued by the 
Irish Funds (the �IF Code�).The Directors are satisfied that they act independently and in the interests of the Fund as a whole and have 
determined that Eric Fortier and Ronan Daly are independent directors as that term is defined in the IF Code. 
 
Cybersecurity risk 
 
Cybersecurity breaches may occur allowing an unauthorized party to gain access to assets of the Portfolios, Shareholder data, or 
proprietary information, or may cause the Fund, the Investment Manager, the Distributor, the Administrator or the Custodian to suffer 
data corruption or lose operational functionality. 
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Cybersecurity risk (continued) 
 

The Portfolios may be affected by intentional cybersecurity breaches which include unauthorized access to systems, networks, or 
devices (such as through �hacking� activity); infection from computer viruses or other malicious software code; and attacks that shut 
down, disable, slow, or otherwise disrupt operations, business processes, or website access or functionality. In addition, unintentional 
incidents can occur, such as the inadvertent release of confidential information (possibly resulting in the violation of applicable privacy 
laws). A cybersecurity breach could result in the loss or theft of Shareholder data or funds, the inability to access electronic systems, loss 
or theft of proprietary information or corporate data, physical damage to a computer or network system, or costs associated with system 
repairs. Such incidents could cause the Fund, the Investment Manager, the Distributor, the Administrator, the Custodian, or other service 
providers to incur regulatory penalties, reputational damage, additional compliance costs, or financial loss. Consequently, shareholders 
may lose some or all of their invested capital. In addition, such incidents could affect issuers in which a Portfolio invests, and thereby 
cause a Portfolio�s investments to lose value, as a result of which investors, including the relevant Portfolio and its shareholders, could 
potentially lose all or a portion of their investment with that issuer. 
 

Custody and title risk 
 

The Depositary is under a duty to take into custody such financial instruments that can be held in custody and to hold such assets of 
each Portfolio of the Fund on behalf of its shareholders. The Central Bank of Ireland requires the Depositary to hold separately the non-
cash assets of each Portfolio and to maintain sufficient records to clearly identify the nature and amount of all assets that it holds, the 
ownership of each asset and where the documents of title to such assets are physically located. When the Depositary employs a Sub-
Custodian the Depositary retains responsibility for the assets of the Portfolio save where it has discharged itself of liability in accordance 
with the relevant EU Directive. 
 

However, it should be noted that not all jurisdictions have the same rules and regulations as Ireland regarding the custody of assets and 
the recognition of the interests of a beneficial owner such as a Portfolio. Therefore, in such jurisdictions, there is a risk that if a Sub-
Custodian becomes bankrupt or insolvent, the Portfolio�s beneficial ownership of the assets held by such Sub-Custodian may not be 
recognised and consequently the creditors of the Sub-Custodian may seek to have recourse to the assets of the Portfolio. In those 
jurisdictions where the Portfolio�s beneficial ownership of its assets is ultimately recognised, the Portfolio may suffer delay and cost in 
recovering those assets. The Portfolios may invest in markets where custodial and/or settlement systems are not fully developed, the 
assets of a Portfolio which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to sub-custodians, in circumstances where the 
use of such sub-custodians is necessary, may be exposed to risk in circumstances whereby the Depositary will have no liability. 
 

CRS Data Protection Information Notice 
 

The Portfolio hereby provides the following data protection information notice to all shareholders in the Portfolio either as at 31 December 
2019 or at any point of time since this date. 
 

For the avoidance of doubt, this notice applies equally to any shareholders that have ceased to hold shares in the Portfolio since 1 
January 2019. Furthermore, it should be noted that this notice may be applicable to Controlling Persons of certain shareholders. 
 

The Portfolio hereby confirm that they intend to take such steps as may be required to satisfy any obligations imposed by (i) the OECD�s 
Standard for Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information in Tax Matters (�the Standard�), which therein contains the Common 
Reporting Standard (�CRS�), as applied in Ireland by means of the relevant international legal framework and Irish tax legislation and (ii) 
EU Council Directive 2014/107/EU, amending Directive 2011/16/EU as regards mandatory automatic exchange information in the field of 
taxation (�DAC2�), as applied in Ireland by means of the relevant Irish tax legislation, so as to ensure compliance or deemed compliance 
(as the case may be) with the Standard/CRS and the DAC2 from 1 January 2019. 
 

In this regard, the Manager on behalf of the Portfolio is obliged under Section 891F and Section 891G of the Irish Taxes Consolidation 
Act, 1997 (as amended) and regulations made pursuant to those sections to collect certain information about each shareholder�s tax 
arrangements (and also collect information in relation to relevant Controlling Persons of specific shareholders). 
 

In certain circumstances, the Manager on behalf of the Portfolio may be legally obliged to share this information and other financial 
information with respect to a shareholder�s interests in the Portfolio with the Irish Revenue Commissioners (and, in particular situations, 
also share information in relation to relevant Controlling Persons of specific shareholders). In turn, and to the extent the account has been 
identified as a Reportable Account, the Irish Revenue Commissioners will exchange this information with the country of residence of the 
Reportable Person(s) in respect of that Reportable Account. 
 

In particular, information that may be reported in respect of a shareholder (and relevant Controlling Persons, if applicable) includes name, 
address, date of birth, place of birth, account number, account balance or value at year end (or, if the account was closed during such 
year, the balance or value at the date of closure of the account), any payments (including redemption and dividend/interest payments) 
made with respect to the account during the calendar year, tax residency(ies) and tax identification number(s). 
 

Connected party transactions 
 

The Directors are satisfied that there are arrangements in place to ensure that transactions carried out with connected parties of the 
Fund are carried out as if negotiated at arm�s length and any such transactions are in the best interests of the Shareholders of the Fund. 
The Directors are satisfied that any transactions entered into with connected parties during the year complied with the aforementioned 
obligation. 
 
 
 

On behalf of the Board 
 
 
 

   
 
Director              Director 
 
 

Date: 22 April 2020 





 

38 
 

 
 
Page left blank intentionally 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Statement of financial position  
As at 31 December 2019  
 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
39 

 

 

Combined
Fund

Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative

Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative

Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative

Notes US$   £  
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3  1,624,479,590         4,682,104       85,884,835        39,767,434 
Balances with brokers 3  1,135,087,796       19,802,115     162,683,782        97,785,710 
Due from brokers 3       11,367,346                     -              515,053          2,717,934 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
  Equities and managed funds 4  1,535,212,581       75,715,332                      -        226,541,098 
  Interest bearing securities 4  3,762,662,945                     -       766,566,950        52,116,080 
  Derivatives 4     483,458,185         2,655,856       46,326,171      101,775,076 
Subscriptions receivable       30,523,114                     -              377,538                 7,857 
Interest receivable         8,474,988                     -              756,868                       -  
Dividend receivable         2,979,266              26,849         1,372,333             770,876 
Other assets         5,107,345            131,234            485,808               42,006 
Total Assets  8,599,353,156     103,013,490  1,064,969,338      521,524,071 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers 3     139,779,070            499,982         4,786,613        16,590,834 
Due to brokers 3       11,839,244            163,445                      -            1,963,627 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:
  Derivatives 4     470,286,860         3,343,269       29,975,536      117,686,931 
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 4       21,125,126                     -                        -                         -  
Shareholder transactions       21,997,233            182,174         5,582,045             184,997 
Performance fees payable 8,9       10,426,215              85,741         4,233,312             143,396 
Management fees payable 8,9         6,042,178              84,783            687,379             684,997 
Interest payable         1,825,491              35,190            537,994             160,592 
Dividend payable         2,609,324              53,577            667,013          1,066,417 
Liquidation fees payable                5,000                     -                        -                         -  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,9         8,610,239            177,287            995,696             634,651 
Total Liabilit ies (excluding Net Assets Attributable
to Redeemable Participating Shareholders)     694,545,980         4,625,448       47,465,588      139,116,442 

Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders  7,904,807,176       98,388,042  1,017,503,750      382,407,629 
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Man AHL Multi
Strategy

Alternative
Man AHL

TargetRisk

Man GLG
European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative

#Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative

#Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging
 Equity

Man GLG Global
Emerging

Markets Debt
Total Return

Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative

US$ US$   US$ US$ US$ US$

      51,342,196      127,570,563         20,492,590                  76,901               34,456       831,277,648       40,526,575 
      39,644,643      296,549,789         41,491,657                           4                      19       129,864,992       13,135,405 
             91,368                      -                          -                            -                        -                          -           3,262,603 

                     -                        -         435,383,726                          -                        -                          -       258,948,707 
      15,087,267   1,085,770,859                        -                            -                        -         834,204,290     181,551,841 
      21,378,063      107,749,069         53,156,741                          -                        -           60,593,049       16,282,524 
               2,845          6,303,147                  5,768                          -                        -                  70,385              16,475 
               1,279          2,887,514                        -                            -                        -                205,294                4,780 
             95,159                      -                  26,342                          -                        -                          -              113,012 
               6,636          1,014,949                13,568                  10,238                 4,427           1,618,980            327,262 
    127,649,456   1,627,845,890       550,570,392                  87,143               38,902    1,857,834,638     514,169,184 

        3,143,038        48,650,522         19,315,384                          -                          3         16,298,254         7,749,340 
             92,685                 1,904                        -                            -                        -                          -                  7,312 

      20,864,171        25,843,769         46,182,623                          -                        -         125,828,792       16,343,102 
                     -                        -                          -                            -                        -                          -                       -  

                  699        10,397,728                85,384                          -                        -                  80,346         3,423,940 
           734,815                      -                    6,573                          -                        -                          -           3,319,905 
             93,948             923,583              447,218                          -                        -                900,686            381,527 
             24,807                      -                256,341                    7,104                      -                414,685                     -  
             79,835                      -                298,640                          -                        -                          -                  7,735 
                     -                        -                          -                      5,000                      -                          -                       -  

           143,956          1,334,567              603,901                  75,039               38,899           2,072,764            490,470 

      25,177,954        87,152,073         67,196,064                  87,143               38,902       145,595,527       31,723,331 

    102,471,502   1,540,693,817       483,374,328                          -                        -      1,712,239,111     482,445,853 

 
#Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative and Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity ceased their operations on 17 September 2019 
and 7 February 2019 respectively. 
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#Man
 NewSmith UK

 Equity
 Alternative

Man
 Alternative
 Style Risk

 Premia

Man AHL
 Active

Balanced

*Man GLG
High Yield

Opportunities
Notes £ US$ US$  

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3              61,164       29,436,376     315,439,371             495,470 
Balances with brokers 3                       1       53,725,067     175,647,942          2,447,039 
Due from brokers 3                      -                       -           4,148,341                       -  
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
  Equities and managed funds 4                      -       405,479,603                      -                         -  
  Interest bearing securities 4                      -       170,678,538       92,442,044      184,092,126 
  Derivatives 4                      -         24,649,288         2,768,494          4,455,566 
Subscriptions receivable                      -           3,515,894                      -                 88,116 
Interest receivable                      -                       -                  8,190          2,997,627 
Dividend receivable                      -                       -                        -                         -  
Other assets                      -              524,752            128,398             266,784 
Total Assets              61,165     688,009,518     590,582,780      194,842,728 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers 3              14,441       10,720,692            248,166          1,956,293 
Due to brokers 3                      -                  3,634         4,265,142                       -  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:
  Derivatives 4                      -         38,797,617         7,049,415          1,923,495 
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 4                      -                       -                        -          10,172,541 
Shareholder transactions                      -                12,774                      -               145,917 
Performance fees payable 8,9                   332                6,236                      -                         -  
Management fees payable 8,9                      -              980,887            317,111               47,945 
Interest payable                   900                     -                        -                 84,445 
Dividend payable                      -                       -                        -                         -  
Liquidation fees payable                      -                       -                        -                         -  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,9              45,492            722,004            247,363             198,840 
Total Liabilit ies (excluding Net Assets Attributable
to Redeemable Participating Shareholders)              61,165       51,243,844       12,127,197        14,529,476 

Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders                      -       636,765,674     578,455,583      180,313,252 

 
#Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 21 March 2019. 
 
*Man GLG High Yield Opportunities commenced its operations on 16 January 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved and authorised for issue on behalf of the board on 22 April 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
Director               Director 
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*Man GLG
 Credit Multi-

Strategy
Alternative

*Man GLG
 Event Driven

Alternative

*Man GLG
Global Debt
Total Return

*Man GLG
 High Yield

Opportunities DE

*Man GLG
US Absolute

Alpha
US$ US$ US$   US$

           931,843        26,761,913           4,112,330             8,600,851                      -  
        4,848,389        23,378,862              174,892             1,141,021                      -  
                     -               131,811                        -                            -                        -  

             65,820        42,717,376                        -                            -                        -  
      35,514,340        13,459,071           7,446,270           40,816,765                      -  
        2,316,098          3,919,263              256,177                249,187                      -  
                     -                          1                        -                            -          20,000,000 

           306,382                    531                22,822                597,471                      -  
                     -                 28,013                        -                            -                        -  

           169,267               67,094                54,245                  25,249                      -  
      44,152,139      110,463,935         12,066,736           51,430,544        20,000,000 

           329,422          3,217,298                        -                            -                        -  
                     -            3,235,304           1,845,625                          -                        -  

        3,142,794          2,038,105                84,240                648,328                      -  
        9,706,449                      -                          -                            -                        -  
                     -                 14,868                        -                            -                        -  

           174,208             317,735                        -                            -                        -  
             25,689               55,977                  3,417                  25,670                      -  
             49,497                      -                          -                    11,736                      -  
               3,124               42,555                        -                            -                        -  
                     -                        -                          -                            -                        -  

             85,944             108,261                60,567                  34,354                      -  

      13,517,127          9,030,103           1,993,849                720,088                      -  

      30,635,012      101,433,832         10,072,887           50,710,456        20,000,000 
 

 
*Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global Debt Total Return, Man GLG High Yield 
Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced their operations on 1 April 2019, 2 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 22 
November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively. 
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Combined
Fund

Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative

Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative

Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative

Notes US$   £  
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3     730,548,079         4,460,912       43,319,924        50,414,657 
Balances with brokers 3     996,102,936       24,619,383     154,078,205      105,717,938 
Due from brokers 3       14,214,893            582,768              28,452        10,901,191 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
  Equities and managed funds 4  1,717,735,517       62,887,660            893,087      695,872,928 
  Interest bearing securities 4  4,451,946,642       26,044,035     604,029,204                       -  
  Derivatives 4     433,451,905         2,145,252       15,592,952      142,517,166 
Subscriptions receivable         3,253,870              11,668            180,000                      66 
Interest receivable         4,596,394                     -              620,055               20,662 
Dividend receivable         2,417,074              65,006            346,227          1,169,713 
Other assets         2,801,106              49,932            205,660               53,372 
Total Assets  8,357,068,416     120,866,616     819,293,766   1,006,667,693 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers 3     197,180,310         2,430,056         1,839,626        38,530,689 
Due to brokers 3       30,869,722         2,117,427              19,493        19,737,404 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:
  Derivatives 4     305,144,195         1,307,581       14,007,271      115,912,454 
Shareholder transactions         6,371,948              15,850              54,249             134,436 
Performance fees payable 8,9         1,168,954                     -              191,365                 3,548 
Management fees payable 8,9         6,116,099            101,314            525,988          1,448,765 
Interest payable         2,498,509              31,682              65,382                       -  
Dividend payable         3,899,532              49,407            445,428          1,893,759 
Liquidation fees payable              19,772                     -                        -                         -  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,9         8,479,175            134,994            767,532          1,048,396 
Total Liabilit ies (excluding Net Assets Attributable
to Redeemable Participating Shareholders)     561,748,216         6,188,311       17,916,334      178,709,451 

Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders  7,795,320,200     114,678,305     801,377,432      827,958,242 
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*Man GLG
Global Equity

Alternative

Man AHL Multi
Strategy

Alternative
Man AHL

TargetRisk

Man GLG
European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative

Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative

Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging
 Equity

Man GLG
 Global

Emerging
Markets Debt

Total Return
  US$ US$   US$ US$ US$

           162,680        47,346,921         85,307,646           48,898,072          1,189,686           7,060,275     259,452,238 
                  193        26,798,642       121,123,428         187,407,321        43,515,331         18,851,509     116,207,154 
                     -               401,104                        -                            -                        -                          -                       -  

                     -                        -                          -           409,188,457        20,609,821         44,784,594                     -  
                     -          21,374,580       403,222,676                          -                        -             4,991,228  2,980,209,660 
                     -          17,800,252         23,020,452           22,689,774          1,988,569              467,484     126,332,308 
                     -                   3,572                  8,316                         30                      -                          -              107,636 

                    80                 2,073           1,005,301                          -                 17,232                19,873         2,610,383 
                     -                 83,179                        -                    39,860                      -                100,312                     -  

             31,458                      -                315,172                  10,179               61,963                87,680         1,222,686 
           194,411      113,810,323       634,002,991         668,233,693        67,382,602         76,362,955  3,486,142,065 

           110,294          2,599,560           6,858,892                368,539        44,878,495         14,808,927       48,904,011 
                    87             342,866                     868                          -                        -                         10                     -  

                     -          14,896,731         12,480,342           24,683,074             637,033           2,493,979       75,165,577 
                     -                        -             2,832,850                       522                      -                          -              356,541 
                     -               807,686                        -                      1,616                      -                          -                       28 
                     -                 87,465              318,260                560,462               46,556                39,028         1,782,194 

               1,634               30,431                        -                  268,452               13,584                24,251         2,000,886 
                     -                 51,823                        -                  774,304                      -                          -                       -  

             12,922                      -                          -                            -                        -                    5,000                     -  
             69,474             153,546              658,151                650,541             182,057              140,680         3,209,132 

           194,411        18,970,108         23,149,363           27,307,510        45,757,725         17,511,875     131,418,369 

                     -          94,840,215       610,853,628         640,926,183        21,624,877         58,851,080  3,354,723,696 

 
*Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018. 
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Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative

Man
 NewSmith UK

 Equity
 Alternative

Man
 Alternative
 Style Risk

 Premia

*Man AHL
 Active

Balanced
Notes US$ £ US$ US$

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3       64,946,383       20,042,641       56,593,749          9,132,616 
Balances with brokers 3       68,538,697       16,320,084       17,380,422          3,422,597 
Due from brokers 3            456,296                     -                        -               192,795 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
  Equities and managed funds 4     116,576,450         2,197,650     196,628,941                       -  
  Interest bearing securities 4     110,735,418       71,005,292       39,825,776          2,089,829 
  Derivatives 4         7,142,989         6,209,505       36,851,923             763,293 
Subscriptions receivable              10,969                     -           2,880,680                       -  
Interest receivable            127,834                     95                      -                      163 
Dividend receivable            107,467            179,069                      -                         -  
Other assets            215,718              57,694            368,226               28,557 
Total Assets     368,858,221     116,012,030     350,529,717        15,629,850 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers 3         1,759,549         2,744,964       24,011,550             146,667 
Due to brokers 3         5,416,681                     -                  1,182               98,746 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:
  Derivatives 4         2,196,853         4,927,316       10,872,840               62,116 
Shareholder transactions                5,747                     -           2,935,315                       -  
Performance fees payable 8,9            111,191                   332                      -                         -  
Management fees payable 8,9            298,786            159,626            248,312                 9,530 
Interest payable                      -                     868                      -                         -  
Dividend payable              60,381              89,054                      -                         -  
Liquidation fees payable                      -                       -                        -                         -  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,9            381,445            117,909            419,725               30,769 
Total Liabilit ies (excluding Net Assets Attributable
to Redeemable Participating Shareholders)       10,230,633         8,040,069       38,488,924             347,828 

Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders     358,627,588     107,971,961     312,040,793        15,282,022 

 
*Man AHL Active Balanced commenced its operations on 1 November 2018. 
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Combined
Fund 

 
Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative 

 Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative 

 
Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative 

Note  US$     £    

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the beginning of the year/period 7,795,320,200      114,678,305   801,377,432    827,958,242 

Issues~     10 4,384,472,397        43,236,996   508,557,283    145,151,900 

Redemptions~     10 (4,453,373,611)      (60,867,965)  (312,253,057)   (584,122,332)

Net gain/(loss) for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders      178,388,190         1,340,706     19,822,092       (6,580,181)

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the end of the year/period  7,904,807,176  98,388,042 

 
1,017,503,750  382,407,629 

 
*Man

 NewSmith UK
 Equity

 Alternative

Man
 Alternative
 Style Risk

 Premia

Man AHL
Active

Balanced

**Man GLG
High Yield

Opportunities

Note  £ US$ US$  

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the beginning of the year/period      107,971,961     312,040,793     15,282,022                      - 

Issues~     10                         -     424,798,341   572,781,261    197,687,586 

Redemptions~     10     (107,275,089)    (109,833,397)    (22,050,968)     (35,760,377)

Net gain/(loss) for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders            (696,872)         9,759,937     12,443,268      18,386,043 

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the end of the year/period  -  636,765,674  578,455,583  180,313,252 

 
*Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 21 March 2019. 
 
**Man GLG High Yield Opportunities commenced its operations on 16 January 2019. 
 
~Includes non-cash transaction relating to switches in/out between share classes effective during the year. 
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 Man AHL
 Multi

Strategy
Alternative 

 Man AHL
TargetRisk 

 Man GLG
European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative 

 #Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative 

 #Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging
 Equity 

Man GLG Global
Emerging

Markets Debt
Total Return

Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative

 US$  US$     US$  US$  US$  US$ 

     94,840,215      610,853,628      640,926,183            21,624,877        58,851,080   3,354,723,696      358,627,588 

     22,327,043      857,273,018      246,696,636                 422,098                        -      614,124,664      286,178,590 

    (18,943,352)     (159,311,217)     (408,572,077)           (20,028,664)       (60,658,802)  (2,098,008,306)     (175,879,891)

       4,247,596      231,878,388          4,323,586             (2,018,311)          1,807,722     (158,600,943)        13,519,566 

 102,471,502  1,540,693,817  483,374,328  -  -  1,712,239,111  482,445,853 

 
*Man GLG

 Credit Multi-
Strategy

Alternative

*Man GLG
 Event Driven

Alternative

*Man GLG
 Global Debt
Total Return

*Man GLG
 High Yield

Opportunities DE

*Man GLG
US Absolute

Alpha

US$ US$ US$   US$

                     -                        -                        -                             -                        - 

     33,861,856      123,083,899        16,001,120            50,001,000        20,000,000 

      (4,030,317)       (23,521,176)         (6,000,000)                             -                        - 

          803,473          1,871,109               71,767                 709,456                        - 

 30,635,012  101,433,832  10,072,887  50,710,456  20,000,000 
 

 
#Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative and Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity ceased their operations on 17 September 2019 
and 7 February 2019 respectively. 
 
*Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global Debt Total Return, Man GLG High Yield 
Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced their operations on 1 April 2019, 2 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 22 
November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively. 
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 Combined
Fund 

 
Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative 

 Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative 

 Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative 

Note  US$     £    

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the beginning of the year/period 6,085,487,062        64,890,816   209,754,211    676,833,006 

Issues~     10 5,396,347,230      108,157,698   769,138,997    738,880,758 

Redemptions~     10 (3,275,728,288)      (58,479,008)  (204,229,866)   (537,232,477)

Net (loss)/gain for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders     (410,785,804)            108,799     26,714,090     (50,523,045)

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the end of the year/period  7,795,320,200  114,678,305  801,377,432  827,958,242 

 
 

Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative

Man
 NewSmith UK

 Equity
 Alternative

Man
Alternative
Style Risk

Premia

*Man AHL
Active

Balanced
Note  US$  £ US$ US$

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the beginning of the year/period      157,624,464     105,754,567     33,823,632                      - 

Issues~     10      309,678,645                       -   516,718,364      15,120,315 

Redemptions~     10       (93,888,083)        (3,598,188)  (205,469,889)                      - 

Net (loss)/gain for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders       (14,787,438)         5,815,582    (33,031,314)           161,707 

Net assets attributable to Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders at the end of the year/period  358,627,588  107,971,961  312,040,793  15,282,022 

 
*Man AHL Active Balanced commenced its operations on 1 November 2018. 
 
~Includes non-cash transaction relating to switches in/out between share classes effective during the year. 
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 *Man GLG
Global Equity

Alternative 

 Man AHL Multi
Strategy

Alternative 
 Man AHL

TargetRisk 

 Man GLG
European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative 

 Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative 

 Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging Equity 

Man GLG
 Global

Emerging
Markets Debt

Total Return
    US$  US$     US$  US$  US$ 

     10,812,917      163,240,918      139,121,466          510,919,233      312,182,601      106,962,123   3,228,553,651 

                     -          8,799,248      711,990,081          349,712,835        74,191,288        10,860,321   1,308,244,807 

    (10,939,316)       (73,267,249)     (218,909,130)         (213,617,675)     (342,320,396) (41,387,714)      (1,054,057,023) 

          126,399         (3,932,702)       (21,348,789)             (6,088,210)       (22,428,616)       (17,583,650)     (128,017,739)

 -  94,840,215  610,853,628  640,926,183  21,624,877  58,851,080  3,354,723,696 

 
*Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018. 
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Combined
Fund 

 
Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative 

 Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative 

 
Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative 

Notes  US$     £    
Income
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss 7      275,611,244         2,957,539       42,648,864       10,260,846 
Expense reimbursement          8,966,669            264,820            831,430                        - 
Other income             450,843              17,839              10,077            265,039 

 285,028,756  3,240,198  43,490,371  10,525,885 

Other comprehensive income
Adjustment to foreign currency on aggregation 2 (o)        17,836,359  -  -  - 

 17,836,359  -  -  - 

Less Expenses
Management fees 8,9        65,150,666         1,172,031         7,327,319       10,632,978 
Administration fees 8,9        22,830,427            337,428         2,847,017         1,595,051 
Performance fees 8,9        22,418,863              88,943       12,739,664            151,045 
Other expenses          2,704,291            106,006            144,563            371,758 
Research fees 9          2,324,392                        -                        -         2,060,118 
Depositary fees 8          2,112,557              89,919            165,033            324,477 
Legal fees             287,815                7,636              16,718              19,869 
Audit fees             200,049              13,360              20,847                7,667 
Transaction and brokerage costs               61,965                        -                        -                        - 
Directors’ fees 8,9               50,378                1,490                5,219                3,721 
Liquidation expenses                (1,616)                        -                        -                        - 

 118,139,787  1,816,813  23,266,380  15,166,684 

Finance cost
Distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares          2,242,011                        -              31,672            533,020 

 2,242,011  -  31,672  533,020 

Withholding tax          4,095,127              82,679            370,227         1,406,362 

Net gain/(loss) for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders  178,388,190  1,340,706  19,822,092 (6,580,181) 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year. 
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 Man AHL
 Multi

Strategy
Alternative 

 Man AHL
TargetRisk 

 Man GLG
European
Mid-Cap

 Equity
Alternative 

 #Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative 

 #Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging
 Equity 

Man GLG
 Global

Emerging
Markets Debt

Total Return

 Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative 

 US$  US$     US$  US$ US$ US$

          7,424,123       241,376,062       12,516,576            (1,790,132)        1,946,148    (136,353,663)         22,638,346 
                        -           1,665,880                       -                  63,454             97,569         3,650,900              466,292 
                        -                          -              78,395                            -                       -                       1                          - 

 7,424,123  243,041,942  12,594,971  (1,726,678 )  2,043,717 (132,702,762)         23,104,638 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

          1,021,289           7,321,478         6,180,157                181,213             21,613       16,724,758           4,171,498 
             276,255           3,262,988         1,816,867                  40,848               7,887         7,974,399           1,297,981 
          1,473,984                          -            238,922                            -                       -                     48           3,485,399 
               94,515              310,143            163,535                  67,193           142,308            505,753              162,813 
                        -                          -                       -                            -                       -                       -                          - 
               30,430              192,629            150,652                  10,727             24,477            598,119                87,137 
                 9,718                42,621              13,122                        (49)               1,258              55,299                15,572 
               12,410                23,757              10,123                   (2,863)             11,188                4,589                16,091 
               28,803                  3,695                       -                            -                       -              19,866                          - 
                 1,436                  6,243                3,944                    1,064                       -              15,350                  3,114 
                        -                          -                       -                   (6,500)                       -                       -                          - 

 2,948,840  11,163,554  8,577,322  291,633  208,731  25,898,181  9,239,605 

                        -                          -                       -                            -  -                       -                          - 
 -  -  -  -  -  -                          - 

             227,687                          -           (305,937)                            -             27,264                       -              345,467 

 4,247,596  231,878,388  4,323,586  (2,018,311 )  1,807,722 (158,600,943) 13,519,566 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year. 
 
#Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative and Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity ceased their operations on 17 September 2019 
and 7 February 2019 respectively. 
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#Man
 NewSmith UK

 Equity
 Alternative

Man
 Alternative
 Style Risk

 Premia

Man AHL
Active

Balanced

*Man GLG
High Yield

Opportunities
Notes £ US$ US$  

Income
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss 7            (344,888)       16,671,972       13,242,825       20,435,514 
Expense Reimbursement               30,470            903,385            184,500            238,485 
Other income               13,218                   624                        -              14,000 

           (301,200)       17,575,981       13,427,325       20,687,999 

Other comprehensive income
Adjustment to foreign currency on aggregation 2 (o)  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

Less Expenses
Management fees 8,9             296,166         4,299,874            630,900            374,299 
Administration fees 8,9               51,758         1,284,306            250,382            330,025 
Performance fees 8,9                         -              89,588                        -                        - 
Other expenses               35,224            213,400              53,516              63,441 
Research fees 9                         -                        -                        -                        - 
Depositary fees 8                 3,564            226,112              15,356              32,601 
Legal fees                 2,474              23,231              20,264              23,594 
Audit fees                 8,319              15,844              12,503                7,038 
Transaction and brokerage costs                         -                9,303                        -                   229 
Directors’ fees 8,9                         -                2,496                1,136                1,347 
Liquidation expenses                 3,826 -                                              -                        - 

            401,331         6,164,154            984,057            832,574 

Finance cost
Distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares                         -                        -                        -         1,433,500 

                        -                        -                        -         1,433,500 

Withholding tax                (5,659)         1,651,890                        -              35,882 

Net gain/(loss) for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders (696,872) 9,759,937 12,443,268 18,386,043 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year. 
 
#Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 21 March 2019. 
 
*Man GLG High Yield Opportunities commenced its operations on 16 January 2019. 
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*Man GLG
 Credit Multi-

Strategy
Alternative

*Man GLG
 Event Driven

Alternative

*Man GLG
 Global Debt
Total Return

*Man GLG
 High Yield

Opportunities DE

*Man GLG
US Absolute

Alpha
US$ US$ US$   US$

          1,257,271           2,569,872              98,056                745,875                       - 
             121,299                67,094              54,245                  25,249                       - 
                    350                          -                       -                            -                       - 
          1,378,920           2,636,966            152,301                771,124                       - 

 -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  - 

             225,900              218,363              16,936                  27,314                       - 
               66,093                73,685              12,702                  13,656                       - 
             184,067              385,913                       -                            -                       - 
               62,473                31,925              30,237                  10,288                       - 
                        -                18,028                       -                            -                       - 
               18,298                13,237                8,960                    2,461                       - 
               12,855                  5,232                4,275                    1,019                       - 
                 6,809                  4,572                7,404                    6,930                       - 
                      22                          -                     20                            -                       - 
                 1,119                          -                       -                            -                       - 
                        -                          -                       -                            -                       - 
             577,636              750,955              80,534                  61,668                       - 

                        -                          -                       -                            -                       - 

                        -                          -                       -                            -                       - 

                (2,189)                14,902                       -                            -                       - 

803,473 1,871,109 71,767 709,456 - 
 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year. 
 
*Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global Debt Total Return, Man GLG High Yield 
Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced their operations on 1 April 2019, 2 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 22 
November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively. 
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 Combined
Fund 

 
Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative 

 Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative 

 Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative 

Notes  US$     £    
Income
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss 7     (146,119,933)         1,947,158       35,378,025      (19,657,563)
Expense reimbursement          7,790,572              67,262            546,309                        - 
Other income          2,615,072              56,221              68,454 1,368,665        

(135,714,289)  2,070,641  35,992,788 (18,288,898) 

Other comprehensive income
Adjustment to foreign currency on aggregation 2 (o)     (146,670,608)  -  -  - 

(146,670,608)  -  -  - 

Less Expenses
Management fees 8,9        72,047,473            905,029         4,302,059       19,623,797 
Administration fees 8,9        22,528,436            232,102         1,674,685         2,934,453 
Performance fees 8,9        16,001,863            701,160         2,960,504         4,241,459 
Research fees 9          2,858,812                       6                        -         2,420,307 
Other expenses          2,690,820              89,124            106,848            373,312 
Depositary fees 8          2,174,314              48,971            108,288            449,124 
Legal fees             277,501             (33,374)              20,386             (18,620)
Audit fees             231,574                6,887              12,557                8,119 
Directors’ fees 8,9               53,152                   523                2,452                7,244 
Transaction and brokerage costs               46,126                        -                        -                6,407 
Liquidation expenses                 5,000                        -                        -                        - 

 118,915,071  1,950,428  9,187,779  30,045,602 

Finance cost
Distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares          5,833,248                        -                        -              66,562 

 5,833,248  -  -  66,562 

Withholding tax          3,652,588              11,414              90,919         2,121,983 

Net (loss)/gain for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders (410,785,804) 108,799 26,714,090 (50,523,045) 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year.  
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 *Man GLG
Global Equity

Alternative 

 Man AHL Multi
Strategy

Alternative 
 Man AHL

TargetRisk 

 Man GLG
European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative 

 Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative 

 Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging 
Equity 

Man GLG Global
Emerging

Markets Debt
Total Return

    US$  US$     US$  US$ US$

             159,388             (923,120)      (17,632,860)             7,021,026     (19,724,982)      (16,330,629)        (95,568,652)
                 1,666                          -            844,918                            -           127,332            294,745           4,457,749 
               49,401                  8,733                       -                  69,149                  293 1,128                            604,500 

 210,455 (914,387) (16,787,942)  7,090,175 (19,597,357) (16,034,756) (90,506,403) 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

                 7,102           1,284,779         2,740,185             6,370,689        1,890,589            731,404         20,544,052 
                    723              349,948         1,415,106             1,871,232           593,742            254,404           9,803,858 
               11,521              842,652                       -             4,390,567                  546                       -                  4,388 
                        -                          -                       4                            -                       -                       -                          - 
               67,337              221,449            254,643                132,846           129,134            212,402              574,459 
                (5,946)                37,308            103,463                151,992           162,716              88,812              633,924 
                 2,760                12,462              28,796                    7,251             29,891              24,898                83,106 
                    285                  8,808              15,734                  17,176             22,315                8,383                70,555 
                        -                  1,022                2,769                    4,495               2,326                   714                25,039 
                        -                16,310                   147                            -                       -                2,123                17,328 
                        -                          -                       -                            -                       -                5,000                          - 

 83,782  2,774,738  4,560,847  12,946,248  2,831,259  1,328,140  31,756,709 

                        -                          -                       -                            -                       -  -           5,754,627 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  5,754,627 

                    274              243,577                       -                232,137                       -            220,754                          - 

126,399 (3,932,702) (21,348,789) (6,088,210) (22,428,616) (17,583,650) (128,017,739) 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year. 
 
*Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018. 
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 Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative 

Man
 NewSmith UK

 Equity
 Alternative

Man
 Alternative
Style Risk

Premia

#Man AHL
Active

Balanced
Notes US$ £ US$ US$

Income
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss 7       (10,939,063)         7,951,519      (30,612,679)            183,588 
Expense Reimbursement             360,087            206,702            590,130              28,557 
Other income               77,642                5,673                   720                        - 

      (10,501,334)         8,163,894      (30,021,829)            212,145 

Other comprehensive income
Adjustment to foreign currency on aggregation 2 (o)  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

Less Expenses
Management fees 8,9          2,731,773         1,921,639         2,014,448              17,268 
Administration fees 8,9             884,193            321,766            602,693                6,915 
Performance fees 8,9             162,423                   332                        -                        - 
Research fees 9                        7                        -                        -                        - 
Other expenses             131,767              40,098            173,029              15,026 
Depositary fees 8               70,151              20,130            144,472                1,127 
Legal fees               25,427              29,312              53,468                2,671 
Audit fees               11,616              10,123              18,094                7,431 
Directors’ fees 8,9                 1,738                   865                   631                        - 
Transaction and brokerage costs                         -                        -                2,650                        - 
Liquidation expenses                         -                        - -                                              - 

         4,019,095         2,344,265         3,009,485              50,438 

Finance cost
Distributions to holders of Redeemable 
Participating Shares                         -                        -                        -                        - 

                        -                        -                        -                        - 

Withholding tax             267,009                4,047                        -                        - 

Net (loss)/gain for the year/period attributable to 
Redeemable Participating Shareholders  (14,787,438 )  5,815,582  (33,031,314 )  161,707 

 
All recognised gains and losses for the year/period arose solely from continuing operations, except for Portfolios that ceased operations 
during the year.  
 
#Man AHL Active Balanced commenced its operations on 1 November 2018. 
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 Combined
 Fund 

 Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative 

 Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative 

 Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative 

 US$     £    
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net gain/(loss) for the period attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders       178,388,190          1,340,706     19,822,092      (6,580,181)

Adjustments to reconcile net gain/(loss) for the year/period 
attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders to 
net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities:
(Increase)/decrease in balances with brokers - collateral        (29,418,280)            (737,800)         (943,702)          988,583 
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers           2,847,547             582,768         (486,601)       8,183,257 
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss:
   Equities and managed funds       182,522,936       (12,827,672)          893,087   469,331,830 
   Interest bearing securities       689,283,697        26,044,035  (162,537,746)    (52,116,080)
   Derivatives       115,136,385          1,525,084    (14,764,954)     42,516,567 
(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable          (3,878,594)                      -           (136,813)            20,662 
(Increase)/decrease in dividend receivable             (562,192)               38,157      (1,026,106)          398,837 
(Increase)/decrease in other assets          (2,306,239)              (81,302)         (280,148)            11,366 
(Decrease)/increase in balances due to brokers - collateral          (4,604,162)         (1,977,619)       3,473,408    (22,724,388)
(Decrease)/increase in due to brokers        (19,030,478)         (1,953,982)           (19,493)    (17,773,777)
Increase in securities sold under agreement to repurchase         21,125,126                      -                      -                      -  
Increase/(decrease) in performance fees payable           9,257,261               85,741       4,041,947          139,848 
(Decrease)/increase in management fees payable               (73,921)              (16,531)          161,391         (763,768)
(Decrease)/increase in interest payable             (673,018)                 3,508          472,612          160,592 
(Decrease)/increase in dividend payable          (1,290,208)                 4,170          221,585         (827,342)
(Decrease)/increase in liquidation fees payable               (14,772)                      -                      -                      -  
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities              131,064               42,293          228,164         (413,745)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities    1,136,840,342        12,071,556  (150,881,277)   420,552,261 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares~    4,357,203,153        43,248,664   500,572,375   145,091,491 
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares~   (4,437,748,326)       (60,701,641)  (298,937,891)  (584,019,153)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities        (80,545,173)       (17,452,977)   201,634,484  (438,927,662)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    1,056,295,169         (5,381,421)     50,753,207    (18,375,401)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period    1,328,809,158        27,955,253   176,505,788     95,031,218 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period    2,385,104,327        22,573,832   227,258,995     76,655,817 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 
consists of:
Cash and cash equivalents    1,624,479,590          4,682,104     85,884,835     39,767,434 
Balances with brokers - without collateral       794,512,065        18,391,641   141,727,658     46,521,191 
Balances due to brokers - without collateral        (33,887,328)            (499,913)         (353,498)      (9,632,808)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period    2,385,104,327        22,573,832   227,258,995     76,655,817 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Dividend received (net of withholding tax)         86,280,891          1,538,060     27,250,516     34,857,852 
Dividend paid on short securities        (64,861,010)         (1,459,661)      (9,377,129)    (29,963,644)
Interest received (net of withholding tax)         44,219,373               32,528       3,619,166            36,123 
Interest paid        (35,749,554)            (676,615)      (5,449,151)      (5,151,926)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders          (2,242,011)                      -             (31,672)         (533,020)

 
~Excludes non-cash transaction relating to switches in/out between share classes effective during the year. 
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 *Man GLG
Global Equity

Alternative 

 Man AHL Multi
Strategy

Alternative 
 Man AHL

TargetRisk 

 Man GLG
European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative 

 #Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative 

 #Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging
 Equity 

 Man GLG
 Global

Emerging
Markets Debt

Total Return 
    US$  US$     US$  US$  US$ 

                    -            4,247,596      231,878,388          4,323,586            (2,018,311)          1,807,722      (158,600,943)

                    23         (3,595,564)          8,354,656          9,233,275                          -          14,832,172        (13,657,838)
                    -               309,736                      -                        -                            -                        -                          -  

                    -                        -                        -         (26,195,269)           20,609,821        44,784,594                        -  
                    -            6,287,313     (682,548,183)                      -                            -            4,991,228    2,146,005,370 
                    -            2,389,629       (71,365,190)         (8,967,418)             1,351,536         (2,026,495)       116,402,474 

                    80                    794         (1,882,213)                      -                    17,232               19,873           2,405,089 
                    -                (11,980)                      -                 13,518                          -               100,312                        -  

             31,458                (6,636)            (699,777)                (3,389)                  51,725               83,253             (396,294)
                     (1)             956,433        45,076,171          5,781,075                          -         (14,807,373)        (33,139,434)
                   (87)            (250,181)                 1,036                      -                            -                       (10)                        -  

                    -                        -                        -                        -                            -                        -                          -  
                    -                (72,871)                      -                   4,957                          -                        -                        (28)
                    -                   6,483             605,323            (113,244)                 (46,556)              (39,028)             (881,508)

              (1,634)                (5,624)                      -                (12,111)                   (6,480)              (24,251)          (1,586,201)
                    -                 28,012                      -              (475,664)                          -                        -                          -  

            (12,922)                      -                        -                        -                      5,000                (5,000)                        -  
            (69,474)                (9,590)             676,416              (46,640)               (107,018)            (101,781)          (1,136,368)
            (52,557)        10,273,550     (469,903,373)       (16,457,324)           19,856,949        49,615,216    2,055,414,319 

                    -          20,303,564      850,731,219      246,593,032                422,098                      -         462,508,572 
                    -         (16,918,447)     (151,499,371)     (408,389,349)          (20,028,664)       (60,658,802)   (1,946,631,158)
                    -            3,385,117      699,231,848     (161,796,317)          (19,606,566)       (60,658,802)   (1,484,122,586)

            (52,557)        13,658,667      229,328,475     (178,253,641)                250,383       (11,043,586)       571,291,733 

             52,557        63,279,465      178,007,926      188,577,127               (173,478)        11,078,058       259,361,072 

                    -          76,938,132      407,336,401        10,323,486                  76,905               34,472       830,652,805 

                    -          51,342,196      127,570,563        20,492,590                  76,901               34,456       831,277,648 
                    -          26,795,802      280,459,794          3,049,171                           4                      19                        -  
                    -           (1,199,866)            (693,956)       (13,218,275)                          -                         (3)             (624,843)
                    -          76,938,132      407,336,401        10,323,486                  76,905               34,472       830,652,805 

                    -            2,130,651                      -            7,168,866                          -               114,891                        -  
                    -           (1,132,689)                      -         (12,502,055)                 (57,054)                      -                          -  

                    80          1,432,959        28,224,461               84,867                221,871               50,731          (6,873,434)
              (1,634)            (707,204)         (2,301,945)         (4,214,177)               (256,510)              (65,756)          (2,545,304)

                    -                        -                        -                        -                            -                        -                          -  

 
*Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018. 
 
#Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative and Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity ceased their operations on 17 September 2019 
and 7 February 2019 respectively. 
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 Man GLG
Innovation

Equity
Alternative 

 #Man
 NewSmith UK

 Equity
 Alternative 

 Man
 Alternative
 Style Risk

 Premia 

 Man AHL
 Active

Balanced 
 US$  £  US$  US$ 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net gain/(loss) for the period attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders         13,519,566            (696,872)       9,759,937     12,443,268 

Adjustments to reconcile net gain/(loss) for the year/period 
attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders to 
net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities:
(Increase)/decrease in balances with brokers - collateral           5,814,677               74,500    (11,089,441)    (25,003,639)
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers          (2,806,307)                      -                      -        (3,955,546)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss:
   Equities and managed funds      (142,372,257)          2,197,650  (208,850,662)                    -  
   Interest bearing securities        (70,816,423)        71,005,292  (130,852,762)    (90,352,215)
   Derivatives           5,006,714          1,282,189     40,127,412       4,982,098 
(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable              123,054                      95                    -               (8,027)
(Increase)/decrease in dividend receivable                 (5,545)             179,069                    -                      -  
(Increase)/decrease in other assets             (111,544)               57,694         (156,526)           (99,841)
(Decrease)/increase in balances due to brokers - collateral           6,780,600         (2,711,205)       8,817,234                    -  
(Decrease)/increase in due to brokers          (5,409,369)                      -                2,452       4,166,396 
Increase in securities sold under agreement to repurchase                        -                        -                      -                      -  
Increase/(decrease) in performance fees payable           3,208,714                      -                6,236                    -  
(Decrease)/increase in management fees payable                82,741            (159,626)          732,575          307,581 
(Decrease)/increase in interest payable                        -                        32                    -                      -  
(Decrease)/increase in dividend payable               (52,646)              (89,054)                    -                      -  
(Decrease)/increase in liquidation fees payable                        -                        -                      -                      -  
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities              109,025              (72,417)          302,279          216,594 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities      (186,929,000)        71,067,347  (291,201,266)    (97,303,331)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares~       230,905,690                      -     424,163,127   572,781,261 
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares~      (117,194,304)     (107,275,089)  (112,755,938)    (22,050,968)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities       113,711,386     (107,275,089)   311,407,189   550,730,293 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents        (73,217,614)       (36,207,742)     20,205,923   453,426,962 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period       126,230,014        36,254,466     51,421,620     12,393,433 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period         53,012,400               46,724     71,627,543   465,820,395 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 
consists of:
Cash and cash equivalents         40,526,575               61,164     29,436,376   315,439,371 
Balances with brokers - without collateral         13,135,405                        1     42,635,626   150,629,190 
Balances due to brokers - without collateral             (649,580)              (14,441)         (444,459)         (248,166)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period         53,012,400               46,724     71,627,543   465,820,395 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Dividend received (net of withholding tax)           1,821,573             233,013                    -                      -  
Dividend paid on short securities          (1,974,545)            (235,974)                    -                      -  
Interest received (net of withholding tax)           3,235,880               37,241       6,290,249          688,385 
Interest paid             (966,093)              (38,873)      (8,407,165)           (37,131)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders                        -                        -                      -                      -  

 
#Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 21 March 2019. 
 
~Excludes non-cash transaction relating to switches in/out between share classes effective during the year. 
 
 
 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Statement of cash flows (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
 

62 
 

 
*Man GLG
High Yield

Opportunities 

 *Man GLG
 Credit Multi-

Strategy
Alternative 

 
*Man GLG

 Event Driven
Alternative 

 
*Man GLG

Global Debt
Total Return 

 *Man GLG
 High Yield

Opportunities DE 

 
*Man GLG

US Absolute
Alpha 

    US$  US$  US$     US$ 

      18,386,043             803,473          1,871,109               71,767                709,456                      -  

       (2,433,786)         (4,568,874)         (6,865,180)            (174,892)            (1,141,021)                      -  
                    -                        -              (131,811)                      -                            -                        -  

                    -                (65,820)       (42,717,376)                      -                            -                        -  
   (184,092,126)       (35,514,340)       (13,459,071)         (7,446,270)          (40,816,765)                      -  
       (2,532,071)             826,696         (1,881,158)            (171,937)                399,141                      -  
       (2,997,627)            (306,382)                   (531)              (22,822)               (597,471)                      -  

                    -                        -                (28,013)                      -                            -                        -  
          (266,784)            (169,267)              (67,094)              (54,245)                 (25,249)                      -  
        1,909,026             272,261                      -                        -                            -                        -  

                    -                        -            3,235,304          1,845,625                          -                        -  
      10,172,541          9,706,449                      -                        -                            -                        -  

                    -               174,208             317,735                      -                            -                        -  
             47,945               25,689               55,977                 3,417                  25,670                      -  
             84,445               49,497                      -                        -                    11,736                      -  

                    -                   3,124               42,555                      -                            -                        -  
                    -                        -                        -                        -                            -                        -  

           198,840               85,944             108,261               60,567                  34,354                      -  
   (161,523,554)       (28,677,342)       (59,519,293)         (5,888,790)          (41,400,149)                      -  

    197,599,470        33,861,856      123,083,898        16,001,120           50,001,000                      -  
     (35,614,460)         (4,030,317)       (23,506,308)         (6,000,000)                          -                        -  
    161,985,010        29,831,539        99,577,590        10,001,120           50,001,000                      -  

           461,456          1,154,197        40,058,297          4,112,330             8,600,851                      -  

                    -                        -                        -                        -                            -                        -  

           461,456          1,154,197        40,058,297          4,112,330             8,600,851                      -  

           495,470             931,843        26,761,913          4,112,330             8,600,851                      -  
             13,253             279,515        16,513,682                      -                            -                        -  
            (47,267)              (57,161)         (3,217,298)                      -                            -                        -  
           461,456          1,154,197        40,058,297          4,112,330             8,600,851                      -  

                    -                 12,079             170,801                      -                            -                        -  
                    -              (157,867)              (64,458)                      -                            -                        -  

        3,356,592          1,000,253             129,516               13,374               (389,461)                      -  
       (1,267,607)            (594,361)            (151,138)                (9,363)                 (51,839)                      -  
       (1,433,500)                      -                        -                        -                            -                        -  

 
 
**Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative, Man GLG Event Driven Alternative, Man GLG Global 
Debt Total Return, Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced their operations on 16 January 
2019, 1 April 2019, 2 July 2019, 1 August 2019, 22 November 2019 and 31 December 2019 respectively. 
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 Combined
 Fund 

 Man GLG
European

Alpha
Alternative 

 Man GLG
Alpha Select

Alternative 

 Man GLG
European

Equity
Alternative 

 US$     £    
Cash flows from operating activit ies:
Net (loss)/gain for the period attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders      (410,785,804)             108,799     26,714,090    (50,523,045)

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/gain for the year/period 
attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders to 
net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities:
(Increase)/decrease in balances with brokers - collateral        (74,231,951)            (222,674)    (18,939,477)       6,960,563 
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers           2,890,535            (311,848)                 442       2,759,336 
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss:
   Equities and managed funds         17,093,182         (9,050,174)       1,203,675  (155,178,120)
   Interest bearing securities   (1,552,301,744)       (26,044,035)  (477,846,897)                    -  
   Derivatives      (161,562,713)            (306,512)       1,959,593    (47,119,794)
Decrease/(increase) in interest receivable           3,137,849             119,027         (614,852)          178,693 
(Increase)/decrease in dividend receivable               (67,680)              (43,413)         (115,662)           (50,977)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets             (568,530)              (42,152)         (140,547)           (33,842)
Increase/(decrease) in balances due to brokers - collateral         73,700,534          1,807,688      (3,792,942)     23,395,573 
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers           5,102,587          1,077,812            19,493         (203,736)
(Decrease)/increase in performance fees payable        (12,642,889)            (254,243)      (2,139,614)      (5,563,842)
Increase/(decrease) in management fees payable           1,163,766               32,193          394,728          389,830 
Increase/(decrease) in interest payable              853,340               31,682            55,701         (196,370)
Increase/(decrease) in dividend payable           1,095,769               39,201          188,633          679,672 
Increase/(decrease) in liquidation fees payable                  7,050                      -                      -                      -  
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities           3,919,498                 4,136          624,325          410,865 
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities   (2,103,197,201)       (33,054,513)  (472,429,311)  (224,095,194)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares~    5,397,099,525      108,165,551   768,724,262   687,875,558 
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares~   (3,270,335,384)       (58,465,457)  (203,847,357)  (486,281,005)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activit ies    2,126,764,141        49,700,094   564,876,905   201,594,553 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents         23,566,940        16,645,581     92,447,594    (22,500,641)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period    1,305,242,218        11,309,672     84,058,194   117,531,859 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period    1,328,809,158        27,955,253   176,505,788     95,031,218 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 
consists of:
Cash and cash equivalents       730,548,079          4,460,912     43,319,924     50,414,657 
Balances with brokers - without collateral       684,945,485        23,946,709   134,065,783     53,464,836 
Balances due to brokers - without collateral        (86,684,406)            (452,368)         (879,919)      (8,848,275)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period    1,328,809,158        27,955,253   176,505,788     95,031,218 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Dividend received (net of withholding tax)         96,710,866          1,177,530     12,843,656     50,952,640 
Dividend paid on short securities        (91,480,222)         (1,168,152)      (8,907,786)    (48,689,583)
Interest received (net of withholding tax)         49,927,962             120,934          659,083          210,328 
Interest paid        (55,629,648)            (389,684)      (2,602,968)      (8,889,323)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders           5,833,248                      -                      -             (66,562)

 
~Excludes non-cash transaction relating to switches in/out between share classes effective during the year. 
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 *Man GLG
Global Equity

Alternative 

 **Man GLG
 Cred-Eq

 Alternative 

 Man AHL Multi
Strategy

Alternative 
 Man AHL

TargetRisk 

 **Man AHL
 Volatility

 Alternative 

 Man GLG
 European

Mid-Cap Equity
Alternative 

 Man Numeric
Market Neutral

Alternative 
       US$  US$  US$     US$ 

           126,399                      -           (3,932,702)       (21,348,789)                          -           (6,088,210)        (22,428,616)

        2,541,780                      -           (9,253,277)       (24,444,651)                          -           (5,896,345)                        -  
           108,314                      -              (270,229)                      -                            -                        -                          -  

        7,370,514                      -                        -                        -                            -          35,040,031       276,634,005 
                    -                        -            4,578,461     (342,158,110)                          -                        -                          -  

            (72,344)                      -           (3,894,680)         (7,035,988)                          -           (2,995,428)        (26,364,204)
             50,040                      -                     (311)            (849,688)                          -                        -                190,867 
           103,908                      -                 50,836                      -                            -                 35,112                        -  
              (3,648)                      -                        -              (239,317)                          -                (10,179)              114,817 
                      1                      -               986,739          2,880,395                          -               316,034                        -  
          (110,982)                      -               211,944                    868                          -                (45,309)                        -  
       (1,382,134)                      -               687,719                      -                            -              (951,211)                    (385)
            (76,880)                      -                (74,847)             232,153                          -               141,565             (174,241)
               1,634                      -                 30,431                      -                            -              (126,657)             (115,964)
          (208,524)                      -                (49,557)                      -                            -               443,068                        -  
               8,729                      -                        -                        -                     (5,014)                      -                          -  
          (105,912)              (24,863)              (28,811)             567,358                 (10,139)             296,641               (60,712)
        8,350,895              (24,863)       (10,958,284)     (392,395,769)                 (15,153)        20,159,112       227,795,567 

                    -                        -            8,861,759      668,383,089                          -        340,082,132         76,321,424 
     (10,982,768)                      -         (73,305,192)     (172,099,050)                          -       (203,954,903)      (342,353,194)
     (10,982,768)                      -         (64,443,433)      496,284,039                          -        136,127,229      (266,031,770)

       (2,631,873)              (24,863)       (75,401,717)      103,888,270                 (15,153)      156,286,341        (38,236,203)

        2,684,430               24,863      138,681,182        74,119,656                  15,153        32,290,786         38,062,725 

             52,557                      -          63,279,465      178,007,926                          -        188,577,127             (173,478)

           162,680                      -          47,346,921        85,307,646                          -          48,898,072           1,189,686 
                  170                      -          17,545,365        96,678,777                          -        139,731,560         43,515,331 
          (110,293)                      -           (1,612,821)         (3,978,497)                          -                (52,505)        (44,878,495)
             52,557                      -          63,279,465      178,007,926                          -        188,577,127             (173,478)

           126,569                      -            2,232,543                      -                            -            7,962,409                        -  
          (216,896)                      -           (1,405,758)                      -                            -         (11,415,534)             (904,583)
             67,383                      -            1,410,982          9,156,473                          -               235,062           4,466,051 
            (35,075)                      -           (1,030,243)          1,264,560                          -           (4,445,080)          (5,105,749)

                    -                        -                        -                        -                            -                        -                          -  

 
*Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018. 
 
**Man GLG Cred-Eq Alternative and Man AHL Volatility Alternative ceased their operations on 29 June 2017 and 4 August 2017 
respectively. 
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 Man GLG
Unconstrained

Emerging Equity 

 Man GLG
 Global

Emerging
Markets Debt

Total Return 

 Man GLG
 Innovation

 Equity
 Alternative 

 ***Man GLG
 Global

 Fundamental
 Equity 

 US$  US$  US$    
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss)/gain for the period attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders        (17,583,650)     (128,017,739)    (14,787,438)                    -  

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/gain for the year/period 
attributable to Redeemable Participating Shareholders to 
net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities:
(Increase)/decrease in balances with brokers - collateral        (14,421,398)       (10,966,727)      (1,620,884)                    -  
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers                        -                        -           (379,776)                    -  
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss:
   Equities and managed funds         41,339,822                      -      (53,486,338)                    -  
   Interest bearing securities           3,990,193     (466,157,230)    (86,773,270)                    -  
   Derivatives           3,869,962       (39,178,775)      (5,552,804)                    -  
Decrease/(increase) in interest receivable                 (3,595)          4,291,760         (127,834)                 676 
(Increase)/decrease in dividend receivable              140,552                      -             (95,522)                    -  
(Increase)/decrease in other assets              176,209               62,571           (88,589)              8,690 
Increase/(decrease) in balances due to brokers - collateral         14,700,934        27,723,090          319,160                    -  
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers             (200,263)                      -         5,368,493                    -  
(Decrease)/increase in performance fees payable                        -                (17,427)         (615,059)                    -  
Increase/(decrease) in management fees payable             (103,110)             161,296          137,432                    -  
Increase/(decrease) in interest payable                11,537          1,230,976             (3,975)                    -  
Increase/(decrease) in dividend payable                        -                        -              43,513                    -  
Increase/(decrease) in liquidation fees payable                  5,000                      -                      -               (2,226)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities                 (3,215)          1,409,855          259,036             (6,657)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities         31,918,978     (609,458,350)  (157,403,855)                 483 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issue of Redeemable Participating Shares~         10,900,711   1,304,749,728   309,765,612                    -  
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares~        (41,392,036)  (1,049,787,598)    (93,925,764)                    -  
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities        (30,491,325)      254,962,130   215,839,848                    -  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents           1,427,653     (354,496,220)     58,435,993                 483 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period           9,650,405      613,857,292     67,794,021                (483)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period         11,078,058      259,361,072   126,230,014                    -  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 
consists of:
Cash and cash equivalents           7,060,275      259,452,238     64,946,383                    -  
Balances with brokers - without collateral           4,019,337                      -       62,724,020                    -  
Balances due to brokers - without collateral                 (1,554)              (91,166)      (1,440,389)                    -  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period         11,078,058      259,361,072   126,230,014                    -  

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Dividend received (net of withholding tax)           2,078,635                      -         1,487,362                    -  
Dividend paid on short securities                        -                        -        (1,319,068)                    -  
Interest received (net of withholding tax)              221,785        27,630,689       1,744,936                 676 
Interest paid             (569,154)       (25,532,706)         (688,847)                    -  
Cash dividends paid to shareholders                        -           (5,754,627)                    -                      -  

 
***Man GLG Global Fundamental Equity ceased its operations on 31 May 2017. 
 
~Excludes non-cash transaction relating to switches in/out between share classes effective during the year. 
 
 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Statement of cash flows (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2018 
 

66 
 

 Man
NewSmith UK

Equity
Alternative 

 Man
Alternative
Style Risk

Premia 

 #Man AHL
 Active

Balanced 
 £  US$  US$ 

        5,815,582       (33,031,314)             161,707 

           490,238                      -                (15,113)
                    -                        -              (192,795)

        4,483,391     (176,327,668)                      - 
       (5,255,175)       (33,840,667)         (2,089,829)
          (728,150)       (25,430,656)            (701,177)
                   (95)                      -                     (163)
          (129,871)                      -                        - 
              (6,465)            (298,571)              (28,557)
        1,664,178          1,458,999                      - 
              (4,644)                 1,182               98,746 
                  332                      -                        - 
          (119,319)             194,409                 9,530 
              (3,329)                      -                        - 
            (73,459)                      -                        - 

                    -                        -                        - 
             40,359             346,424               30,769 
        6,173,573     (266,927,862)         (2,726,882)

                    -        485,938,620        15,120,315 
       (3,598,188)     (174,635,510)                      - 
       (3,598,188)      311,303,110        15,120,315 

        2,575,385        44,375,248        12,393,433 

      33,679,081          7,046,372                      - 

      36,254,466        51,421,620        12,393,433 

      20,042,641        56,593,749          9,132,616 
      16,245,584        17,380,422          3,407,484 
            (33,759)       (22,552,551)            (146,667)
      36,254,466        51,421,620        12,393,433 

        1,886,235                        8                      - 
       (1,825,491)            (708,142)                      - 
           106,725          3,460,331               18,165 
          (356,240)         (3,735,357)                   (841)

                    -                        -                        - 
 

 
#Man AHL Active Balanced commenced its operations on 1 November 2018. 
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1. General 
 
Man Funds VI plc (the �Fund�) was incorporated as an investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-
funds under the laws of Ireland as a public limited company on 28 November 2007 under registration number 449860. The Fund has 
been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the �Central Bank�) as an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities 
(�UCITS�), pursuant to the European Communities (Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as 
amended) (the �UCITS Regulations�) and Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for 
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2015 (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations"). The Fund�s investment 
manager is GLG LLC for GLG LLC Portfolios, GLG Partners LP for Man GLG Portfolios, AHL Partners LLP for Man AHL Portfolios, 
Numeric Investors LLC for Numeric Portfolios and Man Solutions Limited for Man Solution Portfolios (the �Investment Managers�). The 
Fund�s registered office is at 70 Sir John Rogerson�s Quay, Dublin, Ireland. The Fund has no employees.  
 
The Fund is structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds (each a �Portfolio�) which means that different 
Portfolios may be created from time to time by the Directors with the approval of the Central Bank. Each Portfolio will be represented by 
a different series of Redeemable Participating Shares (the �Shares�) and will be invested in accordance with the investment objectives 
and policies applicable to such Portfolio. As at 31 December 2019 the Fund was comprised of twenty five Portfolios. 
 
GLG LLC Portfolio 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return and Man GLG Global Debt Total Return (commenced operations on 1 August 
2019). 
 
Man GLG Portfolios 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative, Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative, Man GLG European Equity Alternative, Man GLG Global 
Equity Alternative (ceased operations on 9 January 2018), Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Enhanced (ceased operations on 23 
December 2016), Man GLG Cred-Eq Alternative (ceased operations on 29 June 2017), Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative, 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity (ceased operations on 7 February 2019), Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, Man GLG 
Global Fundamental Equity (ceased operations on 31 May 2017), Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative (ceased operations on 21 March 
2019), Man GLG High Yield Opportunities (commenced operations on 16 January 2019), Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative 
(commenced operations on 1 April 2019), Man GLG Event Driven Alternative (commenced operations on 2 July 2019), Man GLG High 
Yield Opportunities DE (commenced operations on 22 November 2019) and Man GLG US Absolute Alpha (commenced operations on 
31 December 2019). 
 
Man AHL Portfolios 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative, Man AHL Directional Equities Alternative (ceased operations on 30 September 2016), Man AHL 
TargetRisk, Man AHL Volatility Alternative (ceased operations on 4 August 2017) and Man AHL Active Balanced (commenced operations 
on 1 November 2018). 
 
Numeric Portfolio 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative (ceased operations on 17 September 2019). 
 
Man Solutions Portfolio 
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia.  
 
All Classes of Redeemable Participating Shares are together referred to as the ��Redeemable Participating Shares�� or ��Shares��.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, the following Portfolios were registered with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA: Man GLG 
European Alpha Alternative, Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative, Man GLG European Equity Alternative, Man AHL Multi Strategy 
Alternative, Man AHL TargetRisk, Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative, Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative, Man GLG 
Unconstrained Emerging Equity, Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return, Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, Man 
Alternative Style Risk Premia, Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative and Man GLG Event Driven 
Alternative. 
 
The investment objectives and policies of each active Portfolio are detailed below. 
 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative�s investment objective is to provide a positive absolute return for investors while maintaining a low 
volatility, regardless of market conditions, through stock selection and the utilising of long/short strategies. 
 
The Portfolio invests primarily in securities of issuers in Europe or of issuers which derive a substantial part of their revenues from 
activities in Europe. The Portfolio invests predominantly in common stocks and other equity and equity linked instruments of such 
issuers, including, without limitation, equity derivatives.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DN EUR, Class DN H GBP, Class DN H USD, Class IN EUR, Class IN H GBP, Class IN H USD and 
Class INF EUR were in operation. 
 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative�s investment objective is to provide investors with positive returns through investments primarily in the 
United Kingdom securities markets. 
 
The Portfolio invests primarily in common stock and other equity and equity-linked securities (which may include but are not limited to 
such instruments as options and swaps) of issuers in the United Kingdom or of issuers which derive a substantial part of their revenues 
from activities in the United Kingdom and may invest the remainder in equity and equity linked securities of issuers and on markets 
located outside the United Kingdom. Although it is not intended to provide for any geographic or sectorial specialisation other than the 
above, it is anticipated that the Portfolio�s investments will primarily be in mid and large capitalisation companies including companies in 
the FTSE 100 Index.  
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1. General (continued) 
 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative (continued) 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DL GBP, Class DL H EUR, Class DL H USD, Class DNY H EUR, Class IL GBP, Class IL GBP Dist, Class 
IL H EUR, Class IL H EUR Dist, Class IL H SEK, Class IL H USD, Class IL H USD Dist, Class IL U GBP, Class IN H EUR, Class IN H SEK 
and Class IN H USD were in operation. 
 
Man GLG European Equity Alternative 
Man GLG European Equity Alternative�s investment objective is to provide investors with positive returns primarily through investments in 
issuers in Europe and of issuers which derive a substantial part of their revenues from activities in Europe.  
 
The Portfolio�s policy is to achieve those returns through investments in short, medium and, to a lesser extent, long-term investment 
opportunities. This policy will be pursued through a strategy of active trading with the Portfolio primarily investing in listed equities 
including, without limitation, common stock and other equity and equity-linked securities (which may include, but are not limited to, such 
instruments as options and swaps), of issuers in Europe and of issuers which derive a substantial part of their revenues from activities in 
Europe. 
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DN EUR, Class DN H CHF, Class DN H GBP, Class DN H NOK, Class DN H SEK, Class DN H USD, 
Class DN U EUR, Class IN EUR, Class IN H GBP, Class IN H SEK, Class IN H USD, Class INU EUR Class INU H USD, Class INZ EUR, 
Class INZ EUR Dist, Class INZ H CHF Dist, Class INZ H GBP Dist, Class INZ H USD, Class INZ H USD Dist, Class IXXN EUR and Class 
IXXN H USD were in operation. 
 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative aims to achieve medium-term capital growth in all market conditions by being broadly diversified 
along system styles, asset classes, regions, and time horizons.  
 
The Portfolio seeks to achieve its objective by allocating all or substantially all of its assets in accordance with the AHL Multi-Strategy 
Programme (as described in further detail in the Prospectus). 
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DN USD, Class DN H EUR, Class DN H GBP, Class IN USD, Class IN H CHF, Class IN H EUR, Class IN 
H GBP and Class IN H SEK were in operation.  
 
Man AHL TargetRisk 
The Man AHL TargetRisk Portfolio aims to generate capital growth over the medium to long term. 
 
The Portfolio seeks to achieve its objective by allocating all or substantially all of its assets in accordance with a proprietary quantitative 
model, the �Man TargetRisk� strategy, by providing dynamic long only exposure to a range of assets and to provide an excess return 
stream with a stable level of volatility regardless of market conditions.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class D USD, Class D H CHF, Class D H EUR, Class D H GBP, Class D H SEK, Class D H SGD, Class I USD, 
Class I H CHF, Class I H EUR, Class I H GBP, Class I H JPY, Class I H SEK, Class I H SGD, Class I H (BRL) USD and Class INU USD 
were in operation. 
 
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative 
The Portfolio�s investment objective is to seek to provide an attractive risk-adjusted total return, through appreciation and income. 
 
The Portfolio seeks to achieve these returns primarily through long and synthetically short investments in equity securities or equity 
derivatives. The Portfolio may invest up to 20% of its Net Asset Value in emerging markets or in currencies of Organisation for Economic 
Co-Ordination and Development (��OECD��) countries and/or derivatives.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DN EUR, Class DN H USD, Class DNY EUR, Class IN EUR, Class IN F EUR, Class INF H GBP, Class 
INF H USD, Class IN H GBP, Class IN H SEK and Class IN H USD were in operation. 
 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative�s investment objective was to earn an average return on investment, after fees, which was 
appreciably higher than the total return (assuming reinvestment of dividends) in USD of the Merrill Lynch 91-day Treasury Bills Index.  
 
The Portfolio sought to apply a long/short investment strategy and intends to invest in derivatives providing long and �synthetic short� 
positions.  
 
The Portfolio ceased operations on 17 September 2019. 
 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity�s investment objective was to achieve capital gains in the medium to long-term, through 
investment in emerging market equities.  
 
The Portfolio sought to achieve the above objective primarily through investment in emerging market equities. Such equities were 
generally be listed or traded on Recognised Markets in emerging markets worldwide and the Portfolio was not having a particular 
sectoral, industry or market capitalisation focus.  
 
The Portfolio ceased operations on 7 February 2019. 
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1. General (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return�s investment objective is to achieve a return in all market conditions over the long 
term primarily through investment in a portfolio of fixed income securities denominated in local currency.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class D USD, Class D H CHF, Class D H EUR, Class D H GBP, Class D H NOK, Class DL USD, Class DL H 
EUR, Class DMF USD, Class DMF H EUR, Class DR USD Dist, Class DY USD, Class DY H EUR, Class I USD, Class I USD Dist, Class I 
H AUD, Class I H CHF, Class I H EUR, Class I H EUR Dist, Class I H GBP, Class I H SEK, Class IL USD, Class IL H EUR, Class IMF 
USD, Class IMF USD Dist, Class IMF H EUR, Class IMF H EUR Dist and Class IMF H GBP Dist were in operation. 
 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative�s investment objective is to provide investors with absolute returns by taking both long and short 
positions in equities issued by companies globally.  
 
The Portfolio seeks to apply a long/short investment strategy and intends to take full advantage of the ability to invest in derivatives 
providing long and �synthetic short� positions. 
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DN USD, Class DN H CHF, Class DN H EUR, Class DN H SEK, Class DNF H EUR, Class IN USD, Class 
INF USD, Class INF H EUR, Class INF H GBP, Class IN H CHF, Class IN H EUR, Class IN H GBP, Class IN H SEK, Class INU H EUR 
and Class INU H GBP were in operation.  
 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative�s investment objective was to maximise absolute returns.  
 
The Portfolio sought to achieve its objective by employing a long/short equity strategy.  
 
The Portfolio ceased operations on 21 March 2019. 
 
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia 
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia�s investment objective is to achieve medium-term absolute returns in all market conditions across 
liquid asset classes.  
 
The Portfolio seeks to achieve its objective by allocating all or substantially all of its assets in accordance with the Styles and Strategies 
adopted such as by investing all or part of the net proceeds of Shares in transferable securities listed or traded on Recognised Markets. 
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class D USD, Class D H DKK, Class D H EUR, Class D H NOK, Class D H SEK, Class I USD, Class I H AUD, 
Class I H CHF, Class I H EUR, Class I H GBP, Class I H JPY, Class I H SEK, Class INU H EUR and Class INU USD were in operation.  
 
Man AHL Active Balanced 
The Man AHL Active Balanced aims to generate capital growth over the medium to long term by providing dynamic exposure to a range 
of assets and to provide an excess return stream with a stable level of volatility regardless of market conditions. 
 
The Portfolio seeks to achieve its objective by allocating all or substantially all of its assets in accordance with a proprietary quantitative 
model, the �Man Active Balanced� strategy, to provide an excess return stream with a stable level of volatility regardless of market 
conditions.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class I H EUR, Class I H GBP, Class I H JPY and Class I USD were in operation. 
 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities� investment objective is to provide income and capital growth by investing directly or indirectly in fixed 
and floating rate securities worldwide. 
 
The Portfolio seeks to achieve its objective by allocating all or substantially all of its assets in accordance with the investment approach 
adopted such as by investing all or part of the net proceeds of Shares in transferable securities, exchange traded and OTC financial 
derivative instruments, money market instruments, other collective investment schemes and deposits, cash or cash equivalents.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class D EUR, Class I EUR, Class I H GBP, Class I H USD, Class IF EUR, Class IF H GBP, Class IF H GBP 
Dist, Class IF H GBP G-Dist and Class ILU H GBP G-Dist were in operation. 
 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative�s investment objective is to provide investors with an absolute return over rolling three-year 
periods independent of market conditions, with a low correlation to credit, interest rates and equities.  
 
The Portfolio seeks to apply a long/short investment strategy and intends to take full advantage of the ability to invest in derivatives 
providing long and �synthetic short� positions.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, Class DN H EUR, Class IN USD, Class IN H EUR, Class IN H SEK and Class INU H GBP were in operation. 
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1. General (continued) 
 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative�s investment objective is to provide investors with absolute returns over a rolling three-year period by 
taking both long and short positions utilising event driven strategies. 
 

The Portfolio seeks to apply a long/short investment strategy and intends to take full advantage of the ability to invest in derivatives 
providing long and �synthetic short� positions. 
 

As at 31 December 2019, Class DNFY H EUR, Class DNFY USD, Class IN H EUR, Class IN H GBP, Class IN H SEK, Class IN USD, 
Class INF H EUR and Class INF USD were in operation. 
 

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return 
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return�s investment objective is to achieve a return in all market conditions over the long term primarily 
through investment in a portfolio of fixed income securities denominated in local currency or in the currencies of OECD countries and/or 
derivatives. 
 

As at 31 December 2019, Class I C EUR and Class I C USD were in operation. 
 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE investment objective is to provide income and capital growth by investing directly or indirectly in 
fixed and floating rate securities worldwide. 
 

As at 31 December 2019, Class I EUR and Class I EUR Dist were in operation. 
 

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha 
Man GLG US Absolute Alpha�s investment objective is to provide investors with an absolute return through a long/short strategy 
investing primarily in the US equity market. 
 

The Portfolio seeks to apply a long/short investment strategy and intends to take full advantage of the ability to invest in derivatives 
providing long and �synthetic short� positions. 
 

As at 31 December 2019, Class IN USD was in operation. 
 
2. Significant accounting policies 
 
(a) Accounting convention 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�) as adopted by the 
European Union (�EU�). The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis except for financial assets and 
liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. 
 
(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosure  
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the 
Fund�s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, except for the adoption of new standards and interpretations 
effective on the dates described below. 
 
New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Fund: 
IFRIC Interpretation 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 
The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 
12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and 
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses the following: 
 

� Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; 
� The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; 
� How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; 
� How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. 

 
An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax 
treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. The interpretation is effective for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs are available. This standard update has been 
adopted by the Fund. The adoption of this standard has had no impact on the financial statements of the Fund. 
 
IFRIC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment clarifies the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve 
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 in the Fund�s financial statements. 
 
Management evaluates such tax positions to determine whether, for all tax years still subject to assessment or challenge by the relevant 
taxation authorities, the tax positions are probable to be accepted on examination by the relevant tax authorities. If it is probable that the 
Fund�s tax positions are accepted the taxable profit (tax loss) should be consistent with the Fund�s tax filings. If not probable the Fund 
must reflect the effect of the uncertainty in determining its taxable profit (tax loss). The effect of the uncertain tax treatment is determined 
by applying the expected value method or by applying the most likely method. 
 
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements there were a number of other Standards and Interpretations which were in issue 
but not yet effective. Management anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no 
material impact on the financial statements of the Fund. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(c) Use of accounting judgements and estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts reported and disclosures made in these financial statements and accompanying notes, including certain 
valuation assumptions. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in the future. 
 
(d) Going concern  
Management has made an assessment of the Fund�s ability to continue as a going concern and are satisfied that the Fund has 
resources to continue in business for a period of at least one year beyond the date these financial statements are available to be issued. 
Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Fund�s ability to 
continue as a going concern; therefore, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
(e) Interest income and expenses 
Interest income and expense is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues, on an effective interest rate basis. 
 
(f) Dividend income and expense 
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within 
dividends when the Fund�s right to receive payments is established. Dividend income is recognised gross of withholding tax, if any. 
 
(g) Financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
For Net Asset Value (�NAV�) purposes, the valuation of financial assets and liabilities is calculated in accordance with the Prospectus. For 
financial statements purposes, financial assets and liabilities have been valued in accordance with IFRS using the policies outlined below. 
 
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there are no material differences between these valuation methods. 
 
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Fund classifies its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition into the categories of financial assets 
and financial liabilities as discussed below.  
 
In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability is considered to be held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally 
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading as the Fund does not 
designate any derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship. Therefore, they meet the held-for-trading criteria and are required to be 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets designated by Management at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition include financial assets that are not 
held for trading. These financial assets and liabilities (�financial instruments�) are designated upon initial recognition on the basis that they 
are part of a group of financial instruments which are managed and have their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with risk management and investment strategies of the Fund. The financial information about these financial instruments is 
provided internally on that basis to the Investment Manager. 
 
The Fund recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Regular-way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Fund 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. 
All transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
After initial measurement, the Fund measures financial instruments, which are classified as at fair value through profit or loss, at their fair 
values. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and exchange traded securities) is 
based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial position date. 
 
In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread, management will determine the point within the bid-ask 
spread that is most representative of fair value. 
 
The Directors have appointed an Independent Pricing Committee ("IPC") to undertake certain services concerning the valuation policies 
and procedures relating to the Fund. The IPC is an independent body set up to: (1) establish a pricing matrix (a table which lays out a 
pricing source for certain assets and liabilities) which the Directors have adopted for the Fund and which is used by the Administrator to 
calculate the value of the assets and liabilities held by the Fund; and (2) to establish the prices of any positions held in the Fund that do 
not have an independently ascertainable value as per the pricing matrix. In addition, the IPC provides general governance and oversight 
of the valuation process. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(g) Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
The Fund may from time to time invest in financial instruments or securities that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-
counter (��OTC��) derivatives and private placements of both equities and fixed income securities). These financial instruments are valued 
at their fair value in the manner described in subsequent accounting policies. 
 
Any exchange traded derivative instruments (including, but not limited to, options and futures) dealt in on a market are valued at the 
settlement price on the relevant Valuation Day for such instruments on such a market. If the settlement price is not available, their 
probable realisation value shall be determined with care and in good faith by the Fund. 
 
The investments in managed funds (�managed funds�) are initially measured at fair value and then carried at their NAV per unit at the 
statement of financial position date. This measure approximately represents the fair value of such investments. If their stated NAV per 
unit is not available, managed funds are valued at the latest available stated NAV per unit. 
 
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
 
(h) Securities sold short 
The Fund may sell securities short. A short sale is a transaction in which the Fund sells a security it does not own. The proceeds received 
for short sales are recorded as liabilities and the Fund records an unrealised gain or loss to the extent of the difference between the 
proceeds received and the value of the open short position. The Fund records a realised gain or loss when the short position is closed. 
By entering into short sales, the Fund bears the market risk of an unfavourable change in the price of the security sold short in excess of 
the proceeds received. Short sales expose the Fund to potentially unlimited liability. 
 
(i) Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no financial assets and liabilities are offset in the statement of 
financial position. Please refer to note 5. 
 
(j) Derivatives 
The Fund may trade in derivative financial instruments whose values are based upon an underlying asset, index, currency or interest rate. 
The net unrealised gains or losses, rather than contracts or notional amounts, represents the approximate future cash flows from trading. 
 
The Fund engaged in contracts for difference, forward currency contracts, futures contracts, option contracts, swap contracts, credit 
default swaps, interest rate swaps, total return swaps and warrants. 
 
- Contracts for difference (��CFD��) 
An unfunded contract for difference (��CFD��) is an agreement between the Fund and a third party which allows the Fund to acquire an 
exposure to the price movement of specific securities without actually purchasing the securities. Upon entering into an unfunded CFD, 
the Fund is required to deposit with a broker an initial cash margin equal to a certain percentage of the contract amount. Variation 
margin payments are made or received by the Fund depending upon the fluctuation in the value of the underlying securities. The 
changes in contract values are recorded as unrealised gains or losses and the Fund recognises a realised gain or loss when the contract 
is closed. CFDs are similar to total return swaps, but are more standardised and primarily used in the UK and Ireland. 
 
- Forward currency contracts 
Forward currency contracts are recorded on the trade date and are valued at the applicable foreign exchange rates on the last business 
day of the year. The difference between the fair value of the original contract amount and the fair value of the open forward currency 
contract position is reflected as financial assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position and as net gain/(loss) on financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Realised gains or losses are recognised on 
the maturity or trade date of the contract and are included in net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss in the statement of comprehensive income.  
 
- Futures contracts 
Futures contracts are recorded on the trade date and are valued at the last traded price on the last business day of the year. The 
difference between the original contract amount and the fair value of the open futures position is reflected as financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of financial position and as net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Realised gains or losses are recognised on the closing or 
trade date of the contract and are included in net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(j) Derivatives (continued) 

 

- Option contracts 
The Fund may invest in option contracts. An option contract gives the owner the right, but not the obligation, to buy (��call option��) or to 
sell (��put option��) a specified item at a fixed price during a specified year for a non-refundable fee (��premium��). The maximum loss to a 
buyer of an option is the loss of the premium. The writer of a call option has to bear the risk of an unfavourable change in the value 
underlying the option and, unless an offsetting long position is owned, the theoretical loss is unlimited. The loss to the writer of a put 
option is limited to the exercise price of the option, versus the premium collected on its sale. Option contracts are held at fair value with 
reference to quoted market prices, when available, or based on pricing models that consider the time value of money, volatility and the 
current market and contractual prices of the underlying financial instruments. 
 
- Swap contracts 
Swap contracts are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange streams of payments over time based on specified 
notional amounts. The swap contracts are valued at an amount equal to the gain or loss that would be realised if the position was closed 
out on the valuation date. The Fund�s main swap contracts consist of credit default swaps, interest rate swaps and total return swaps.  
 
Swap contracts are marked-to-market daily and changes in value are recorded as unrealised gain/(loss). When a swap contract is 
terminated, the Fund will record a realised gain/(loss) equal to the difference between the proceeds from (or cost of) the closing 
transaction and the Fund�s basis in the contract, if any. Swap transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and market risk 
in excess of the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position. Such risks involve the possibility that there will be no liquid 
market for these agreements, that the counterparty to the agreements may default on its obligation to perform or disagree as to the 
meaning of the contractual terms in the agreements, and that there may be unfavourable changes in interest rates and/or market values 
associated with these transactions. 
 
- Credit default swaps 
The Fund may enter into credit default swaps to manage its exposure to certain sectors of the market or to reduce credit risk. The Fund 
may enter into credit default swap agreements to provide a measure of protection against the default of an issuer (as buyer of protection) 
and/or gain credit exposure to an issuer to which it is not otherwise exposed (as seller of protection). Credit default swaps are 
agreements in which one party pays fixed periodic payments to counterparty in consideration for a guarantee from the counterparty to 
make a specific payment should a negative credit event take place (e.g. default, bankruptcy or debt restructuring). The Fund may either 
buy or sell (write) credit default swaps. As a buyer, the Fund will either receive from the seller an amount equal to the notional amount of 
the swap and deliver the referenced security or underlying securities comprising of an index or receive a net settlement of cash equal to 
the notional amount of the swap less the recovery value of the security or underlying securities comprising of an index. As a seller (writer), 
the Fund will either pay the buyer an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and take delivery of the referenced security or 
underlying securities comprising of an index or pay a net settlement of cash equal to the notional amount of the swap less the recovery 
value of the security or underlying securities comprising of an index. In the event of default by the counterparty, the Fund may recover 
amounts paid under the agreement either partially or in total by offsetting any payables and/or receivables with collateral held or pledged.  
 
These periodic payments received or made by the Fund are included in net realised gain/(loss) on investments at fair value through profit 
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
- Interest rate swaps 
Interest rate swaps relate to contracts taken out by the Fund with major brokers in which the Fund either receives or pays a floating rate 
of interest in return for paying or receiving, respectively, a fixed rate of interest. The payment flows are usually netted against each other, 
with the difference being paid by one party to the other. Changes in the value of the interest rate swap agreements and amounts 
received or paid in connection with them are recognised as net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
- Total return swaps 
Total return swaps are contracts in which the Fund pays or receives a series of cash flows based upon the total return of a specified 
asset in return for paying or receiving, respectively, a fixed or floating rate of interest based upon that same specified asset. 
 
- Warrants 
The Fund invests in warrants through listed exchanges and OTC markets. The listed warrants are traded on recognised exchanges and 
valued at the last traded price. OTC traded warrants are valued by reference to quoted prices. Change in realised and unrealised gains 
and losses are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
(k) Realised and unrealised gains and losses 
All realised and unrealised gains and losses on securities and derivatives are recognised as net gain/(loss) on financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. The cost of securities is accounted for on a 
specific identification basis. Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments for the year and from 
reversal of prior year�s unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which were realised in the reporting year. Realised gains and 
losses represent the difference between an instrument�s initial carrying amount and disposal amount, or cash payments or receipts 
made in respect of derivative contracts (excluding payments or receipts on collateral margin accounts for such instruments).  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(l) Transaction costs 
Transaction costs are incremental costs, which are separately identifiable and directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of 
a financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs incurred by the Fund during the year are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income as part of net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
(m) Functional and presentation currency 
The Fund seeks to generate returns in United States Dollars (�US$�), its capital-raising currency. The liquidity of the Fund is managed on 
a day-to-day basis in United States Dollars in order to handle the issue and redemption of the Fund�s Redeemable Participating Shares. 
The Fund�s performance is also evaluated in United States Dollars. Therefore, as the United States Dollar is considered as the currency 
that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The Fund�s functional and 
presentational currency is United States Dollar. 
 
(n) Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and securities purchased under agreements to resell 
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase at a specified future date are not derecognised from the statement of financial position as 
the Fund retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash received is recognised in the statement of 
financial position with a corresponding obligation to repay it, reflecting its economic substance as a loan to the Fund. The difference 
between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement and is included in 
the statement of comprehensive income. Where the counterparty has the right to sell or pledge the securities sold to it then the assets 
are separately disclosed as securities purchased under agreement to resell. 
 
Securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date (�Reverse Repurchase Agreements�) are not recognised in the 
statement of financial position unless they are subsequently sold to third parties (�rehypothecation�), in which case, the obligation to 
return the securities is recorded as a short sale within trading liabilities and measured at fair value with any gains or losses included in the 
statement of comprehensive income. The corresponding cash paid is derecognised and a corresponding receivable is recorded in the 
statement of financial position reflecting the Fund�s right to receive it back. The difference between the purchase and resale prices is 
treated as interest revenue, accrued over the life of the agreement and included in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
(o) Foreign currency 
Transactions during the year denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of 
transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at the date of the 
statement of financial position. For investment transactions and investments held as at year end denominated in foreign currency, 
resulting gains or losses are included in the net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the 
statement of comprehensive income. All other foreign currency gains and losses are also included in the net gain/(loss) on financial 
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
The combined fund balances are expressed in US$, being the presentation currency of the Fund as a whole. For combined fund 
balances in the statement of financial position, the non US$ Portfolios are translated using the exchange rate at the date of statement of 
financial position. For combined fund balances in the statement of comprehensive income, the non US$ Portfolios are translated at the 
average exchange rate prevailing during the year. The combined subscriptions and redemptions in the statement of changes in net 
assets are also translated at the average rate prevailing during the current year. The translation gain/(loss) resulting from the preparation 
of the combined company balances in the financial statements amounting to gain of US$17,836,359 (31 December 2018: loss of 
US$146,670,608) has been shown in the combined fund column of statement of comprehensive income. The gain/loss does not have 
any effect on the individual Portfolios. 
 
(p) Other expenses 
Other expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis. 
 
(q) Investor Money Regulations 
In response to the CBI publishing the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) Investor Money Regulations 
2015 for Fund Service Providers (the �Investor Money Regulations� or �IMR�) in March 2015 (effective from 1 July 2016), the Manager 
undertook, together with BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company, a review of the way in which subscription, 
distribution and redemption monies are routed to and from the Fund or the relevant sub-fund. As a result of this review, subscription and 
redemption monies are routed through a sub-fund cash collection account in the name of the sub-fund. Pending issue of the units and / 
or payment of subscription proceeds to an account in the name of the sub-funds, and pending payment of redemption proceeds or 
distributions, the relevant investor will be an unsecured creditor of the sub-fund in respect of amounts paid by or due to it. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
(r) Redeemable Participating Shares  
Redeemable shares are classified as equity instruments when: 
 

� The redeemable shares entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund�s net assets in the event of the Fund�s liquidation; 
� The redeemable shares are in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments; 
� All redeemable shares in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments have identical features; 
� The redeemable shares do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the 

holder�s rights to a pro rata share of the Fund�s net assets;  
� The total expected cash flows attributable to the redeemable shares over the life of the instrument are based substantially on 

the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised 
net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument. 

 
In addition to the redeemable shares having all of the above features, the Fund must have no other financial instrument or contract that 
has: 
 

� Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair 
value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund;  

� The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the redeemable shareholders. 
 
The Fund continuously assesses the classification of the Redeemable Participating Shares. If the Redeemable Participating Shares cease 
to have all the features, or meet all the conditions set out, to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as financial liabilities and 
measure them at fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrying amount recognised in equity. If 
the Redeemable Participating Shares subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions to be classified as equity, the Fund will 
reclassify them as equity instruments and measure them at the carrying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification.  
 
As at 31 December 2019, the Fund classified its Redeemable Participating Shares as a liability. 
 
Share Transaction include subscriptions received in advance and redemptions in the process of being paid. 
 
(s) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position may consist of cash at bank, demand deposits, short-term deposits in 
financial institutions and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturities of three months or less. Short-term investments that are not held for 
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments and restricted margin accounts are not considered cash and cash equivalents. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net 
of outstanding bank overdrafts when applicable. 
 
(t) Balances with brokers/due to brokers 
Balances with brokers and balances due to brokers includes unrestricted cash balances held with brokers, margin account balances 
held at the Fund�s brokers and balances payable to the Fund�s brokers at the year end, and can include amounts transferred as 
collateral (and therefore subject to a security interest) against open derivative contracts. 
 
(u) Due from and to brokers  
Due from brokers include receivables for securities sold (in a regular way transaction) that have been contracted for but not yet delivered 
on the statement of financial position date. These are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for 
impairment. Due to brokers are payables for securities purchased (in a regular way transaction) that have been contracted for but not yet 
delivered on the statement of financial position date. These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  
 
(v) Distributions to shareholders 
In accordance with the Fund�s Prospectus, the Fund may fully distribute its distributable income to shareholders. 
 
Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of investments.  
 
Unrealised gains and losses are included in the net assets attributable to shareholders and are not distributable until realised. Capital 
losses are not distributed to shareholders, but are retained to be offset against any future realised capital gains. Distributions to 
shareholders are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as finance costs. 
 
(w) Preliminary expenses  
The Fund has borne its organisational expenses, including, without limitation, legal, accounting, filing and administration expenses 
associated with the organisation of the Fund and the offering of shares in the year in which they were incurred. For NAV purposes the 
organisational costs are amortised over the 36 months of trading of the Fund. 
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3. Cash and cash equivalents, balances with brokers and balances due to brokers 
 
At the year end, amounts disclosed as cash and cash equivalents, balances with brokers and balances due to brokers were held at the 
Bank of New York Mellon (London Branch), Bank of America Merrill Lynch, Bank of Nova Scotia, Barclays Plc, BNP Paribas, Citibank 
N.A., Credit Suisse AG Ireland, Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, Deutsche Bank AG, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank 
Plc, JP Morgan Securities Plc, Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc, Nomura Holdings, Royal Bank of Scotland and UBS AG. 
Balances with brokers represent the margin account balances held with the broker and balances due to broker represents an amount 
payable to broker as a result of margin or collateral amount payable at the year end. These include amounts transferred as collateral 
(which is subject to a security) against open derivatives, short positions or financial instruments purchased on margin, deposits held at 
call with banks and other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Included in cash and cash 
equivalents balances at 31 December 2019 are US T-bills with a fair value of US$Nil (cost: US$Nil) (2018: US$US$1,000,000 (cost: 
US$994,830) for Man AHL TargetRisk, a fair value of US$782,030,456 (cost: US$780,257,785) (2018: US$205,400,170 (cost:  
US$203,946,809)) for Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return, a fair value of US$24,912,518 (cost: US$24,841,112) 
(2018: US$44,894,697 (cost: US$44,658,969)) for Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative, a fair value of US$Nil (cost: US$Nil) (2018: 
US$42,935,364 (cost: US$42,629,891)) for Man Alternative Style Risk Premia, a fair value of US$81,431,678 (cost: US$80,565,707) 
(2018: US$99,766 (cost: US$99,456)) for Man AHL Active Balanced, a fair value of US$22,561,542 (cost: US$22,508,182) (2018: n/a 
(cost: n/a)) for Man GLG Event Driven Alternative and a fair value of US$3,968,248 (cost: US$3,958,522) (2018: n/a (cost: n/a)) for Man 
GLG Global Debt Total Return. 
 
Due from brokers and to brokers represent receivables for financial instruments sold and payables for financial instruments purchased 
that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the statement of financial position date respectively. 
 
The portion of balance with/due to brokers represented by collateral as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is outlined below: 
 

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative  1,410,405 ( 1,305,014)
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative £16,523,009 £19,052,715
Man GLG European Equity Alternative  44,306,493  22,570,688
Man GLG Global Equity Alternative  n/a  22
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative US$10,905,669 US$8,266,538 
Man AHL TargetRisk (US$31,866,571) US$21,564,256 
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative  32,345,377  47,359,727
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity                             -   US$24,799 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return US$114,191,581 US$67,394,309 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative (US$7,099,760) US$5,495,517 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative                             -   (£2,636,705)
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia US$813,208 (US$1,458,999)
Man AHL Active Balanced US$25,018,752 US$15,113 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities  524,760 n/a
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative US$4,296,613 n/a
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative US$6,865,180 n/a
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return US$174,892 n/a
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE  1,141,021 n/a
Man GLG US Absolute Alpha                             -   n/a

 

4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Collateral received 
Repurchase agreements: 
 

 31 December 2019  31 December 2018 
 US$  US$ 

Liabilit ies
Repurchase agreements               21,125,126 n/a

              21,125,126 n/a
 

 
As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of securities pledged as collateral in relation to the repurchase agreements was  12,256,069 
(2018:  Nil) for Man GLG High Yield Opportunities and US$12,090,857 (2018: US$Nil) for Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments 
The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in determining the 
measurements in line with IFRS 13. 
 
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 
 

� Level 1 � Quoted market price in an active market for an identical instrument. 
� Level 2 � Valuation techniques based on observable inputs. This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market 

prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less than 
active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data. 

� Level 3 � Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the 
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs could have a significant impact 
on the instrument�s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar 
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the 
instruments. 

 
Valuation techniques 
Listed or publicly traded investment in equity and debt securities, managed funds and derivatives 
When fair values of listed securities and debt securities at the reporting date, as well as publicly traded derivatives, are based on quoted 
market prices or binding dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 
of the hierarchy. 
 
Unlisted debt securities and treasury bills 
The Fund invests in debt securities, corporate and government bonds and treasury securities. In the absence of a quoted price in an 
active market, they are valued using observable inputs such as recently executed transaction prices in securities of the issuer or 
comparable issuers and yield curves. Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise differences in the 
instruments terms. To the extent that the significant inputs are observable, the Fund categorises these investments as Level 2. 
 
Over-the-counter derivatives 
The Fund uses widely recognised valuation models for determining fair values of over-the-counter interest rate swaps, currency swaps 
and forward foreign exchange contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, 
using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including both credit and debit valuation adjustments for 
counterparty and own credit risk, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. For these financial instruments, 
significant inputs into models are market observable and are included within Level 2. 
 
Unlisted equity investments 
The Fund invests in private equity companies which are not quoted in an active market. Transactions in such investments do not occur 
on a regular basis. The Fund uses a market based valuation technique for these positions. The Investment Manager determines 
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates an appropriate earnings multiple for 
each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by an 
earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between the 
comparable companies based on company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding 
earnings measure of the investee company to measure the fair value. The Fund classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3.  
 
For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value 
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models and other relevant 
valuation models. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
The following tables summarise the financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 
2018 and the financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement of financial position grouped into the fair value hierarchy: 
 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

            
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities        70,743,942                        -                      -        70,743,942 
 Preferred stocks          4,971,390                        -                      -          4,971,390 
Total equities and managed funds        75,715,332                        -                      -        75,715,332 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          2,626,423                      -          2,626,423 
 Futures contracts               15,450                        -                      -               15,450 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               13,983                      -               13,983 
Total derivatives               15,450          2,640,406                      -          2,655,856 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        75,730,782          2,640,406                      -        78,371,188 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (3,295,191)                      -         (3,295,191)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (41,668)                      -              (41,668)
 Futures contracts                (6,410)                        -                      -                (6,410)
Total derivatives                (6,410)         (3,336,859)                      -         (3,343,269)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                (6,410)         (3,336,859)                      -         (3,343,269)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities        62,887,660                        -                      -        62,887,660 
Total equities and managed funds        62,887,660                        -                      -        62,887,660 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        26,044,035                        -                      -        26,044,035 
Total interest bearing securities        26,044,035                        -                      -        26,044,035 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          2,106,634                      -          2,106,634 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               26,846                      -               26,846 
 Futures contracts               11,772                        -                      -               11,772 
Total derivatives               11,772          2,133,480                      -          2,145,252 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        88,943,467          2,133,480                      -        91,076,947 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (1,147,083)                      -         (1,147,083)
 Forward currency contracts                        -            (160,498)                      -            (160,498)
Total derivatives                        -         (1,307,581)                      -         (1,307,581)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -         (1,307,581)                      -         (1,307,581)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 £  £  £  £ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds      716,199,450        50,367,500                      -      766,566,950 
Total interest bearing securities      716,199,450        50,367,500                      -      766,566,950 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        46,311,097                      -        46,311,097 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               15,074                      -               15,074 
Total derivatives                        -        46,326,171                      -        46,326,171 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      716,199,450        96,693,671                      -      812,893,121 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (14,954,983)                      -       (14,954,983)
 Forward currency contracts                        -       (11,093,298)                      -       (11,093,298)
 Futures contracts         (3,927,255)                        -                      -         (3,927,255)
Total derivatives         (3,927,255)       (26,048,281)                      -       (29,975,536)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (3,927,255)       (26,048,281)                      -       (29,975,536)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities             893,087                        -                      -             893,087 
Total equities and managed funds             893,087                        -                      -             893,087 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds      560,743,254        43,285,950                      -      604,029,204 
Total interest bearing securities      560,743,254        43,285,950                      -      604,029,204 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        15,576,438                      -        15,576,438 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               12,957                      -               12,957 
 Option contracts                 3,557                        -                      -                 3,557 
Total derivatives                 3,557        15,589,395                      -        15,592,952 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      561,639,898        58,875,345                      -      620,515,243 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (11,584,332)                      -       (11,584,332)
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (2,287,494)                      -         (2,287,494)
 Futures contracts            (135,445)                        -                      -            (135,445)
Total derivatives            (135,445)       (13,871,826)                      -       (14,007,271)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss            (135,445)       (13,871,826)                      -       (14,007,271)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG European Equity Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

            
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      225,630,678                        -          247,397      225,878,075 
 Rights             326,496                        -                      -             326,496 
 Real estate investment trusts             208,538                        -                      -             208,538 
 Exchange traded funds             127,989                        -                      -             127,989 
Total equities and managed funds      226,293,701                        -          247,397      226,541,098 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        52,116,080                        -                      -        52,116,080 
Total interest bearing securities        52,116,080                        -                      -        52,116,080 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        71,754,679                   25        71,754,704 
 Option contracts             147,342        27,102,495          103,062        27,352,899 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          2,438,105                      -          2,438,105 
 Futures contracts             229,358                        -                      -             229,358 
 Warrants                        -                        -                   10                      10 
Total derivatives             376,700      101,295,279          103,097      101,775,076 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      278,786,481      101,295,279          350,494      380,432,254 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (61,907,357)           (14,387)       (61,921,744)
 Option contracts              (33,319)       (52,888,926)                      -       (52,922,245)
 Futures contracts         (1,583,150)                        -                      -         (1,583,150)
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (1,259,792)                      -         (1,259,792)
Total derivatives         (1,616,469)     (116,056,075)           (14,387)     (117,686,931)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (1,616,469)     (116,056,075)           (14,387)     (117,686,931)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      667,715,542        11,469,657                      -      679,185,199 
 Preferred stocks        13,576,929                        -                      -        13,576,929 
 Real estate investment trusts          3,110,800                        -                      -          3,110,800 
Total equities and managed funds      684,403,271        11,469,657                      -      695,872,928 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -      113,686,060                   25      113,686,085 
 Option contracts          1,081,972        23,508,886          103,062        24,693,920 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          2,409,401                      -          2,409,401 
 Futures contracts          1,727,760                        -                      -          1,727,760 
Total derivatives          2,809,732      139,604,347          103,087      142,517,166 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      687,213,003      151,074,004          103,087      838,390,094 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (79,949,796)      (2,063,944)       (82,013,740)
 Option contracts            (575,694)       (31,975,796)                      -       (32,551,490)
 Forward currency contracts                        -            (957,595)                      -            (957,595)
 Futures contracts            (389,629)                        -                      -            (389,629)
Total derivatives            (965,323)     (112,883,187)      (2,063,944)     (115,912,454)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss            (965,323)     (112,883,187)      (2,063,944)     (115,912,454)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        15,087,267                        -                      -        15,087,267 
Total interest bearing securities        15,087,267                        -                      -        15,087,267 

Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -        12,283,105                      -        12,283,105 
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          7,605,107                      -          7,605,107 
 Futures contracts          1,457,568                        -                      -          1,457,568 
 Option contracts                    577               31,706                      -               32,283 
Total derivatives          1,458,145        19,919,918                      -        21,378,063 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        16,545,412        19,919,918                      -        36,465,330 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -       (11,165,096)                      -       (11,165,096)
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (7,235,013)                      -         (7,235,013)
 Option contracts            (958,050)            (915,119)                      -         (1,873,169)
 Futures contracts            (590,893)                        -                      -            (590,893)
Total derivatives         (1,548,943)       (19,315,228)                      -       (20,864,171)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (1,548,943)       (19,315,228)                      -       (20,864,171)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        21,374,580                        -                      -        21,374,580 
Total interest bearing securities        21,374,580                        -                      -        21,374,580 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          8,734,128                      -          8,734,128 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          6,503,732                      -          6,503,732 
 Futures contracts          1,986,374                        -                      -          1,986,374 
 Option contracts             566,566                 9,452                      -             576,018 
Total derivatives          2,552,940        15,247,312                      -        17,800,252 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        23,927,520        15,247,312                      -        39,174,832 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (7,057,429)             (2,594)         (7,060,023)
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (4,904,373)                      -         (4,904,373)
 Option contracts         (1,370,532)            (831,180)                      -         (2,201,712)
 Futures contracts            (730,623)                        -                      -            (730,623)
Total derivatives         (2,101,155)       (12,792,982)             (2,594)       (14,896,731)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (2,101,155)       (12,792,982)             (2,594)       (14,896,731)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man AHL TargetRisk  US$  US$  US$  US$ 
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        28,868,539   1,056,902,320                      -   1,085,770,859 
Total interest bearing securities        28,868,539   1,056,902,320                      -   1,085,770,859 

Derivatives
 Credit default swaps                        -        70,414,498                      -        70,414,498 
 Forward currency contracts                        -        18,165,186                      -        18,165,186 
 Futures contracts        12,255,865                        -                      -        12,255,865 
 Total return swaps                        -          6,913,520                      -          6,913,520 
Total derivatives        12,255,865        95,493,204                      -      107,749,069 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        41,124,404   1,152,395,524                      -   1,193,519,928 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Futures contracts       (18,035,061)                        -                      -       (18,035,061)
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (7,679,148)                      -         (7,679,148)
 Credit default swaps                        -            (129,560)                      -            (129,560)
Total derivatives       (18,035,061)         (7,808,708)                      -       (25,843,769)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss       (18,035,061)         (7,808,708)                      -       (25,843,769)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds          4,977,297      398,245,379                      -      403,222,676 
Total interest bearing securities          4,977,297      398,245,379                      -      403,222,676 

Derivatives
 Futures contracts        13,034,683                        -                      -        13,034,683 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          5,668,032                      -          5,668,032 
 Credit default swaps                        -          4,317,737                      -          4,317,737 
Total derivatives        13,034,683          9,985,769                      -        23,020,452 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        18,011,980      408,231,148                      -      426,243,128 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Futures contracts         (4,701,644)                        -                      -         (4,701,644)
 Total return swaps                        -         (4,612,526)                      -         (4,612,526)
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (2,786,825)                      -         (2,786,825)
 Credit default swaps                        -            (379,347)                      -            (379,347)
Total derivatives         (4,701,644)         (7,778,698)                      -       (12,480,342)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (4,701,644)         (7,778,698)                      -       (12,480,342)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

            
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      420,057,026                        -                      -      420,057,026 
 Preferred stocks        13,137,458                        -                      -        13,137,458 
 Real estate investment trusts          2,189,242                        -                      -          2,189,242 
Total equities and managed funds      435,383,726                        -                      -      435,383,726 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        52,879,709                      -        52,879,709 
 Forward currency contracts                        -             277,032                      -             277,032 
Total derivatives                        -        53,156,741                      -        53,156,741 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      435,383,726        53,156,741                      -      488,540,467 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (46,000,684)                      -       (46,000,684)
 Forward currency contracts                        -            (181,939)                      -            (181,939)
Total derivatives                        -       (46,182,623)                      -       (46,182,623)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -       (46,182,623)                      -       (46,182,623)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      402,553,433                        -                      -      402,553,433 
 Preferred stocks          6,635,024                        -                      -          6,635,024 
Total equities and managed funds      409,188,457                        -                      -      409,188,457 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        22,592,192                      -        22,592,192 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               97,582                      -               97,582 
Total derivatives                        -        22,689,774                      -        22,689,774 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      409,188,457        22,689,774                      -      431,878,231 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (24,490,592)                      -       (24,490,592)
 Forward currency contracts                        -            (192,482)                      -            (192,482)
Total derivatives                        -       (24,683,074)                      -       (24,683,074)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -       (24,683,074)                      -       (24,683,074)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative ceased operations on 17 September 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 
31 December 2018  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities        20,609,821                        -                      -        20,609,821 
Total equities and managed funds        20,609,821                        -                      -        20,609,821 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          1,884,247                      -          1,884,247 
 Forward currency contracts                        -             104,322                      -             104,322 
Total derivatives                        -          1,988,569                      -          1,988,569 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        20,609,821          1,988,569                      -        22,598,390 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -            (637,033)                      -            (637,033)
Total derivatives                        -            (637,033)                      -            (637,033)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -            (637,033)                      -            (637,033)

 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity ceased operations on 7 February 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 
31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities        44,784,594                        -                      -        44,784,594 
Total equities and managed funds        44,784,594                        -                      -        44,784,594 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds          4,991,228                        -                      -          4,991,228 
Total interest bearing securities          4,991,228                        -                      -          4,991,228 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -             427,138                      -             427,138 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               40,346                      -               40,346 
Total derivatives                        -             467,484                      -             467,484 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        49,775,822             467,484                      -        50,243,306 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (2,483,751)                      -         (2,483,751)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (10,228)                      -              (10,228)
Total derivatives                        -         (2,493,979)                      -         (2,493,979)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -         (2,493,979)                      -         (2,493,979)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds      822,608,736        11,595,554                      -      834,204,290 
Total interest bearing securities      822,608,736        11,595,554                      -      834,204,290 

Derivatives
 Credit default swaps                        -        35,679,823                      -        35,679,823 
 Forward currency contracts                        -        24,913,226                      -        24,913,226 
Total derivatives                        -        60,593,049                      -        60,593,049 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      822,608,736        72,188,603                      -      894,797,339 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Interest rate swaps                        -       (88,417,151)                      -       (88,417,151)
 Forward currency contracts                        -       (19,211,331)                      -       (19,211,331)
 Credit default swaps                        -       (18,200,310)                      -       (18,200,310)
Total derivatives                        -     (125,828,792)                      -     (125,828,792)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -     (125,828,792)                      -     (125,828,792)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds   2,794,487,322      135,197,108                      -   2,929,684,430 
 Corporate bonds                        -        50,525,230                      -        50,525,230 
Total interest bearing securities   2,794,487,322      185,722,338                      -   2,980,209,660 

Derivatives
 Credit default swaps                        -      105,242,706                      -      105,242,706 
 Forward currency contracts                        -        21,089,602                      -        21,089,602 
Total derivatives                        -      126,332,308                      -      126,332,308 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   2,794,487,322      312,054,646                      -   3,106,541,968 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Interest rate swaps                        -       (55,519,156)                      -       (55,519,156)
 Forward currency contracts                        -       (16,927,596)                      -       (16,927,596)
 Credit default swaps                        -         (2,718,825)                      -         (2,718,825)
Total derivatives                        -       (75,165,577)                      -       (75,165,577)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -       (75,165,577)                      -       (75,165,577)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      258,948,707                        -                      -      258,948,707 
Total equities and managed funds      258,948,707                        -                      -      258,948,707 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds      181,551,841                        -                      -      181,551,841 
Total interest bearing securities      181,551,841                        -                      -      181,551,841 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        10,774,263                      -        10,774,263 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          5,329,033                      -          5,329,033 
 Option contracts             140,760                        -                      -             140,760 
 Futures contracts               38,468                        -                      -               38,468 
Total derivatives             179,228        16,103,296                      -        16,282,524 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      440,679,776        16,103,296                      -      456,783,072 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (14,583,680)                      -       (14,583,680)
 Futures contracts         (1,327,870)                        -                      -         (1,327,870)
 Forward currency contracts                        -            (431,552)                      -            (431,552)
Total derivatives         (1,327,870)       (15,015,232)                      -       (16,343,102)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (1,327,870)       (15,015,232)                      -       (16,343,102)

31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss             
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      116,576,450                        -                      -      116,576,450 
Total equities and managed funds      116,576,450                        -                      -      116,576,450 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds      110,735,418                        -                      -      110,735,418 
Total interest bearing securities      110,735,418                        -                      -      110,735,418 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          5,933,368                      -          5,933,368 
 Futures contracts             890,462                        -                      -             890,462 
 Forward currency contracts                        -             319,159                      -             319,159 
Total derivatives             890,462          6,252,527                      -          7,142,989 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      228,202,330          6,252,527                      -      234,454,857 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (2,115,283)                      -         (2,115,283)
 Futures contracts              (49,371)                        -                      -              (49,371)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (32,199)                      -              (32,199)
Total derivatives              (49,371)         (2,147,482)                      -         (2,196,853)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss              (49,371)         (2,147,482)                      -         (2,196,853)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased operations on 21 March 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 2019. 
 
31 December 2018  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 £  £  £  £ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities          2,077,538                        -          120,112          2,197,650 
Total equities and managed funds          2,077,538                        -          120,112          2,197,650 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        71,005,292                        -                      -        71,005,292 
Total interest bearing securities        71,005,292                        -                      -        71,005,292 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          5,578,435                      -          5,578,435 
 Forward currency contracts                        -             616,705                      -             616,705 
 Futures contracts               14,365                        -                      -               14,365 
Total derivatives               14,365          6,195,140                      -          6,209,505 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        73,097,195          6,195,140          120,112        79,412,447 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (4,912,943)                      -         (4,912,943)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (14,373)                      -              (14,373)
Total derivatives                        -         (4,927,316)                      -         (4,927,316)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -         (4,927,316)                      -         (4,927,316)

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia
31 December 2019  US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      396,899,610                        -                      -      396,899,610 
 Preferred stocks          8,579,993                        -                      -          8,579,993 
Total equities and managed funds      405,479,603                        -                      -      405,479,603 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds      170,678,538                        -                      -      170,678,538 
Total interest bearing securities      170,678,538                        -                      -      170,678,538 

Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -        17,970,437                      -        17,970,437 
 Futures contracts          4,859,708                        -                      -          4,859,708 
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          1,819,143                      -          1,819,143 
Total derivatives          4,859,708        19,789,580                      -        24,649,288 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      581,017,849        19,789,580                      -      600,807,429 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -       (23,048,302)                      -       (23,048,302)
 Forward currency contracts                        -       (12,520,949)                      -       (12,520,949)
 Futures contracts         (3,078,541)                        -                      -         (3,078,541)
 Total return swaps                        -            (149,825)                      -            (149,825)
Total derivatives         (3,078,541)       (35,719,076)                      -       (38,797,617)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (3,078,541)       (35,719,076)                      -       (38,797,617)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia (continued)
31 December 2018  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities      195,518,190                        -                      -      195,518,190 
 Preferred stock          1,110,751                        -                      -          1,110,751 
Total equities and managed funds      196,628,941                        -                      -      196,628,941 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        39,825,776                        -                      -        39,825,776 
Total interest bearing securities        39,825,776                        -                      -        39,825,776 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -        22,288,901                      -        22,288,901 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          9,066,218                      -          9,066,218 
 Futures contracts          3,608,075                        -                      -          3,608,075 
 Total return swap                        -          1,888,729                      -          1,888,729 
Total derivatives          3,608,075        33,243,848                      -        36,851,923 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss      240,062,792        33,243,848                      -      273,306,640 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (7,803,431)                      -         (7,803,431)
 Futures contracts         (2,597,560)                        -                      -         (2,597,560)
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -            (471,849)                      -            (471,849)
Total derivatives         (2,597,560)         (8,275,280)                      -       (10,872,840)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (2,597,560)         (8,275,280)                      -       (10,872,840)

Man AHL Active Balanced
31 December 2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        92,442,044                        -                      -        92,442,044 
Total interest bearing securities        92,442,044                        -                      -        92,442,044 

Derivatives
 Futures contracts          1,842,162                        -                      -          1,842,162 
 Forward currency contracts                        -             926,332                      -             926,332 
Total derivatives          1,842,162             926,332                      -          2,768,494 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        94,284,206             926,332                      -        95,210,538 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Futures contracts         (4,654,769)                        -                      -         (4,654,769)
 Forward currency contracts                        -         (2,394,646)                      -         (2,394,646)
Total derivatives         (4,654,769)         (2,394,646)                      -         (7,049,415)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss         (4,654,769)         (2,394,646)                      -         (7,049,415)
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man AHL Active Balanced (continued)
31 December 2018  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$  US$  US$  US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds          2,089,829                        -                      -          2,089,829 
Total interest bearing securities          2,089,829                        -                      -          2,089,829 

Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -             483,900                      -             483,900 
 Futures contracts             279,393                        -                      -             279,393 
Total derivatives             279,393             483,900                      -             763,293 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss          2,369,222             483,900                      -          2,853,122 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Futures contracts              (44,143)                        -                      -              (44,143)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (17,973)                      -              (17,973)
Total derivatives              (44,143)              (17,973)                      -              (62,116)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss              (44,143)              (17,973)                      -              (62,116)

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities
31 December 2019                
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Corporate bonds                        -      178,155,046       3,137,225      181,292,271 
 Convertible bonds                        -          2,799,855                      -          2,799,855 
Total interest bearing securities                        -      180,954,901       3,137,225      184,092,126 

Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -          3,001,476                      -          3,001,476 
 Credit default swaps                        -          1,450,364                      -          1,450,364 
 Total return swaps                        -                 3,726                      -                 3,726 
Total derivatives                        -          4,455,566                      -          4,455,566 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss                        -      185,410,467       3,137,225      188,547,692 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Credit default swaps                        -         (1,682,180)                      -         (1,682,180)
 Total return swaps                        -            (160,125)                      -            (160,125)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (81,190)                      -              (81,190)
Total derivatives                        -         (1,923,495)                      -         (1,923,495)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -         (1,923,495)                      -         (1,923,495)
 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities commenced its operations on 16 January 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

90 
 

4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$   US$   US$   US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities               65,820                        -                      -               65,820 
Total equities and managed funds               65,820                        -                      -               65,820 

Interest bearing securities
 Convertible bonds                        -        18,286,622                      -        18,286,622 
 Corporate bonds                        -        16,837,806          175,475        17,013,281 
 Government bonds                        -             214,437                      -             214,437 
Total interest bearing securities                        -        35,338,865          175,475        35,514,340 

Derivatives
 Total return swaps                        -          1,074,127                      -          1,074,127 
 Credit default swaps                        -             476,681                      -             476,681 
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -             418,577                      -             418,577 
 Forward currency contracts                        -             301,941                      -             301,941 
 Option contracts               31,957                 5,684                      -               37,641 
 Futures contracts                 7,131                        -                      -                 7,131 
Total derivatives               39,088          2,277,010                      -          2,316,098 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss             104,908        37,615,875          175,475        37,896,258 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (2,056,493)                      -         (2,056,493)
 Credit default swaps                        -            (943,364)                      -            (943,364)
 Total return swaps                        -            (111,326)                      -            (111,326)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (28,608)                      -              (28,608)
 Futures contracts                (3,003)                        -                      -                (3,003)
Total derivatives                (3,003)         (3,139,791)                      -         (3,142,794)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                (3,003)         (3,139,791)                      -         (3,142,794)
 

Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative commenced its operations on 1 April 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$   US$   US$   US$ 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Equities and managed funds
 Equities        41,755,213                        -          143,564        41,898,777 
 Real estate investment trusts             818,599                        -                      -             818,599 
Total equities and managed funds        42,573,812                        -          143,564        42,717,376 

Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds        13,459,071                        -                      -        13,459,071 
Total interest bearing securities        13,459,071                        -                      -        13,459,071 

Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          2,824,015                      -          2,824,015 
 Forward currency contracts                        -          1,095,248                      -          1,095,248 
Total derivatives                        -          3,919,263                      -          3,919,263 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss        56,032,883          3,919,263          143,564        60,095,710 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -         (1,988,534)                      -         (1,988,534)
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (39,716)                      -              (39,716)
 Option contracts                (9,855)                        -                      -                (9,855)
Total derivatives                (9,855)         (2,028,250)                      -         (2,038,105)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                (9,855)         (2,028,250)                      -         (2,038,105)
 

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative commenced its operations on 2 July 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2018. 
 
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return
31 December 2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Government bonds               49,658          5,550,222                      -          5,599,880 
 Mortgage backed securities                        -          1,846,390                      -          1,846,390 
Total interest bearing securities               49,658          7,396,612                      -          7,446,270 

Derivatives
 Credit default swaps                        -             187,073                      -             187,073 
 Forward currency contracts                        -               69,104                      -               69,104 
Total derivatives                        -             256,177                      -             256,177 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss               49,658          7,652,789                      -          7,702,447 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return (continued)
31 December 2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total Fair Value 

 US$   US$   US$   US$ 
Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -              (42,525)                      -              (42,525)
 Credit default swaps                        -              (26,779)                      -              (26,779)
 Interest rate swaps                        -              (14,936)                      -              (14,936)
Total derivatives                        -              (84,240)                      -              (84,240)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -              (84,240)                      -              (84,240)
 

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return commenced its operations on 1 August 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2018. 
 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE
31 December 2019             
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Interest bearing securities
 Corporate bonds                        -        39,650,159                      -        39,650,159 
 Convertible bonds                        -          1,166,606                      -          1,166,606 
Total interest bearing securities                        -        40,816,765                      -        40,816,765 

Derivatives
 Forward currency contracts                        -             224,398                      -             224,398 
 Credit default swaps                        -               24,789                      -               24,789 
Total derivatives                        -             249,187                      -             249,187 

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss                        -        41,065,952                      -        41,065,952 

Financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss
Held for Trading:
Derivatives
 Credit default swaps                        -            (621,829)                      -            (621,829)
 Total return swaps                        -              (23,235)                      -              (23,235)
 Forward currency contracts                        -                (3,264)                      -                (3,264)
Total derivatives                        -            (648,328)                      -            (648,328)

Total financial liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss                        -            (648,328)                      -            (648,328)
 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE commenced its operations on 22 November 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
 
Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced its operations on 31 December 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019 and 31 December 2018. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
Short term balances are excluded from the tables as their carrying value at the year end approximates to their fair value. 
 
Investments are reviewed at each financial reporting point to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3 in 
accordance with the fair value hierarchy outlined above. Where an investment�s characteristics change during the year and investments 
no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more appropriate level at the end of relevant financial reporting 
year. 
 
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2. 
 
A reconciliation of the movements in level 3 assets/liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2019 and year ended 31 December 2018 
is set out below: 
 
Man GLG European Equity Alternative
31 December 2019 Equities and Interest bearing

managed funds securities Derivatives  Total Fair Value 
       

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -    (1,960,857)           (1,960,857)
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -    (2,286,032)           (2,286,032)
- unrealised  247,397*                       -     2,049,566            2,296,963 
Purchases                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Sales                       -                         -     2,286,033            2,286,033 
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance             247,397                       -          88,710               336,107 

*This was acquired as part of a reorganisation and valued at Nil initially. 
 
31 December 2018
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -          94,366                 94,366 
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -                  -                          -  
- unrealised                       -                         -       (827,140)              (827,140)
Purchases                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Sales                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -    (1,228,083)           (1,228,083)
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -                         -    (1,960,857)           (1,960,857)

 
Man GLG Global Equity Alternative 
Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 2019 
and 31 December 2018.  
 
31 December 2018
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -           (2,400)                  (2,400)
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -           (2,455)                  (2,455)
- unrealised                       -                         -            2,400                   2,400 
Purchases                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Sales                       -                         -            2,455                   2,455 
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative
31 December 2019 Equities and Interest bearing

managed funds securities Derivatives  Total Fair Value 
US$ US$ US$ US$

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -           (2,594)                  (2,594)
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -           (4,858)                  (4,858)
- unrealised                       -                         -            2,594                   2,594 
Purchases                       -                         -            4,858                   4,858 
Sales                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  

31 December 2018
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -           (8,431)                  (8,431)
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -           (4,241)                  (4,241)
- unrealised                       -                         -            5,837                   5,837 
Purchases                       -                         -            4,241                   4,241 
Sales                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -                         -           (2,594)                  (2,594)

 

Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative 
Man NewSmith Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 17 September 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 

31 December 2019 £ £ £ £
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance             120,112                       -                  -                 120,112 
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -                  -                          -  
- unrealised            (120,112)                       -                  -                (120,112)
Purchases                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Sales                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  

31 December 2018
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -                  -                          -  
- unrealised                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Purchases                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Sales                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers into Level 3             120,112                       -                  -                 120,112 
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance             120,112                       -                  -                 120,112 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities
31 December 2019 Equities and Interest bearing

managed funds securities Derivatives  Total Fair Value 
       

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                  35,736                -                   35,736 
- unrealised                       -            (3,902,868)                -             (3,902,868)
Purchases                       -             7,996,895                -              7,996,895 
Sales                       -               (992,538)                -                (992,538)
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -             3,137,225                -              3,137,225 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities commenced its operations on 16 January 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative
31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                 (82,117)                -                  (82,117)
- unrealised                       -               (249,273)                -                (249,273)
Purchases                       -             1,360,891                -              1,360,891 
Sales                       -               (854,026)                -                (854,026)
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance                       -                175,475                -                 175,475 

 

Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative commenced its operations on 1 April 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative
31 December 2019
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss:
Opening balance                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Total gains and losses
- realised                       -                         -                  -                          -  
- unrealised  143,564*                       -                  -                 143,564 
Purchases                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Sales                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers into Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Transfers out of Level 3                       -                         -                  -                          -  
Closing Balance             143,564                       -                  -                 143,564 

*This was acquired as part of a reorganisation and valued at Nil initially. 
 

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative commenced its operations on 2 July 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2018. 
 

All net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) in the tables above are reflected in the accompanying statement of comprehensive income. 
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) of  242,331 (31 December 2018: ( 827,140)) for Man GLG European Equity Alternative, US$Nil 
(31 December 2018: (US$2,594)) for Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative, £Nil (31 December 2018: £Nil) for Man NewSmith UK Equity 
Alternative, ( 3,867,132) (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, (US$331,390) (31 December 2018: n/a) for 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative and US$143,564 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Event Driven Alternative and relates 
to those financial instruments held by the Fund at 31 December 2019 and is reflected in net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 

The fair value of investments classified within Level 3 is based on unobservable inputs that may be subject to significant variability. 
Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuations with respect to such investments, the Fund�s estimates of fair value may differ 
significantly from fair values that would have been used had observable inputs been available for the valuation of such investments, and 
the differences could be material. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 
The table below discloses the valuation technique used in the valuation for Level 3 investments and quantifies the effect of significant 
unobservable inputs used to value investments that fall in this category. The ranges of these inputs are not representative of the 
appropriate inputs to use when calculating the fair value of any one Level 3 asset or liability. Accordingly, the ranges of inputs presented 
below do not represent uncertainty in, or possible ranges of fair value measurements of the Fund�s Level 3 assets/liabilities. 
 

Man GLG European Equity Alternative Fair Value Valuation Unobservable 
31 December 2019   Technique Input Range
Contracts for difference - unfunded            (14,362) Cost  None No range
Equities           247,397  Single broker quotation  None No range
Option contracts           103,062  Cost  None No range
Warrants                    10  Single broker quotation  None No range

31 December 2018
Contracts for difference - unfunded              (9,311) Estimated recovery Future cash flows  Nil -  9,311
Contracts for difference - unfunded       (1,228,083) Estimated recovery Future cash flows £Nil - £158,972
Contracts for difference - unfunded          (826,525) Cost None No range
Option contracts           103,062 Cost None No range

Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative
31 December 2018 US$
Contracts for difference - unfunded (2,594)             Cost None No range

Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative
31 December 2018 £
Equities 120,112          Estimated recovery Future cash flows £Nil - £120,112

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities
31 December 2019  
Corporate bonds        3,137,225  Single broker quotation  None No range

Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative
31 December 2019 US$
Corporate bonds           175,475  Single broker quotation  None No range

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative
31 December 2019 US$
Equities           143,564  Single broker quotation  None No range

 

The fair value impact of the discount range disclosed above is the Investment Manager�s assessment of the range of possible illiquidity 
discounts. The Investment Manager�s Independent Pricing Committee has assessed that, based on the information available, there is no 
reason that the net asset value provided by the underlying managed funds managers or their administrators should not represent the 
most appropriate basis for valuing these assets and therefore no fair value adjustment is applied. The impact of the range of possible 
unobservable impacts on the fair value of investments is an increase/decrease of up to  Nil (31 December 2018:  186,416) for Man GLG 
European Equity Alternative, n/a (31 December 2018: US$Nil) for Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative, £Nil (31 December 2018: 
£120,112) for Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative,  Nil (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG High Yield Opportunities, US$Nil (31 
December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative and increase/decrease of up to US$Nil (31 December 2018: n/a) for 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative. 
 

Forward currency contracts 
As part of its portfolio management techniques, the Fund may use forward currency contracts to economically hedge any non-functional 
currency exposure (although formal hedge accounting is not used). Forward currency contracts may also be used for trading purposes. 
Forward currency contracts entered into by the Fund represent a firm commitment to buy or sell an underlying asset, or currency at a 
specified value and point in time based upon an agreed or contracted quantity. 
 

Forward currency contracts may expose the Fund to the risks associated with the absence of an exchange market on which to close out 
an open position. The investment manager closely monitors the Fund�s exposure under forward currency contracts as part of the overall 
management of the Fund�s market risk. 
 

Derivative financial instruments 
The Fund may trade derivative financial instruments, including contracts for difference, futures contracts, forward currency contracts, 
currencies, swaps contracts and options contracts whose values are based upon an underlying asset, index, currency or interest rate.  
 

The Fund is subject to both market and credit risk in trading derivative financial instruments. Market risk is the potential for changes in 
value due to changes in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates, indices and changes in the value of the underlying financial 
instruments. Credit risk is the possibility that a loss may occur if a counterparty fails to perform according to the terms of the contract. 
Substantially all derivative contracts are transacted on a margin basis. Such transactions may expose the Fund to significant off-balance 
sheet risk in the event margin deposits and collateral investments are not sufficient to cover losses incurred. 
 

The Investment Manager manages the risk associated with these transactions by maintaining margin deposits and collateral investments 
with its brokers in compliance with individual exchange regulations and internal guidelines. The Investment Manager also takes an active 
role in managing and controlling the Fund�s market and counterparty risks and monitoring trading activities and margin levels daily, and, 
as necessary, deposits additional collateral or reduces positions. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Derivative financial instruments (continued) 
Credit default swaps are contracts in which the Fund pays or receives an interest flow in return for the counterparty accepting or selling 
all or part of the risk of default or failure to pay of a reference entity on which the swap is written. Where the Fund has bought protection, 
the maximum potential loss is the value of the interest flows the Fund is contracted to pay until maturity of the contract. Where the Fund 
has sold protection, the maximum potential loss is the nominal value of the protection sold. As at 31 December 2019, the maximum 
potential payout under credit default swaps where the sub funds have sold protection is US$1,520,337,500 (31 December 2018: 
US$379,325,250) for Man AHL TargetRisk, US$13,500,000 (31 December 2018: US$27,700,000) for Man GLG Global Emerging 
Markets Debt Total Return, US$4,974,809 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative and US$2,300,000 
(31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Global Debt Total Return. The fair value of these contracts as at 31 December 2019 was of 
US$70,414,498 (31 December 2018: US$4,317,737) for Man AHL TargetRisk, (US$7,116,553) (31 December 2018: US$158,487) for 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return, US$264,080 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy 
Alternative and US$19,631 (31 December 2018: n/a) for Man GLG Global Debt Total Return. 
 

The Fund may purchase or write put and call options through OTC markets. Options purchased by the Fund provide the Fund with the 
opportunity to purchase (call options) or sell (put options) the underlying asset at an agreed-upon value either on or before the expiration 
of the option. Options written by the Fund provide the purchaser of the option the opportunity to purchase from or sell to the Fund the 
underlying asset at an agreed-upon value either on or before the expiration of the option. Premiums received from writing options are 
marked-to-market in accordance with note 2 and the resulting gains or losses are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. 
The Fund may also invest in swaptions which are a combination of feature an option and an interest rate swap. The maximum loss to a 
buyer of an option is the loss of the premium. The writer of a call option has to bear the risk of an unfavourable change in the value 
underlying the option and, unless an offsetting long position is owned, the theoretical loss is unlimited. As at 31 December 2019, the 
Fund held written put options with a maximum pay out value of  84,349,514 for Man GLG European Equity Alternative (31 December 
2018:  94,423,048) and US$115,213,709 for Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative (31 December 2018: US$94,263,180). 
 

Derivative financial instruments are generally based on notional amounts which are not recorded in the financial statements. These 
notional amounts represent the theoretical principal value on which the cash flows of the derivative transactions are based. Unrealised 
gains or losses, rather than notional amounts, or the exchange-traded derivatives traded by the Fund are included in the statement of 
financial position. The net unrealised gains or losses, rather than contract or notional amounts, represent the Fund�s approximate future 
cash flows from trading activities 
 

At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Fund was exposed in its investments in derivative financial instruments to underlying 
positions in notional amounts are summarised as follows: 
 

Long Short Long Short
31 December

2019
31 December

2019
31 December

2018
31 December

2018
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative        
Contracts for difference - unfunded          32,249,584          97,545,224          17,501,021          75,008,954 
Forward currency contracts            1,947,526            1,966,597            5,758,497          25,126,784 
Futures contracts               374,100            6,589,366                        -              5,050,907 

         34,571,210        106,101,187          23,259,518        105,186,645 

Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative £ £ £ £
Contracts for difference - unfunded     1,101,489,188        139,608,410        294,890,338        183,671,291 
Forward currency contracts            1,226,855        768,328,917            3,511,393        565,411,878 
Futures contracts                        -          978,741,705                        -          118,461,345 
Option contracts                        -                          -                 172,396                        -  

    1,102,716,043     1,886,679,032        298,574,127        867,544,514 

Man GLG European Equity Alternative        
Contracts for difference - unfunded        865,908,524        776,805,979        961,039,176     1,389,166,331 
Forward currency contracts        225,022,713        136,817,560        513,096,189        186,798,518 
Futures contracts            2,570,327        229,639,420          10,374,562        122,440,921 
Option contracts          17,226,524          29,684,417          19,103,472          30,322,032 
Warrants                 26,745                        -                          -                          -  

    1,110,754,833     1,172,947,376     1,503,613,399     1,728,727,802 

Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative US$ US$ US$ US$
Contracts for difference - unfunded          80,584,089          58,944,996          67,031,034          54,317,319 
Forward currency contracts        652,390,911        844,707,067        390,405,501        496,693,888 
Futures contracts        188,211,028        361,886,626        404,579,670        176,120,791 
Option contracts                 41,764            1,388,573               575,197            1,588,207 

       921,227,792     1,266,927,262        862,591,402        728,720,205 

Notional Value
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Derivative financial instruments (continued) 
 

Long Short Long Short
31 December

2019
31 December

2019
31 December

2018
31 December

2018
Man AHL TargetRisk US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit default swaps            5,000,000     1,520,337,500          41,431,500        379,325,250 
Forward currency contracts        745,804,970     1,124,936,796        289,264,712        353,619,762 
Futures contracts     2,872,598,287                        -       1,123,773,824                        -  
Total return swaps        233,376,826                        -            11,919,150                        -  

    3,856,780,083     2,645,274,296     1,466,389,186        732,945,012 

Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative        
Contracts for difference - unfunded        245,253,814        701,558,517        208,751,451        623,792,101 
Forward currency contracts          20,192,751          35,303,054            7,330,909          47,424,423 

       265,446,565        736,861,571        216,082,360        671,216,524 

Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative US$ US$ US$ US$
Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -                          -            21,805,318          22,080,207 
Forward currency contracts                        -                          -                 205,393          18,943,611 

                       -                          -            22,010,711          41,023,818 

Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity
Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -                          -            14,329,294                        -  
Forward currency contracts                        -                          -              6,960,031            2,810,019 

                       -                          -            21,289,325            2,810,019 

Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return
Credit default swaps     1,257,555,000          13,500,000     2,167,125,000          27,700,000 
Forward currency contracts        566,724,061     1,579,474,374        649,424,388     2,241,031,737 
Interest rate swaps                        -       1,075,587,072                        -       1,133,389,798 

    1,824,279,061     2,668,561,446     2,816,549,388     3,402,121,535 

Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative
Contracts for difference - unfunded          68,494,470        167,959,636          14,568,127          96,051,358 
Option contracts               111,770                        -                          -                          -  
Forward currency contracts          45,773,415        391,898,964          19,121,688        310,516,226 
Futures contracts                        -            75,563,610                        -            25,198,507 

       114,379,655        635,422,210          33,689,815        431,766,091 

Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative £ £ £ £
Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -                          -            51,613,638          46,198,359 
Forward currency contracts                        -                          -              1,106,147          84,059,225 
Futures contracts                        -                          -              5,312,835                        -  

                       -                          -            58,032,620        130,257,584 

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia US$ US$ US$ US$
Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -          384,250,443                        -          218,445,994 
Forward currency contracts        588,398,227     1,230,089,509        381,111,047        621,963,452 
Futures contracts        698,511,905        337,363,799        728,072,765        105,171,679 
Total return swaps        417,118,751                        -            20,613,048                        -  

    1,704,028,883     1,951,703,751     1,129,796,860        945,581,125 

Man AHL Active Balanced
Forward currency contracts        192,102,242        601,304,710            1,003,305          15,384,539 
Futures contracts     1,682,175,325                        -            38,692,607                        -  

    1,874,277,567        601,304,710          39,695,912          15,384,539 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities        
Credit default swaps          32,457,111                        -    n/a  n/a 
Forward currency contracts        104,047,567        177,426,073  n/a  n/a 
Total return swaps                        -              4,395,774  n/a  n/a 

       136,504,678        181,821,847  n/a  n/a 

Notional Value
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 
Derivative financial instruments (continued) 
 

Long Short Long Short
31 December

2019
31 December

2019
31 December

2018
31 December

2018
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit default swaps          16,059,911            4,974,809  n/a  n/a 
Contracts for difference - unfunded                        -            15,825,057  n/a  n/a 
Forward currency contracts            2,950,951          26,546,291  n/a  n/a 
Futures contracts                        -              1,194,866  n/a  n/a 
Option contracts                 72,422                        -    n/a  n/a 
Total return swaps          12,277,071            2,553,541  n/a  n/a 

         31,360,355          51,094,564  n/a  n/a 

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative
Contracts for difference - unfunded          38,542,879          23,877,574  n/a  n/a 
Forward currency contracts            3,522,884          92,551,227  n/a  n/a 
Option contracts                        -                   19,978  n/a  n/a 

         42,065,763        116,448,779  n/a  n/a 

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return
Credit default swaps            3,495,000            2,300,000  n/a  n/a 
Interest rate swaps                        -              1,913,570  n/a  n/a 

           3,495,000            4,213,570  n/a  n/a 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE        
Credit default swaps            8,001,782                        -    n/a  n/a 
Forward currency contracts          25,943,774                        -    n/a  n/a 
Total return swaps                        -              1,255,935  n/a  n/a 

         33,945,556            1,255,935  n/a  n/a 

Notional Value

 
 

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced its operations on 31 December 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019 and 31 December 2018. 
 

5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no financial instruments of the Fund are being presented net within the statement of 
financial position of the Fund. The following tables provide information on the financial impact of netting for instruments subject to an 
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement in the event of default as defined under such agreements. 
 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
BNP Paribas                              10,983,635                             -                         -           10,983,635 
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                   265,866                             -               (265,866)                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                7,453,657                             -                   (6,410)           7,447,247 
Goldman Sachs International                                3,587,289                             -            (2,266,569)           1,320,720 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                   153,541                             (4)               (83,461)                70,076 
Total                              22,443,988                             (4)          (2,622,306)         19,821,678 

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                               (1,441,682)                             -                265,866          (1,175,816)
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                      (6,410)                       6,410                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                               (2,266,569)                   386,934           1,879,635                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                    (83,465)                     83,465                       -                          -  
Total                               (3,798,126)                   476,809           2,145,501          (1,175,816)

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
BNP Paribas                              17,363,736                             -                         -           17,363,736 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                8,031,128               (1,977,688)             (843,739)           5,209,701 
Goldman Sachs International                                1,001,818                             -               (715,003)              286,815 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                            45                             -                         -                         45 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                   152,269                             -                 (90,178)                62,091 
Total                              26,548,996               (1,977,688)          (1,648,920)         22,922,388 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (2,821,427)                             -             2,821,427                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                                  (715,003)                   329,715              385,288                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                    (90,178)                     90,178                       -                          -  
Total                               (3,626,608)                   419,893           3,206,715                        -  

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                     10,267                         (115)                       -                  10,152 
BNP Paribas                              84,027,515                             -                         -           84,027,515 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              14,667,123                             -            (7,630,164)           7,036,959 
Goldman Sachs International                              52,520,992                             -            (3,927,255)         48,593,737 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              53,592,744                             -            (7,512,111)         46,080,633 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                   101,712                             -                         -                101,712 
Total                            204,920,353                         (115)        (19,069,530)       185,850,708 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                         (115)                          115                       -                          -  
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                               (4,433,000)                             -                         -            (4,433,000)
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (7,630,164)                             -             7,630,164                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                               (3,927,255)                             -             3,927,255                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (7,512,111)                7,512,111                       -                          -  
Total                             (23,502,645)                7,512,226         11,557,419          (4,433,000)

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                       1,954                           (47)                       -                    1,907 
BNP Paribas                            123,251,594                             -                         -         123,251,594 
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                       7,551                      (7,551)                       -                          -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                8,998,320                             -            (8,037,246)              961,074 
Goldman Sachs International                                8,203,471                             -               (135,445)           8,068,026 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              16,223,352                             -            (4,354,044)         11,869,308 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              12,997,904                             -                 (92,329)         12,905,575 
Total                            169,684,146                      (7,598)        (12,619,064)       157,057,484 

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                           (47)                            47                       -                          -  
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                  (959,660)                       7,551                       -               (952,109)
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (8,037,246)                             -             8,037,246                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                                  (135,445)                   135,445                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (4,354,044)                4,354,044                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                    (92,329)                     92,329                       -                          -  
Total                             (13,578,771)                4,589,416           8,037,246             (952,109)

Man GLG European Equity Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                   870,822                  (141,934)               (25,069)              703,819 
Bank of Nova Scotia                                2,820,493                             -            (2,425,955)              394,538 
Barclays Plc                                6,760,176                             -            (3,978,559)           2,781,617 
BNP Paribas                                     89,555                             -                         -                  89,555 
Citibank N.A.                                   454,749                             -               (395,825)                58,924 
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                              15,826,031                             -          (11,662,649)           4,163,382 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              11,936,502               (3,513,990)          (2,642,841)           5,779,671 
Goldman Sachs International                              21,467,518               (2,342,102)        (16,984,661)           2,140,755 
HSBC Bank Plc                                5,223,082                             -            (2,029,876)           3,193,206 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              25,271,992                             -            (3,823,603)         21,448,389 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              38,982,077                             -          (29,060,234)           9,921,843 
UBS AG                              67,903,433                             -          (53,269,352)         14,634,081 
Total                            197,606,430               (5,998,026)      (126,298,624)         65,309,780 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                  (167,003)                   167,003                       -                          -  
Bank of Nova Scotia                               (2,425,955)                   676,306           1,749,649                        -  
Barclays Plc                               (3,978,559)                3,978,559                       -                          -  
Citibank N.A.                                  (395,825)                   129,574              266,251                        -  
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                             (11,662,649)                             -           11,662,649                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (6,156,831)                             -             6,156,831                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                             (19,326,763)                             -           19,326,763                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (2,029,876)                2,029,876                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (3,823,603)                3,823,603                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (29,060,234)                7,153,919         21,906,315                        -  
UBS AG                             (53,269,352)              14,595,000         38,674,352                        -  
Total                           (132,296,650)              32,553,840         99,742,810                        -  

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG European Equity Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                     31,813                      (4,143)                       -                  27,670 
Bank of Nova Scotia                                   462,954                             -               (278,415)              184,539 
BNP Paribas                                   593,030                             -                         -                593,030 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              57,075,864             (28,261,248)        (27,998,419)              816,197 
Goldman Sachs International                              28,257,323                             -            (5,997,551)         22,259,772 
HSBC Bank Plc                              13,152,689                             -            (4,719,088)           8,433,601 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              46,680,662                             -          (12,710,715)         33,969,947 
Macquarie Bank                                     14,910                             -                 (14,577)                     333 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              57,292,578                  (697,472)        (41,270,726)         15,324,380 
UBS AG                              46,404,641                             -          (32,334,707)         14,069,934 
Total                            249,966,464             (28,962,863)      (125,324,198)         95,679,403 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                      (4,143)                       4,143                       -                          -  
Bank of Nova Scotia                                  (278,415)                   249,759                28,656                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                             (56,259,667)                             -           56,259,667                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                               (5,997,551)                5,997,551                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (4,719,088)                4,719,088                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                             (12,710,715)              12,710,715                       -                          -  
Macquarie Bank                                    (14,577)                             -                  14,577                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (41,968,198)                1,810,803         40,157,395                        -  
UBS AG                             (32,334,707)                             -           32,334,707                        -  
Total                           (154,287,061)              25,492,059       128,795,002                        -  

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Equity Alternative 
Man GLG Global Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 9 January 2018, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                            16                             -                          (1)                       15 
Goldman Sachs International                                              8                             -                         -                           8 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                            67                             (1)                      (66)                        -  
Total                                            91                             (1)                      (67)                       23 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                             (1)                              1                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                      (4,309)                             -                         -                   (4,309)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                  (100,437)                             -                         67             (100,370)
Nomura Holdings                                         (145)                             -                         -                      (145)
Total                                  (104,892)                              1                       67             (104,824)

Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                1,728,022                             -               (296,693)           1,431,329 
BNP Paribas                              16,585,378                             -                         -           16,585,378 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                8,984,302                  (493,172)          (3,907,002)           4,584,128 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                2,257,285                             -            (1,408,400)              848,885 
Goldman Sachs International                                3,893,800                             -            (1,482,085)           2,411,715 
HSBC Bank Plc                                8,416,180                             -            (6,270,831)           2,145,349 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                4,481,372                             -               (650,034)           3,831,338 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                6,736,704                             -            (3,731,923)           3,004,781 
Royal Bank of Scotland                                6,344,290                             -            (4,257,686)           2,086,604 
Total                              59,427,333                  (493,172)        (22,004,654)         36,929,507 

(ii)

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                  (296,693)                             -                296,693                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (4,400,174)                             -             4,400,174                        -  
Deutsche Bank AG, London                               (1,408,400)                1,018,980              389,420                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                               (1,482,085)                1,482,085                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (6,270,831)                3,138,205           3,132,626                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                  (650,034)                   616,960                33,074                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                               (3,731,923)                3,292,143              439,780                        -  
Royal Bank of Scotland                               (4,257,686)                2,219,272           2,038,414                        -  
Total                             (22,497,826)              11,767,645         10,730,181                        -  

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                1,933,722                             -               (628,725)           1,304,997 
BNP Paribas                                9,741,105                             -                         -             9,741,105 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                7,791,905                  (440,247)          (3,874,426)           3,477,232 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                1,519,244                             -               (671,965)              847,279 
Goldman Sachs International                                4,476,400                             -            (1,954,619)           2,521,781 
HSBC Bank Plc                                4,933,915                             -            (3,443,569)           1,490,346 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                3,684,679                             -               (898,546)           2,786,133 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                7,609,201                             -            (3,759,541)           3,849,660 
Royal Bank of Scotland                                2,546,505                             -            (1,607,250)              939,255 
Total                              44,236,676                  (440,247)        (16,838,641)         26,957,788 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                  (628,725)                             -                628,725                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (4,314,673)                             -             4,314,673                        -  
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                  (671,965)                   583,299                88,666                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                               (1,954,619)                1,954,619                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (3,443,569)                1,319,882           2,123,687                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                  (898,546)                     12,819              885,727                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                               (3,759,541)                3,759,541                       -                          -  
Royal Bank of Scotland                               (1,607,250)                1,307,253              299,997                        -  
Total                             (17,278,888)                8,937,413           8,341,475                        -  

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)
Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man AHL TargetRisk
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                              18,007,629                             -            (9,038,365)           8,969,264 
BNP Paribas                            200,540,121                             -                         -         200,540,121 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              63,606,151             (14,118,090)          (5,254,669)         44,233,392 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                              8                             -                         -                           8 
Goldman Sachs International                              27,961,259             (15,276,573)                       -           12,684,686 
HSBC Bank Plc                                1,197,817                             -               (494,702)              703,115 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              74,820,677               (9,671,902)          (4,322,741)         60,826,034 
Royal Bank of Scotland                                            10                             -                         -                         10 
Total                            386,133,672             (39,066,565)        (19,110,477)       327,956,630 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                               (9,038,365)                             -             9,038,365                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                             (19,372,759)                             -           19,372,759                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                             (15,276,573)              12,061,594           3,214,979                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                                  (494,702)                   494,702                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                             (13,994,643)                2,830,573         11,164,070                        -  
Total                             (58,177,042)              15,386,869         42,790,173                        -  

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                9,396,007                             -            (3,591,976)           5,804,031 
BNP Paribas                              77,431,310                             -                         -           77,431,310 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              15,317,292                             -            (1,983,777)         13,333,515 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                     15,580                             -                         -                  15,580 
Goldman Sachs International                                6,178,560                  (450,190)               (66,198)           5,662,172 
HSBC Bank Plc                                     24,697                             -                 (24,697)                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              29,225,339                             -            (7,923,057)         21,302,282 
Royal Bank of Scotland                                   911,760                             -               (164,859)              746,901 
Total                            138,500,545                  (450,190)        (13,754,564)       124,295,791 

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)
Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)
Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man AHL TargetRisk (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                               (3,591,976)                             -             3,591,976                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (1,983,777)                1,983,777                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                                  (516,388)                   516,388                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                                    (68,043)                             -                  24,697               (43,346)
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (7,923,057)                7,923,057                       -                          -  
Royal Bank of Scotland                                  (164,859)                   164,859                       -                          -  
Total                             (14,248,100)              10,588,081           3,616,673               (43,346)

Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
BNP Paribas                                            54                             -                         -                         54 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              23,404,586                             -          (15,304,633)           8,099,953 
Goldman Sachs International                              45,577,768               (5,707,109)        (37,866,416)           2,004,243 
HSBC Bank Plc                                9,360,255                             -            (4,501,627)           4,858,628 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                   229,013                  (160,000)               (61,000)                  8,013 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              15,799,690                             -            (1,461,132)         14,338,558 
Total                              94,371,366               (5,867,109)        (59,194,808)         29,309,449 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                             (15,304,633)              15,304,633                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                             (43,573,525)                             -           43,573,525                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (4,501,627)                4,501,627                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                  (221,000)                             -                221,000                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                               (1,461,132)                1,461,132                       -                          -  
Total                             (65,061,917)              21,267,392         43,794,525                        -  

(ii)

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
BNP Paribas                            109,450,609                             -                         -         109,450,609 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              49,896,691                             -            (3,418,093)         46,478,598 
Goldman Sachs International                              16,914,959                  (316,034)          (9,231,316)           7,367,609 
HSBC Bank Plc                              18,519,225                             -          (10,891,393)           7,627,832 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                2,529,842                             -                         -             2,529,842 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                   101,933                             -                 (52,469)                49,464 
Total                            197,413,259                  (316,034)        (23,593,271)       173,503,954 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (3,418,093)                3,418,093                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                               (9,547,350)                             -             9,547,350                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                             (10,891,393)              10,891,393                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                    (52,469)                     52,469                       -                          -  
Total                             (23,909,305)              14,361,955           9,547,350                        -  

(ii)

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative ceased operations on 17 September 2019, hence there are no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                              4                             -                         -                           4 
Total                                              4                             -                         -                           4 

(ii)
Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 

As at 31 December 2019 there were no financial liabilities subject to offsetting. 
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              45,399,578                             -          (45,367,859)                31,719 
Total                              45,399,578                             -          (45,367,859)                31,719 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (45,367,859)                             -           45,367,859                        -  
Total                             (45,367,859)                             -           45,367,859                        -  

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity ceased its operations 7 February 2019, hence there are no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
BNP Paribas                                              2                             -                         -                           2 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                            17                             -                         -                         17 
Total                                            19                             -                         -                         19 

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

 
As at 31 December 2019 there were no financial liabilities subject to offsetting. 
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
BNP Paribas                                2,000,788                             -                         -             2,000,788 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                     89,623                             -                   (1,549)                88,074 
HSBC Bank Plc                                   622,142                             -               (291,298)              330,844 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              16,566,669             (14,797,059)          (1,769,610)                        -  
Total                              19,279,222             (14,797,059)          (2,062,457)           2,419,706 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                      (1,549)                       1,549                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                                  (291,298)                   291,298                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (16,989,516)              14,388,201           2,178,468             (422,847)
Total                             (17,282,363)              14,681,048           2,178,468             (422,847)

Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                2,743,740               (2,450,000)                       -                293,740 
Barclays Plc                                   140,000                             -               (134,866)                  5,134 
Citibank N.A.                                   137,462                             -               (137,462)                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                            138,343,657                             -        (105,527,076)         32,816,581 
Goldman Sachs International                                   500,250                             -               (424,661)                75,589 
HSBC Bank Plc                              31,682,519                             -          (19,201,395)         12,481,124 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                1,701,119               (1,513,411)             (187,708)                        -  
Nomura Holdings                                   406,640                             -               (190,323)              216,317 
Total                            175,655,387               (3,963,411)      (125,803,491)         45,888,485 

(ii)

(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

111 
 

5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                               (2,450,000)                             -             2,450,000                        -  
Barclays Plc                                  (134,866)                   134,866                       -                          -  
Citibank N.A.                                  (146,666)                   137,462                       -                   (9,204)
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                           (105,527,076)            105,527,076                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                                  (424,661)                   424,661                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                             (19,201,395)              19,201,395                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (1,707,280)                             -             1,701,119                 (6,161)
Nomura Holdings                                  (190,323)                   190,323                       -                          -  
Total                           (129,782,267)            125,615,783           4,151,119               (15,365)

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                5,238,482               (4,230,000)                       -             1,008,482 
Barclays Plc                              20,571,584             (11,420,901)             (693,093)           8,457,590 
Citibank N.A.                                   282,151                             -               (205,491)                76,660 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                            130,048,519             (15,488,297)        (56,731,565)         57,828,657 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                5,120,955               (5,120,955)                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                              10,164,871               (6,010,503)                       -             4,154,368 
HSBC Bank Plc                              68,116,684                             -          (16,213,127)         51,903,557 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                1,378,742               (1,378,742)                       -                          -  
Nomura Holdings                                   945,163                             -               (409,107)              536,056 
UBS AG                                              4                             -                         -                           4 
Total                            241,867,155             (43,649,398)        (74,252,383)       123,965,374 

(ii)

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

112 
 

5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                               (4,230,000)                             -             4,230,000                        -  
Barclays Plc                             (12,113,994)                             -           12,113,994                        -  
Citibank N.A.                                  (205,491)                   205,491                       -                          -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                             (72,219,862)              72,219,862                       -                          -  
Deutsche Bank AG, London                               (5,129,118)                             -             5,120,955                 (8,163)
Goldman Sachs International                               (6,010,503)                             -             6,010,503                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                             (16,213,127)              16,213,127                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (2,197,721)                             -             1,378,742             (818,979)
Nomura Holdings                                  (409,107)                   409,107                       -                          -  
Total                           (118,728,923)              89,047,587         28,854,194             (827,142)

Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
BNP Paribas                                   133,337                             -                         -                133,337 
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                     90,935                             -                         -                  90,935 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                6,173,809                             -            (1,327,870)           4,845,939 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              17,690,815               (3,599,760)        (14,091,055)                        -  
Total                              24,088,896               (3,599,760)        (15,418,925)           5,070,211 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (1,327,870)                             -             1,327,870                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (18,609,803)                             -           17,690,815             (918,988)
Total                             (19,937,673)                             -           19,018,685             (918,988)

(ii)

(ii)

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

113 
 

5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
BNP Paribas                              57,378,463                             -                         -           57,378,463 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                2,174,584                             -               (613,944)           1,560,640 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              16,289,209                             -            (3,187,328)         13,101,881 
Total                              75,842,256                             -            (3,801,272)         72,040,984 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                  (613,944)                             -                613,944                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                               (3,187,328)                3,187,328                       -                          -  
Total                               (3,801,272)                3,187,328              613,944                        -  

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative ceased its operations on 21 March 2019, hence there are no investments as at 31 December 
2019. 
 
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
BNP Paribas                                              1                             -                         -                           1 
Total                                              1                             -                         -                           1 

(ii)
Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
As at 31 December 2019 there were no financial liabilities subject to offsetting. 
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
BNP Paribas                              16,015,928                             -                         -           16,015,928 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                5,822,456               (1,041,959)          (4,780,497)                        -  
Goldman Sachs International                                     74,500                             -                 (14,373)                60,127 
Total                              21,912,884               (1,041,959)          (4,794,870)         16,076,055 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty £ £ £ £
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (5,954,902)                             -             5,822,456             (132,446)
Goldman Sachs International                                    (14,373)                     14,373                       -                          -  
Total                               (5,969,275)                     14,373           5,822,456             (132,446)

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                3,184,673                             -               (455,107)           2,729,566 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              19,345,245                             -            (2,729,211)         16,616,034 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                2,572,611                             -            (1,835,131)              737,480 
HSBC Bank Plc                              10,705,873                             -            (7,628,558)           3,077,315 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                4,931,971                             -               (338,558)           4,593,413 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              21,852,588               (4,506,233)        (17,346,355)                        -  
Royal Bank of Scotland                                7,308,269                             -            (2,737,326)           4,570,943 
Total                              69,901,230               (4,506,233)        (33,070,246)         32,324,751 

(ii)

(ii)

(ii)
Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                  (455,107)                             -                455,107                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (2,729,211)                             -             2,729,211                        -  
Deutsche Bank AG, London                               (1,835,131)                1,449,687              385,444                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (7,628,558)                5,919,321           1,709,237                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                  (338,558)                             -                338,558                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (27,704,360)                             -           21,852,588          (5,851,772)
Royal Bank of Scotland                               (2,737,326)                2,737,326                       -                          -  
Total                             (43,428,251)              10,106,334         27,470,145          (5,851,772)

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                2,397,968                             -            (1,485,242)              912,726 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                7,674,875                             -            (1,026,811)           6,648,064 
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                1,176,733                             -               (473,222)              703,511 
HSBC Bank Plc                                5,684,387                             -            (4,770,661)              913,726 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                2,687,768                             -            (1,025,907)           1,661,861 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                              27,087,656                             -          (22,075,512)           5,012,144 
Royal Bank of Scotland                                3,764,859                             -            (1,258,557)           2,506,302 
Total                              50,474,246                             -          (32,115,912)         18,358,334 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount

Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                               (1,485,242)                             -             1,485,242                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (1,026,811)                             -             1,026,811                        -  
Deutsche Bank AG, London                                  (473,222)                             -                473,222                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                               (4,770,661)                             -             4,770,661                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (1,025,907)                             -             1,025,907                        -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                             (22,075,512)                             -           22,075,512                        -  
Royal Bank of Scotland                               (1,258,557)                             -             1,258,557                        -  
Total                             (32,115,912)                             -           32,115,912                        -  

(ii)

(ii)

(ii)
Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man AHL Active Balanced
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                9,564,390                             -            (4,148,991)           5,415,399 
BNP Paribas                            105,383,861                             -                         -         105,383,861 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                              18,487,585                             -            (2,851,728)         15,635,857 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                              23,183,857                             -            (2,055,419)         21,128,438 
Total                            156,619,693                             -            (9,056,138)       147,563,555 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                               (4,148,991)                             -             4,148,991                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                               (2,851,728)                             -             2,851,728                        -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (2,055,419)                             -             2,055,419                        -  
Total                               (9,056,138)                             -             9,056,138                        -  

The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                   338,305                             -               (127,046)              211,259 
BNP Paribas                                2,752,804                             -                         -             2,752,804 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                   353,481                             -                 (70,974)              282,507 
HSBC Bank Plc                                     15,113                             -                   (5,425)                  9,688 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                   435,082                             -                 (83,522)              351,560 
Total                                3,894,785                             -               (286,967)           3,607,818 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2018:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                  (127,046)                             -                127,046                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                    (70,974)                             -                  70,974                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                                      (5,425)                       5,425                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                    (83,522)                             -                  83,522                        -  
Total                                  (286,967)                       5,425              281,542                        -  

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Barclays Plc                              12,685,230                             -          (10,667,716)           2,017,514 
BNP Paribas                                            97                             -                         -                         97 
Citibank N.A.                                   119,646                             -               (126,011)                 (6,365)
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                   620,028                             -               (167,214)              452,814 
Goldman Sachs International                                   798,312                             -               (768,006)                30,306 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                1,491,838                  (109,026)               (69,131)           1,313,681 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                   442,048                             -                 (56,643)              385,405 
Total                              16,157,199                  (109,026)        (11,854,721)           4,193,452 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Barclays Plc                             (10,667,716)                   429,161         10,238,555                        -  
Citibank N.A.                                  (126,011)                   119,646                  6,365                        -  
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                  (164,724)                             -                         -               (164,724)
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                  (167,214)                   167,214                       -                          -  
Goldman Sachs International                                  (768,006)                   768,006                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                  (178,157)                   178,157                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                    (56,643)                     25,192                31,451                        -  
Total                             (12,128,471)                1,687,376         10,276,371             (164,724)

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities commenced its operations on 16 January 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of Nova Scotia                                2,040,951                             -               (538,722)           1,502,229 
Barclays Plc                              10,268,387                             -            (8,189,110)           2,079,277 
Citibank N.A.                                   296,666                             -               (178,327)              118,339 
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                       5,514                             -                   (5,514)                        -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                1,090,801                             -                         -             1,090,801 
Goldman Sachs International                                   375,104                             -               (226,926)              148,178 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                2,537,496                    (71,841)          (1,165,673)           1,299,982 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                   399,178                         (420)             (278,074)              120,684 
Nomura Holdings                                1,940,600                             -            (1,601,500)              339,100 
Total                              18,954,697                    (72,261)        (12,183,846)           6,698,590 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Bank of America Merrill Lynch                                    (14,108)                             -                         -                 (14,108)
Bank of Nova Scotia                                  (538,722)                   538,722                       -                          -  
Barclays Plc                               (8,189,110)                   273,511           7,915,599                        -  
Citibank N.A.                                  (178,327)                   178,327                       -                          -  
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                  (634,172)                             -                    5,514             (628,658)
Goldman Sachs International                                  (226,926)                   226,926                       -                          -  
HSBC Bank Plc                                    (50,895)                             -                         -                 (50,895)
JP Morgan Securities Plc                               (1,237,514)                1,237,514                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                  (278,494)                             -                278,494                        -  
Nomura Holdings                               (1,601,500)                             -             1,601,500                        -  
Total                             (12,949,768)                2,455,000           9,801,107             (693,661)

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative commenced its operations on 1 April 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Event Driven Alternative
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
BNP Paribas                              16,034,365                             -                         -           16,034,365 
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                1,466,669                             -               (288,906)           1,177,763 
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                   121,347                             -                 (29,036)                92,311 
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                                8,615,405                             -            (4,894,222)           3,721,183 
Total                              26,237,786                             -            (5,212,164)         21,025,622 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                  (288,906)                   288,906                       -                          -  
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                    (29,036)                     29,036                       -                          -  
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc                               (4,894,222)                4,894,222                       -                          -  
Total                               (5,212,164)                5,212,164                       -                          -  

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative commenced its operations on 2 July 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2018. 
 
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                   221,124                             -                 (41,715)              179,409 
HSBC Bank Plc                                   209,944                             -                 (42,525)              167,419 
Total                                   431,068                             -                 (84,240)              346,828 

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position
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5. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return (continued)
The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty US$ US$ US$ US$
Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited                                    (41,715)                     34,051                  7,664                        -  
HSBC Bank Plc                                    (42,525)                     42,525                       -                          -  
Total                                    (84,240)                     76,576                  7,664                        -  

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return commenced its operations on 1 August 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2018. 
 
Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE
The following table summarises the net financial assets per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of assets in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 held
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                   250,000                             -                 (14,685)              235,315 
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                   915,810                             -               (630,379)              285,431 
Total                                1,165,810                             -               (645,064)              520,746 

The following table summarises the net financial liabilities per counterparty as at 31 December 2019:

(i) (iii)=(i)+(ii)

Gross amounts of liabilit ies in
 the statement of financial

 position
Cash collateral

 pledged
Financial

 instruments Net amount
Counterparty        
Credit Suisse AG Ireland                                    (14,685)                     14,685                       -                          -  
JP Morgan Securities Plc                                  (630,379)                   630,379                       -                          -  
Total                                  (645,064)                   645,064                       -                          -  

Offsetting of financial assets, derivative assets and collateral held by counterparty
(ii)

Gross assets not offset in the 
statement of financial position

Offsetting of financial liabilit ies, derivative liabilit ies and collateral pledged by counterparty
(ii)

Gross liabilit ies not offset in the 
statement of financial position

 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE commenced its operations on 22 November 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 
December 2018. 
 
Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced its operations on 31 December 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019 and 31 December 2018. 
 
6. Financial risk management 
 
Overall risk management 
The Fund�s investment activities expose it to the various types of risk which are associated with the financial instruments and markets in 
which it invests. The most important types of financial risks to which the Fund is exposed are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
Market risk includes equity price risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Fund manages these risks on an aggregate basis 
along with the risks associated with its investing activities as part of its overall risk management policies. 
 
The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the dates of the statement of financial position and the risk 
management policies employed by the Fund are discussed below. 
 
The following summary is not intended to be a comprehensive summary of all of the risks and investors should refer to the Prospectus 
for a more detailed discussion of the risks inherent in investing in the Fund. 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and security prices. 
 
Market risk can include equity risk, interest rate risk, credit spread risk, volatility and foreign currency risk.  The exposure to these factors 
is measured and monitored using Value at Risk (�VaR�).  
 
All Portfolios utilize the absolute VaR approach to risk management (where VaR is presented as percentage points of net assets value).  
 
The table below identifies the VaR calculated on the Portfolio during 2019. A Monte Carlo VaR model is calculated daily, with a 99% 
confidence interval, over a 20 day holding period, using a historical observation period of not less than 1 year. This signifies that the 
Portfolio would not be expected to lose more than the stated amount 99% of the time.  The results are based on historically observed 
correlations and volatilities, which may not be an accurate predictor of the future. 
 
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the following table represents the Fund 1 day VaR as a percentage of Net Assets: 
 

Fund  name
Realised Absolute

VaR during 2019
Realised Absolute
 VaR during 2018

Man GLG European Alpha Alternative Minimum 1.26% 0.53%
Maximum 2.98% 2.96%
Median 2.13% 1.81%
Year-End 2.28% 1.00%

Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative Minimum 1.05% 0.57%
Maximum 2.67% 5.00%
Median 1.92% 2.18%
Year-End 2.09% 1.05%

Man GLG European Equity Alternative Minimum 2.04% 1.74%
Maximum 3.60% 3.37%
Median 2.62% 2.64%
Year-End 3.05% 1.97%

Man GLG Global Equity Alternative Minimum n/a 0.00%
Liquidation January 2018 Maximum n/a 2.45%

Median n/a 0.61%
Year-End n/a 0.00%

Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative Minimum 4.41% 3.10%
Maximum 8.83% 11.03%
Median 5.80% 6.50%
Year-End 7.12% 4.95%

Man AHL TargetRisk Minimum 5.02% 1.70%
Maximum 6.63% 7.77%
Median 5.88% 5.93%
Year-End 6.56% 4.98%

Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative Minimum 2.07% 1.89%
Maximum 3.19% 2.72%
Median 2.41% 2.24%
Year-End 2.97% 2.19%

Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative Minimum n/a 3.24%
Liquidation September 2019 Maximum n/a 6.15%

Median n/a 4.41%
Year-End n/a 5.96%

Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity Minimum n/a 8.80%
Liquidation February 2019 Maximum n/a 11.84%

Median n/a 9.97%
Year-End n/a 11.10%

Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return Minimum 1.92% 1.56%
Maximum 2.79% 3.56%
Median 2.43% 2.58%
Year-End 2.07% 2.52%
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Market risk (continued) 
 

Fund  name
Realised Absolute
 VaR during 2019

Realised Absolute
 VaR during 2018

Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative Minimum 1.99% 1.51%
Maximum 3.58% 7.24%
Median 2.89% 2.74%
Year-End 2.74% 2.28%

Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative Minimum n/a 2.08%
Liquidation March 2019 Maximum n/a 3.33%

Median n/a 2.57%
Year-End n/a 2.83%

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia Minimum 3.28% 3.37%
Maximum 4.96% 8.81%
Median 3.72% 4.29%
Year-End 4.35% 3.96%

Man AHL Active Balanced Minimum 4.95% 4.94%
Launched November 2018 Maximum 7.33% 6.23%

Median 6.03% 5.27%
Year-End 7.29% 5.10%

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities Minimum 1.36% n/a
Launched January 2019 Maximum 3.38% n/a

Median 2.43% n/a
Year-End 3.11% n/a

Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative Minimum 0.37% n/a
Launched April 2019 Maximum 2.98% n/a

Median 1.76% n/a
Year-End 2.78% n/a

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative Minimum 4.02% n/a
Launched July 2019 Maximum 6.55% n/a

Median 5.71% n/a
Year-End 4.33% n/a

Man GLG Global Debt Total Return Minimum 2.32% n/a
Launched August 2019 Maximum 2.78% n/a

Median 2.54% n/a
Year-End 2.54% n/a

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE Minimum 1.11% n/a
Launched November 2019 Maximum 2.28% n/a

Median 2.08% n/a
Year-End 2.20% n/a

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha Minimum n/a n/a
Launched December 2019 Maximum n/a n/a

Median n/a n/a
Year-End n/a n/a

 
 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 
 
The Fund has exposure to interest rate risk on cash held at the bank, balances due to and with brokers and certain derivative contracts. 
That exposure may not necessarily be significant due to the generally short term nature of those holdings. But a more significant 
exposure exists in that the value of all financial instruments held by the Fund may be affected either positively or negatively by changes in 
interest rates.  
 
The Fund is directly exposed to interest rate risk through its investment in debt securities, which is deliberately designed to generate 
returns through trading strategies focused on exploiting price differentials in rates. The sensitivity of these exposures is modelled through 
the overall VAR analysis provided in the market risk section. Short term government treasury bills are included in the tables on the pages 
herein after as not being exposed to interest rate risk. 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
The following tables detail the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk by the earlier of contractual maturities or re-pricing: 
 
Man GLG European Alpha Alternative

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2019          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           4,682,104                    -                      -     -           4,682,104 
Balances with brokers         19,802,115                    -                      -     -         19,802,115 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            78,371,188        78,371,188 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   26,849               26,849 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 131,234             131,234 
Total assets         24,484,219                    -                      -            78,529,271      103,013,490 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers              499,982   -      -      -                499,982 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                  163,445             163,445 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              3,343,269          3,343,269 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                  182,174             182,174 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                    85,741               85,741 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    84,783               84,783 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    35,190               35,190 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    53,577               53,577 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 177,287             177,287 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)              499,982                    -                      -              4,125,466          4,625,448 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         23,984,237                    -                      -            74,403,805        98,388,042 

31 December 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           4,460,912                    -                      -     -           4,460,912 
Balances with brokers         24,619,383                    -                      -     -         24,619,383 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                 582,768             582,768 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            91,076,947        91,076,947 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                   11,668               11,668 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   65,006               65,006 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   49,932               49,932 
Total assets         29,080,295                    -                      -            91,786,321      120,866,616 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           2,430,056   -      -      -             2,430,056 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -               2,117,427          2,117,427 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              1,307,581          1,307,581 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                    15,850               15,850 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  101,314             101,314 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    31,682               31,682 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    49,407               49,407 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 134,994             134,994 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           2,430,056                    -                      -              3,758,255          6,188,311 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         26,650,239                    -                      -            88,028,066      114,678,305 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2019 £ £ £ £ £
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         85,884,835                    -                      -     -         85,884,835 
Balances with brokers       162,683,782                    -                      -     -       162,683,782 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                 515,053             515,053 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -        50,367,500                    -          762,525,621      812,893,121 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                 377,538             377,538 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                 756,868             756,868 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -              1,372,333          1,372,333 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 485,808             485,808 
Total assets       248,568,617      50,367,500                    -          766,033,221   1,064,969,338 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           4,786,613   -      -      -             4,786,613 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            29,975,536        29,975,536 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -               5,582,045          5,582,045 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -               4,233,312          4,233,312 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  687,379             687,379 
Interest payable   -      -      -                  537,994             537,994 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                  667,013             667,013 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 995,696             995,696 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           4,786,613                    -                      -            42,678,975        47,465,588 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       243,782,004      50,367,500                    -          723,354,246   1,017,503,750 

31 December 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         43,319,924                    -                      -     -         43,319,924 
Balances with brokers       154,078,205                    -                      -     -       154,078,205 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                   28,452               28,452 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -        43,285,950                    -          577,229,293      620,515,243 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                 180,000             180,000 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                 620,055             620,055 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                 346,227             346,227 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 205,660             205,660 
Total assets       197,398,129      43,285,950                    -          578,609,687      819,293,766 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           1,839,626   -      -      -             1,839,626 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                    19,493               19,493 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            14,007,271        14,007,271 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                    54,249               54,249 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                  191,365             191,365 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  525,988             525,988 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    65,382               65,382 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                  445,428             445,428 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 767,532             767,532 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           1,839,626                    -                      -            16,076,708        17,916,334 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       195,558,503      43,285,950                    -          562,532,979      801,377,432 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 

Man GLG European Equity Alternative
Less than one

month
One month to

one year
Over one

year
Not exposed to

interest rate risk Total
31 December 2019          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         39,767,434                    -                      -     -         39,767,434 
Balances with brokers         97,785,710                    -                      -     -         97,785,710 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -              2,717,934          2,717,934 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          380,432,254      380,432,254 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                     7,857                 7,857 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                 770,876             770,876 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   42,006               42,006 
Total assets       137,553,144                    -                      -          383,970,927      521,524,071 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         16,590,834   -      -      -           16,590,834 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -               1,963,627          1,963,627 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          117,686,931      117,686,931 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                  184,997             184,997 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                  143,396             143,396 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  684,997             684,997 
Interest payable   -      -      -                  160,592             160,592 
Dividend payable   -      -      -               1,066,417          1,066,417 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 634,651             634,651 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         16,590,834                    -                      -          122,525,608      139,116,442 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       120,962,310                    -                      -          261,445,319      382,407,629 

31 December 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         50,414,657                    -                      -     -         50,414,657 
Balances with brokers       105,717,938                    -                      -     -       105,717,938 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -            10,901,191        10,901,191 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          838,390,094      838,390,094 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                          66                      66 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                   20,662               20,662 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -              1,169,713          1,169,713 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   53,372               53,372 
Total assets       156,132,595                    -                      -          850,535,098   1,006,667,693 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         38,530,689   -      -      -           38,530,689 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -             19,737,404        19,737,404 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          115,912,454      115,912,454 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                  134,436             134,436 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                      3,548                 3,548 
Management fees payable   -      -      -               1,448,765          1,448,765 
Dividend payable   -      -      -               1,893,759          1,893,759 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -              1,048,396          1,048,396 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         38,530,689                    -                      -          140,178,762      178,709,451 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       117,601,906                    -                      -          710,356,336      827,958,242 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Equity Alternative

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents              162,680                    -                      -     -              162,680 
Balances with brokers                     193                    -                      -     -                     193 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                          80                      80 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   31,458               31,458 
Total assets              162,873                    -                      -                   31,538             194,411 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers              110,294   -      -      -                110,294 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                           87                      87 
Interest payable   -      -      -                      1,634                 1,634 
Liquidation fees payable   -      -      -                    12,922               12,922 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                   69,474               69,474 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)              110,294                    -                      -                   84,117             194,411 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders                52,579                    -                      -                  (52,579)                      -  

 
 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative
31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         51,342,196                    -                      -     -         51,342,196 
Balances with brokers         39,644,643                    -                      -     -         39,644,643 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                   91,368               91,368 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -               84,558              5,883          36,374,889        36,465,330 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                     2,845                 2,845 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                     1,279                 1,279 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   95,159               95,159 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                     6,636                 6,636 
Total assets         90,986,839             84,558              5,883          36,572,176      127,649,456 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           3,143,038   -      -      -             3,143,038 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                    92,685               92,685 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -              24,496          20,839,675        20,864,171 
Shareholder transactions                        -                      -                      -                        699                    699 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                  734,815             734,815 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    93,948               93,948 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    24,807               24,807 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    79,835               79,835 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  143,956             143,956 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           3,143,038                    -              24,496          22,010,420        25,177,954 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         87,843,801             84,558           (18,613)          14,561,756      102,471,502 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man AHL Multi Strategy Alternative (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         47,346,921                    -                      -     -         47,346,921 
Balances with brokers         26,798,642                    -                      -     -         26,798,642 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                 401,104             401,104 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -               75,390          136,994          38,962,448        39,174,832 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                     3,572                 3,572 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                     2,073                 2,073 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   83,179               83,179 
Total assets         74,145,563             75,390          136,994          39,452,376      113,810,323 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           2,599,560   -      -      -             2,599,560 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                  342,866             342,866 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                 7,102              2,088          14,887,541        14,896,731 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                  807,686             807,686 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    87,465               87,465 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    30,431               30,431 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    51,823               51,823 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  153,546             153,546 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           2,599,560               7,102              2,088          16,361,358        18,970,108 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         71,546,003             68,288          134,906          23,091,018        94,840,215 

Man AHL TargetRisk
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents       127,570,563                    -                      -                           -        127,570,563 
Balances with brokers       296,549,789                    -                      -     -       296,549,789 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -      658,852,827   398,049,493        136,617,608   1,193,519,928 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -              6,303,147          6,303,147 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -              2,887,514          2,887,514 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -              1,014,949          1,014,949 
Total assets       424,120,352    658,852,827   398,049,493        146,823,218   1,627,845,890 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         48,650,522   -      -      -           48,650,522 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                      1,904                 1,904 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            25,843,769        25,843,769 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -             10,397,728        10,397,728 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  923,583             923,583 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -               1,334,567          1,334,567 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         48,650,522                    -                      -            38,501,551        87,152,073 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       375,469,830    658,852,827   398,049,493        108,321,667   1,540,693,817 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man AHL TargetRisk (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         84,307,646                    -                      -              1,000,000        85,307,646 
Balances with brokers       121,123,428                    -                      -     -       121,123,428 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -      398,245,379                    -            27,997,749      426,243,128 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                     8,316                 8,316 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -              1,005,301          1,005,301 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 315,172             315,172 
Total assets       205,431,074    398,245,379                    -            30,326,538      634,002,991 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           6,858,892   -      -      -             6,858,892 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                         868                    868 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            12,480,342        12,480,342 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -               2,832,850          2,832,850 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  318,260             318,260 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  658,151             658,151 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           6,858,892                    -                      -            16,290,471        23,149,363 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       198,572,182    398,245,379                    -            14,036,067      610,853,628 

Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative
31 December 2019          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         20,492,590                    -                      -     -         20,492,590 
Balances with brokers         41,491,657                    -                      -     -         41,491,657 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          488,540,467      488,540,467 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                     5,768                 5,768 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   26,342               26,342 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   13,568               13,568 
Total assets         61,984,247                    -                      -          488,586,145      550,570,392 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         19,315,384   -      -      -           19,315,384 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            46,182,623        46,182,623 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                    85,384               85,384 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                      6,573                 6,573 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  447,218             447,218 
Interest payable   -      -      -                  256,341             256,341 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                  298,640             298,640 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 603,901             603,901 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         19,315,384                    -                      -            47,880,680        67,196,064 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         42,668,863                    -                      -          440,705,465      483,374,328 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG European Mid-Cap Equity Alternative (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         48,898,072                    -                      -     -         48,898,072 
Balances with brokers       187,407,321                    -                      -     -       187,407,321 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          431,878,231      431,878,231 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                          30                      30 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   39,860               39,860 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   10,179               10,179 
Total assets       236,305,393                    -                      -          431,928,300      668,233,693 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers              368,539   -      -      -                368,539 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            24,683,074        24,683,074 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                         522                    522 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                      1,616                 1,616 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  560,462             560,462 
Interest payable   -      -      -                  268,452             268,452 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                  774,304             774,304 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 650,541             650,541 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)              368,539                    -                      -            26,938,971        27,307,510 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       235,936,854                    -                      -          404,989,329      640,926,183 

Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative
31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents                76,901                    -                      -     -                76,901 
Balances with brokers                         4                    -                      -     -                         4 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   10,238               10,238 
Total assets                76,905                    -                      -                   10,238               87,143 

Liabilit ies
Interest payable   -      -      -                      7,104                 7,104 
Liquidation fees payable   -      -      -                      5,000                 5,000 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                   75,039               75,039 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)                        -                      -                      -                   87,143               87,143 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders                76,905                    -                      -                  (76,905)                      -  
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man Numeric Market Neutral Alternative (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           1,189,686                    -                      -     -           1,189,686 
Balances with brokers         43,515,331                    -                      -     -         43,515,331 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            22,598,390        22,598,390 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                   17,232               17,232 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   61,963               61,963 
Total assets         44,705,017                    -                      -            22,677,585        67,382,602 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         44,878,495   -      -      -           44,878,495 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -                 637,033             637,033 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    46,556               46,556 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    13,584               13,584 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 182,057             182,057 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         44,878,495                    -                      -                 879,230        45,757,725 

Net assets attributable to
Redeemable Participating
Shareholders             (173,478)                    -                      -            21,798,355        21,624,877 

Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents                34,456                    -                      -     -                34,456 
Balances with brokers                       19                    -                      -     -                       19 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                     4,427                 4,427 
Total assets                34,475                    -                      -                     4,427               38,902 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers                         3   -      -      -                           3 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                   38,899               38,899 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)                         3                    -                      -                   38,899               38,902 

Net assets attributable to
Redeemable Participating
Shareholders                34,472                    -                      -                  (34,472)                      -  

 
 
 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

131 
 

6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Unconstrained Emerging Equity (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           7,060,275                    -                      -     -           7,060,275 
Balances with brokers         18,851,509                    -                      -     -         18,851,509 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            50,243,306        50,243,306 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                   19,873               19,873 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                 100,312             100,312 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   87,680               87,680 
Total assets         25,911,784                    -                      -            50,451,171        76,362,955 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         14,808,927   -      -      -           14,808,927 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                           10                      10 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              2,493,979          2,493,979 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    39,028               39,028 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    24,251               24,251 
Liquidation fees payable                   5,000                 5,000 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 140,680             140,680 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         14,808,927                    -                      -              2,702,948        17,511,875 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         11,102,857                    -                      -            47,748,223        58,851,080 

Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         49,247,192                    -                      -          782,030,456      831,277,648 
Balances with brokers       129,864,992                    -                      -     -       129,864,992 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -        11,595,554                    -          883,201,785      894,797,339 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                   70,385               70,385 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                 205,294             205,294 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -              1,618,980          1,618,980 
Total assets       179,112,184      11,595,554                    -       1,667,126,900   1,857,834,638 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         16,298,254   -      -      -           16,298,254 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -       88,417,151          37,411,641      125,828,792 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                    80,346               80,346 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  900,686             900,686 
Interest payable   -      -      -                  414,685             414,685 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -              2,072,764          2,072,764 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         16,298,254                    -       88,417,151          40,880,122      145,595,527 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       162,813,930      11,595,554    (88,417,151)     1,626,246,778   1,712,239,111 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Emerging Markets Debt Total Return (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         54,052,068                    -                      -          205,400,170      259,452,238 
Balances with brokers       116,207,154                    -                      -     -       116,207,154 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -      185,722,338                    -       2,920,819,630   3,106,541,968 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                 107,636             107,636 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -              2,610,383          2,610,383 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -              1,222,686          1,222,686 
Total assets       170,259,222    185,722,338                    -       3,130,160,505   3,486,142,065 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         48,904,011   -      -      -           48,904,011 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -       55,519,156          19,646,421        75,165,577 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                  356,541             356,541 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                           28                      28 
Management fees payable   -      -      -               1,782,194          1,782,194 
Interest payable   -      -      -               2,000,886          2,000,886 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -              3,209,132          3,209,132 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         48,904,011                    -       55,519,156          26,995,202      131,418,369 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       121,355,211    185,722,338    (55,519,156)     3,103,165,303   3,354,723,696 

Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative
31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         15,614,057                    -                      -            24,912,518        40,526,575 
Balances with brokers         13,135,405                    -                      -     -         13,135,405 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -              3,262,603          3,262,603 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          456,783,072      456,783,072 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                   16,475               16,475 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                     4,780                 4,780 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                 113,012             113,012 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 327,262             327,262 
Total assets         28,749,462                    -                      -          485,419,722      514,169,184 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           7,749,340   -      -      -             7,749,340 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                      7,312                 7,312 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            16,343,102        16,343,102 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -               3,423,940          3,423,940 
Performance fees payable                        -                      -                      -              3,319,905          3,319,905 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  381,527             381,527 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                      7,735                 7,735 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 490,470             490,470 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           7,749,340                    -                      -            23,973,991        31,723,331 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         21,000,122                    -                      -          461,445,731      482,445,853 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Innovation Equity Alternative (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         20,051,686                    -                      -            44,894,697        64,946,383 
Balances with brokers         68,538,697                    -                      -     -         68,538,697 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                 456,296             456,296 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -          234,454,857      234,454,857 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                   10,969               10,969 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                 127,834             127,834 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                 107,467             107,467 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 215,718             215,718 
Total assets         88,590,383                    -                      -          280,267,838      368,858,221 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           1,759,549   -      -      -             1,759,549 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -               5,416,681          5,416,681 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              2,196,853          2,196,853 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                      5,747                 5,747 
Performance fees payable               111,191             111,191 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  298,786             298,786 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    60,381               60,381 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 381,445             381,445 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           1,759,549                    -                      -              8,471,084        10,230,633 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         86,830,834                    -                      -          271,796,754      358,627,588 

Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative
31 December 2019 £ £ £ £ £
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents                61,164                    -                      -     -                61,164 
Balances with brokers                         1                    -                      -     -                         1 
Total assets                61,165                    -                      -                           -                 61,165 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers                14,441   -      -      -                  14,441 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                         332                    332 
Interest payable   -      -      -                         900                    900 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                   45,492               45,492 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)                14,441                    -                      -                   46,724               61,165 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders                46,724                    -                      -                  (46,724)                      -  

 
 



Man Funds VI plc 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019 
 

134 
 

6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man NewSmith UK Equity Alternative (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 £ £ £ £ £
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         20,042,641                    -                      -     -         20,042,641 
Balances with brokers         16,320,084                    -                      -     -         16,320,084 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            79,412,447        79,412,447 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                          95                      95 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                 179,069             179,069 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   57,694               57,694 
Total assets         36,362,725                    -                      -            79,649,305      116,012,030 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           2,744,964   -      -      -             2,744,964 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              4,927,316          4,927,316 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                         332                    332 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  159,626             159,626 
Interest payable   -      -      -                         868                    868 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    89,054               89,054 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -                       -                      -                 117,909             117,909 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           2,744,964                    -                      -              5,295,105          8,040,069 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         33,617,761                    -                      -            74,354,200      107,971,961 

Man Alternative Style Risk Premia
31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         29,436,376                    -                      -                           -          29,436,376 
Balances with brokers         53,725,067                    -                      -     -         53,725,067 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -               35,900            19,725        600,751,804      600,807,429 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -              3,515,894          3,515,894 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 524,752             524,752 
Total assets         83,161,443             35,900            19,725        604,792,450      688,009,518 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         10,720,692   -      -      -           10,720,692 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                      3,634                 3,634 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -            155,906          38,641,711        38,797,617 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                    12,774               12,774 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                      6,236                 6,236 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  980,887             980,887 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  722,004             722,004 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         10,720,692                    -            155,906          40,367,246        51,243,844 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         72,440,751             35,900         (136,181)        564,425,204      636,765,674 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man Alternative Style Risk Premia (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents         13,658,386                    -                      -            42,935,363        56,593,749 
Balances with brokers         17,380,422                    -                      -     -         17,380,422 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -               51,425          469,951        272,785,264      273,306,640 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -              2,880,680          2,880,680 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 368,226             368,226 
Total assets         31,038,808             51,425          469,951        318,969,533      350,529,717 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers         24,011,550   -      -      -           24,011,550 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                      1,182                 1,182 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            10,872,840        10,872,840 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -               2,935,315          2,935,315 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  248,312             248,312 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  419,725             419,725 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         24,011,550                    -                      -            14,477,374        38,488,924 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders           7,027,258             51,425          469,951        304,492,159      312,040,793 

Man AHL Active Balanced
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents       234,007,693                    -                      -            81,431,678      315,439,371 
Balances with brokers       175,647,942                    -                      -     -       175,647,942 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -              4,148,341          4,148,341 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            95,210,538        95,210,538 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                     8,190                 8,190 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 128,398             128,398 
Total assets       409,655,635                    -                      -          180,927,145      590,582,780 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers              248,166   -      -      -                248,166 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -               4,265,142          4,265,142 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              7,049,415          7,049,415 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                  317,111             317,111 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  247,363             247,363 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)              248,166                    -                      -            11,879,031        12,127,197 

Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders       409,407,469                    -                      -          169,048,114      578,455,583 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man AHL Active Balanced (continued)

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2018 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           9,032,850                    -                      -                   99,766          9,132,616 
Balances with brokers           3,422,597                    -                      -     -           3,422,597 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                 192,795             192,795 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              2,853,122          2,853,122 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                        163                    163 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   28,557               28,557 
Total assets         12,455,447                    -                      -              3,174,403        15,629,850 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers              146,667   -      -      -                146,667 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -                    98,746               98,746 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -                   62,116               62,116 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                      9,530                 9,530 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                    30,769               30,769 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)              146,667                    -                      -                 201,161             347,828 
Net assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         12,308,780                    -                      -              2,973,242        15,282,022 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities
31 December 2019          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents              495,470                    -                      -     -              495,470 
Balances with brokers           2,447,039                    -                      -     -           2,447,039 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -      140,018,130     39,502,780            9,026,782      188,547,692 
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                   88,116               88,116 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -              2,997,627          2,997,627 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 266,784             266,784 
Total assets           2,942,509    140,018,130     39,502,780          12,379,309      194,842,728 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           1,956,293   -      -      -             1,956,293 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -            160,125            1,763,370          1,923,495 
Securities sold under agreement to 
repurchase         10,172,541   -      -                            -          10,172,541 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                  145,917             145,917 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    47,945               47,945 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    84,445               84,445 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  198,840             198,840 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         12,128,834                    -            160,125            2,240,517        14,529,476 

Net Assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders          (9,186,325)    140,018,130     39,342,655          10,138,792      180,313,252 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Credit Multi-Strategy Alternative

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents              931,843                    -                      -     -              931,843 
Balances with brokers           4,848,389                    -                      -     -           4,848,389 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -        31,744,345       1,739,737            4,412,176        37,896,258 

Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                 306,382             306,382 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                 169,267             169,267 
Total assets           5,780,232      31,744,345       1,739,737            4,887,825        44,152,139 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers              329,422   -      -      -                329,422 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -              91,175            3,051,619          3,142,794 

Securities sold under agreement to 
repurchase           9,706,449   -      -                            -            9,706,449 

Performance fees payable   -      -      -                  174,208             174,208 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    25,689               25,689 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    49,497               49,497 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                      3,124                 3,124 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                    85,944               85,944 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)         10,035,871                    -              91,175            3,390,081        13,517,127 

Net Assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders          (4,255,639)      31,744,345       1,648,562            1,497,744        30,635,012 

Man GLG Event Driven Alternative
31 December 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           4,200,371                    -                      -            22,561,542        26,761,913 
Balances with brokers         23,378,862                    -                      -     -         23,378,862 
Due from brokers                        -                      -                      -                 131,811             131,811 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -            60,095,710        60,095,710 

Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -                            1                        1 
Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                        531                    531 
Dividend receivable                        -                      -                      -                   28,013               28,013 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   67,094               67,094 
Total assets         27,579,233                    -                      -            82,884,702      110,463,935 

Liabilit ies
Balances due to brokers           3,217,298   -      -      -             3,217,298 
Due to brokers                        -     -      -               3,235,304          3,235,304 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -                      -              2,038,105          2,038,105 
Shareholder transactions   -      -      -                    14,868               14,868 
Performance fees payable   -      -      -                  317,735             317,735 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    55,977               55,977 
Dividend payable   -      -      -                    42,555               42,555 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                  108,261             108,261 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)           3,217,298                    -                      -              5,812,805          9,030,103 

Net Assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders         24,361,935                    -                      -            77,071,897      101,433,832 
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6. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Interest rate risk (continued) 
 
Man GLG Global Debt Total Return

Less than one
month

One month to
one year

Over one
year

Not exposed to
interest rate risk Total

31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents              144,082                    -                      -              3,968,248          4,112,330 
Balances with brokers              174,892                    -                      -     -              174,892 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -          4,561,941       2,834,671               305,835          7,702,447 

Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                   22,822               22,822 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   54,245               54,245 
Total assets              318,974        4,561,941       2,834,671            4,351,150        12,066,736 

Liabilit ies
Due to brokers                        -     -      -               1,845,625          1,845,625 
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -              14,936                 69,304               84,240 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                      3,417                 3,417 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                    60,567               60,567 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)                        -                      -              14,936            1,978,913          1,993,849 

Net Assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders              318,974        4,561,941       2,819,735            2,372,237        10,072,887 

Man GLG High Yield Opportunities DE
31 December 2019          
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents           8,600,851                    -                      -     -           8,600,851 
Balances with brokers           1,141,021                    -                      -     -           1,141,021 
Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -        31,532,626       8,005,752            1,527,574        41,065,952 

Interest receivable                        -                      -                      -                 597,471             597,471 
Other assets                        -                      -                      -                   25,249               25,249 
Total assets           9,741,872      31,532,626       8,005,752            2,150,294        51,430,544 

Liabilit ies
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss                        -                      -              23,235               625,093             648,328 
Management fees payable   -      -      -                    25,670               25,670 
Interest payable   -      -      -                    11,736               11,736 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   -      -      -                    34,354               34,354 
Total liabilit ies (excluding net assets 
attributable to Redeemable 
Participating Shareholders)                        -                      -              23,235               696,853             720,088 

Net Assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders           9,741,872      31,532,626       7,982,517            1,453,441        50,710,456 

 
 

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha
31 December 2019 US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Assets
Subscriptions receivable                        -                      -                      -            20,000,000        20,000,000 
Total assets                        -                      -                      -            20,000,000        20,000,000 
Net Assets attributable to 
Redeemable Participating 
Shareholders                        -                      -                      -            20,000,000        20,000,000 

 
 

Man GLG US Absolute Alpha commenced its operations on 31 December 2019, hence there were no investments as at 31 December 
2019 and 31 December 2018. 
 
















































































































































































































































































































































































